
AGENDA

CABINET

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING CABINET SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 

VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

ALL MOBILE TELEPHONES TO BE SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR THE 
DURATION OF THE MEETING

Part 1

1. Appointment of Chairperson  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Welsh Government Funding and Policy Announcements 
(Standing Item) - Verbal Update  

4. Annual Governance Statement 2019-2020  (Pages 3 - 68)

5. Appointment of Local Authority Governors  (Pages 69 - 102)

6. Capital Outturn 2019-20  (Pages 103 - 110)

7. Revenue Outturn 2019-20  (Pages 111 - 136)

8. Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy  
(Pages 137 - 234)

9. Traffic Regulation Orders - Leiros Park and Ravenswood Close, 
Bryncoch  (Pages 235 - 248)

10. Traffic Regulation Orders - Swansea Road, Trebannos  
(Pages 249 - 262)



11. Urgent Items  
Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairperson pursuant to Section 100b (4)(B) of the Local 
Government Act 1972

S.Phillips
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Thursday, 14 May 2020

Cabinet Members: 

Councillors. R.G.Jones, C.Clement-Williams, D.Jones, E.V.Latham, 
A.R.Lockyer, P.A.Rees, P.D.Richards, A.Wingrave and L.Jones



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cabinet

21 May 2020

Report of Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer

K.Jones

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All Wards

Annual Governance Statement 2019-2020

Purpose of Report

1. To present to Cabinet the Council’s Annual Governance Statement 
2019-2020 for approval.

Executive Summary

2. The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2019-2020 
(attached at Appendix 1) has been prepared by the Corporate 
Governance Group and complies with the Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government Framework: (CIPFA/SOLACE, 
2016).

3. The AGS demonstrates the system of internal controls which have 
been in place within the Council for the year ending 31st March 
2020 and provides examples of how the Council demonstrates 
compliance with good practice and meets the core and sub 
principles of effective governance. The AGS also provides details 
on the assurances taken during the year on the effectiveness of 
our governance arrangements.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Background

4. The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards,  that 
public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and is 
used economically, efficiently and effectively.

5. The AGS forms part of the Statement of Accounts and reports on 
the extent of the Council’s compliance with its principles and 
practices of good governance, including how the Council has 
monitored the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the 
year ending 31st March 2020. 

6. The AGS is prepared under the remit of the Corporate Governance 
Group, which is made up of Heads of Service who are directly 
responsible for governance aspects. 

7. The AGS also contains:

 An update on the progress made during 2019-2020 against 
the improvement areas that were identified during the 
development of the 2018-2019 AGS – more detail on 
progress can be found in Table 1 on page 55.

 Improvement areas proposed for 2020-2021 following the 
development of 2019-2020 AGS – more detail on the 
improvement areas can be found in Table 2 on page 57. 

Covid-19

8. The assessment of the Council’s governance arrangements was 
undertaken prior to the Covid-19 outbreak.  Since that outbreak 
there has been a significant impact on the council’s operations as 
we have responded at fast pace to the spread of the Coronavirus. 

We are also expecting a lengthy recovery process ahead of us and 
as part of the recovery planning we are focused on three issues:  

i. Ensuring we can support the national effort to continue to 
stem the spread of the disease; 

Page 4



ii. Resuming council operations in step with decisions taken by 
the Welsh and UK Governments; and

iii. Understanding the wider community impact of the disease.  

As part of this work we will review the Council’s governance 
arrangements to ensure that they remain effective in this 
unprecedented situation.

Consultation

9. There is no requirement in the Constitution for consultation on this 
item.

Financial Appraisal

10. The improvement work undertaken during 2019-2020 was 
delivered against a continuing challenging financial backdrop.

Integrated Impact Assessment

11. There are no equality impacts associated with this report.

Workforce Impact

12. The Council continues to contract as financial resources continue 
to reduce.  In recognition of the scale of change affecting the 
workforce, the Council’s Corporate Workforce Plan supports the 
Council to adapt and help deliver the Council’s objectives and 
priorities. 

Legal Impact

13. The Council has a general duty under the local Government 
(Wales) Measure 2009 to “make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the exercise of its functions”. In 

Page 5



discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its 
affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions. 

14. The Annual Governance Statement explains how the Council has 
met the requirements of Regulation 5(2) of the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2014 in relation to an annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s systems of internal control and the 
preparation and approval of an Annual Governance Statement.  

Risk Management

15. During 2019-2020, the Council has continued to promote an open, 
consistent and proactive risk management attitude in order to 
better monitor risks over the short, medium and long term.

Recommendations
16. It is recommended that :

i. Members note the progress made on the Corporate Governance 
improvement work undertaken during 2019-2020 

ii. Approve the Annual Governance Statement 2019-2020 attached 
at Appendix 1.

iii. Approve the proposed Corporate Governance improvement 
work to be undertaken during 2020-2021.

Reason for Proposed Decision
17. To ensure the Annual Governance Statement meets the 

requirements of Regulation 5(2) of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 in relation to an annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s systems of internal control and the 
preparation and approval of an Annual Governance Statement.  

Appendices
18. Appendix 1 – Annual Governance Statement 2019-2020

Page 6



List of Background Papers
19. None

Officer Contact
Karen Jones, Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Digital Officer Tel: 01639 
763284 or e-mail: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Page 7

mailto:k.jones3@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Neath Port Talbot Council
Annual Governance Statement

2019-2020

P
age 9



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 2

Contents

Introduction ..............................................................................................................................................................................................3
The Framework ........................................................................................................................................................................................4
Putting the Principles into Practice ...................................................................................................................................................5
Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule 
of law ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................5
Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement ................................................................18
Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits .....................29
Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes ......33
Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................38
Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management ...........................................................................................................................................................................................45
Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................50
Review of Effectiveness ......................................................................................................................................................................53
Table 1 improvement areas identified during 2018-19 and progress during 2019-20.................................................................55
Table 2: improvement areas identified during 2019-2020................................................................................................................57

P
age 10



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 3

Introduction
The Council has adopted the 2016 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (the Framework), 
developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE).  To comply with the Framework, the Council must publish an Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS), which explains the processes and procedures in place to enable the Council to carry out its functions effectively.  The 
governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Council is directed and 
controlled, and through which we engage with and lead the local community. The framework brings together an underlying 
set of legal requirements, good practice and management processes.

In preparing the AGS, the Council conducted a review on the effectiveness of its system of internal control in place for the 
year ending 31st March 2020 to ensure that: 

 its business is conducted in accordance with all relevant laws and regulations; 
 public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for; 
 there is sound and inclusive decision making;
 resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively; and 
 there is clear accountability for the use of those resources to achieve agreed priorities which benefit local people 

and communities.
“Corporate governance is about making sure that the Council is run properly. It is about ensuring the Council does 

the right things, at the right time and in the right way.”

The Council’s system of internal control are designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  The Council cannot eliminate 
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness.  

P
age 11



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 4

The Framework
The Framework comprises two core principles and five supporting 
principles as illustrated in the diagram.  
Principles A and B run through principles C to G but good 
governance is dynamic, and the Council as a whole is committed 
to improving governance on a continuing basis through a process 
of evaluation and review.  
The next section: Putting the Principles into Practice, 
illustrates examples of how the Council demonstrates compliance 
to meet these seven principles and the assurances taken during 
the year on the effectiveness of our governance arrangements.  

Any governance improvement areas identified from undertaking 
the review have been included in an action plan set out in Table 2 
on page 53.  The Corporate Governance Group, will oversee the 
action plan and progress will be reported to Corporate Directors 
Group, Cabinet and Audit Committee throughout the financial 
year.

Progress made on improvement work identified during 2018-2019 
are contained in Table 1 on page 55.

P
age 12



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 5

Putting the Principles into Practice

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

1.1.1 Employee Code of 
Conduct

Last reviewed in January 2020 and will be 
reviewed every two years to ensure it is still 
relevant and fit for purpose.  
The Internal Audit service review adherence 
to key aspects of the Code of Conduct 
annually and report to Senior Management.

None identified

1.1.2 Member Code of 
Conduct 

Monitored by the Standards Committee

On signing their Declaration of Acceptance 
of Office, Members are required to give an 
undertaking to abide by the Members’ Code 
of Conduct.
Members receive training on the Code of 
Conduct and refresher training throughout 
the year.

A1.1.2: Head of Legal 
Services reports annually 
to the Corporate 
Governance Group and 
Standards Committee to 
give an assurance that the 
Code is fit for purpose - 
add to agenda for 2020-
2021.

1.1 Ensuring members and officers 
behave with integrity and lead a culture 
where acting in the public interest is visibly 
and consistently demonstrated thereby 
protecting the reputation of the 
organisation

1.1.3 An induction 
programme for Members 
was published on the 
Council website in 2017.

The induction programme forms part of the 
Authority’s Strategy and Charter for Member 
Development and is structured for both new 
and returning members.  The aim is to 
provide a supportive and structured 
development framework to enable Members 
perform their duties. Members elected 
through by-elections receive a tailored 
induction.

None identified

P
age 13

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=6775&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=6775&Ver=4
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7017/codes_of_conduct.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7017/codes_of_conduct.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=177
https://www.npt.gov.uk/8130
https://www.npt.gov.uk/8130


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 6

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

1.1.4 Staff: the Induction 
Checklist, (which contains 
information about the 
expected standards of 
behaviour) must be signed 
by managers and their 
employees.

There is reference to the Employee Code of 
Conduct in both the Induction Checklist and 
the Statement of Particulars.  The corporate 
Induction Checklist is emailed to recruiting 
managers in advance of when a new starter 
is due to commence employment.

None identified

1.1.5 Performance 
Appraisal Process 2016 

Heads of Service to report on CPMS, 
information in relation to performance 
appraisals completed.  In addition to this all 
performance appraisals must be counter-
signed by the grandparent manager.  For 
example an Accountable Manager’s 
performance appraisal is signed by the Head 
of Service and counter-signed by the 
Corporate Director

None identified

1.2.1 Organisational Vision 
and Values are published 
in the Corporate Plan – 
Shaping NPT

These are now incorporated into our 
recruitment processes (written into job 
descriptions and person specifications of 
senior posts in the organisation).

None identified1.2 Ensuring members take the lead in 
establishing specific standard operating 
principles or values for the organisation 
and its staff and that they are 
communicated and understood.  These 
should build on the Seven Principles of 
Public Life (the Nolan Principles) 

1.2.2 The vision and 
priorities for staff are 
contained within the 
Workforce Plan 2018-2022

A review of the Workforce Plan was carried 
out in December 2019, to look at the action 
taken to date and ensure future actions 
remain fit for purpose moving forward.  

None identified

P
age 14

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=8230


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 7

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

See also 1.1.2 Member 
Code of Conduct - The 
Standards Framework for 
Members (Section 1, 
Ethical framework) 

See A1.1.2

1.3.1 Integrated Impact 
Assessment (IIA)
The tool assess the impact 
of proposed initiatives (e.g. 
policy, service, 
procedures, strategies, 
projects etc.) relating to 
key legislation (i.e. 
equality, sustainable 
development, the Welsh 
language etc.).  It is 
applied to decisions 
relating to the initiative and 
to consider whether the 
initiative will have a 
positive, negative or 
neutral impact on the 
community.

The revised IIA tool was circulated to staff at 
the end of April 2019 and training has been 
made available to all officers.

A1.3.1: A review and 
evaluation will be 
undertaken in spring 2020 
to ensure the revised IIA 
tool is embedded into 
practice (to be rolled over 
as improvement action).

1.3 Leading by example and using these 
standard operating principles or values as 
a framework for decision making and 
other actions

1.3.2 Declarations of 
interest 

These are made by Members at the 
beginning of Committee meetings and 
recorded in the meeting minutes.  

A1.3.2: Head of Legal 
Services reports annually 
to the Corporate 
Governance Group and 
Standards Committee to 

P
age 15

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7017/codes_of_conduct.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7017/codes_of_conduct.pdf


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 8

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

give an assurance that the 
declaration process is fit 
for purpose - add to 
agenda for 2020-2021.

1.3.3 The Standards 
Committee 

The Committee meet on a quarterly basis (or 
more frequently where referrals from the 
Ombudsman are considered).
Reports are regularly presented to the 
Standards Committee and any 
recommendations arising.
The Committee also has delegated authority 
to discharge a number of functions.

None identified

1.3.4 Member and Officer 
Relations Protocol

A protocol is in place as part of the Neath 
Port Talbot Constitution and Employee Code 
of Conduct and monitored by the Standards 
Committee

A1.3.4: Copy of the 
protocol to be drawn to the 
attention of Officers and 
Members via publication 
on the Council’s Intranet 
page.  This will be 
undertaken by the end of 
March 2020.

1.4 Demonstrating, communicating and 
embedding the standard operating 
principles or values through appropriate 
policies and processes which are 
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that 
they are operating effectively

1.4.1 The Anti-fraud, 
Corruption and Malpractice 
Strategy 

This Strategy is currently under review and 
once approved by the relevant committee 
the new three year Strategy will be 
published.

A1.4.1: This strategy will 
be completed and 
reported to Members 
during 2020-2021.

P
age 16

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=177
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=177
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=177
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=177


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 9

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

Compliance with the Code of Practice on 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
(CIPFA, 2014)

1.4.2 Member Interests are 
shown by individual 
Members on the Council 
website.

Declarations of interest for Members is a 
standing item on all committee meeting 
agendas and recorded in minutes of 
meetings.

See A1.3.2

1.4.3 Staff Interests An up-to-date register is held by each 
service Director. Subject to internal audit 
review annually

1.4.4 Members: The 
Constitution 

The Council’s Monitoring Officer is required 
by law to keep a Register of all notifications 
made by Members.  The Register is open to 
public inspection during normal office hours.  

A1.4.4: Head of Legal 
Services to update the 
constitution and bring a 
report to members in 
Autumn 2020 following 
royal assent of the Local 
Government and Elections 
(Wales) Bill.

1.4.5 Staff Gifts & 
Hospitality 

An up-to-date register is held by each 
service Director

A1.4.5: The Head of 
Finance reports annually 
to the Corporate 
Governance Group to give 
an assurance that the 
register of staff gifts / 
hospitality is up-to-date 
and accurate - add to 
agenda for 2020-2021. 

P
age 17

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1129


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 10

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

1.4.6 Whistleblowing 
Policy 

Policy approved by Personnel Committee: 
31/08/2015.  
Review date: 31/08/2017

A1.4.6: Policy to be 
reviewed in 2020 and 
published on the council 
website.

1.4.7 Corporate 
Comments, Compliments 
and Complaints Policy, 
March 2016.

The Corporate Complaints Policy will be 
revised in 2020 to reflect a number of 
changes and improvement issues identified 
throughout the year (see opposite).  

A1.4.7: Revise Corporate 
Complaints Policy in 2020 
(to include: 
implementation of the 
Complaints Standards 
Authority for Wales (CSA) 
powers; recommendations 
from an internal audit 
review report which was 
received in November 
2019; further staff 
guidance within the 
complaints process for 
disability related 
reasonable adjustments; 
further staff guidance in 
relation to covert recording 
and further staff guidance 
in relation to managing 
querulous/persistent 
complainants.

1.4.8 Social Services 
Compliments and 
Complaints

Statutory requirement to publish Annual 
Report; report presented to Cabinet (last 
report 31.01.2020).

None identified

P
age 18

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/4057/comments_compliments_complaints_policy_march2016.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/4057/comments_compliments_complaints_policy_march2016.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/4057/comments_compliments_complaints_policy_march2016.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1399
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1399
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1399


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 11

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

1.4.9 Complaints and 
responses 

Reported to Cabinet and relevant Cabinet 
Boards on a quarterly basis.

See A1.4.7

See also 1.4.4 Members: 
The Constitution, Part 5, 
Section 3 ‘Personal 
Interests’ addresses this.  

Member’s interests are published on the 
NPT Council website for each committee 
throughout the year.

See A1.4.4

See also 1.1.1 Officers: 
Employee Code of 
Conduct (Section 9, 2017).

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, 
Employee Code of Conduct and the Public 
Contract Regulations (2015) require officers 
and members not to have any involvement 
in a tender process where they have a 
potential conflict of interest. 
They should have no role whatsoever which 
should negate the need for any declarations 
of interest to be made.

2.1 Seeking to establish, monitor and 
maintain the organisation’s ethical 
standards and performance

2.1.1. The Corporate 
Procurement Team 

This is acknowledged by the team when 
undertaking tender work for other sections 
when developing and evaluating 
procurement process.  
The team also monitor and evaluate 
compliance looking at what approach 
sections adopt.  

A2.1.1: Corporate 
Procurement to monitor 
and evaluate compliance 
looking at what approach 
sections adopt.  Head of 
Legal Services reports 
annually to the Corporate 
Governance Group - add 
to agenda for 2020-2021.

P
age 19

https://www.npt.gov.uk/1129
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=6775&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=6775&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 12

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

The Ethical Employment Code of Practice 
issued to all sections sets out processes that 
should be valued.  

2.2 Underpinning personal behaviour with 
ethical values and ensuring they permeate 
all aspects of the organisation’s culture 
and operation 

2.2.1 Member training

See also 1.1.2 Member 
Code of Conduct) 
See also 1.3.3 Standards 
Committee – special 
dispensation to vote

Through the year, Members receive training 
on the Code of Conduct (& refresher 
training).   
Annual reports are presented to Standards 
Committee.
Members Declaration of Acceptance of 
Office – undertaken given to abide by the 
Members’ Code of Conduct
Leading in the Welsh Public Service 
Behaviours Framework.

A2.2.1: Future ethical 
awareness training 
commissioned to be 
informed by: The Seven 
Principles of Public Life 
(the Nolan Principles).

2.3.1 Recruitment and 
Selection Policy 2018

Training is provided to recruiting managers.  A2.2.2: In 2020 six 
courses are planned in 
relation to Recruitment 
and Selection and Safe 
Recruitment.

2.3 Developing and maintaining robust 
policies and procedures which place 
emphasis on agreed ethical values 

2.3.2 Pay Policy Statement Approved by Council 27 February 2019, next 
review date March 2020

None identified

P
age 20

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=7329


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 13

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

2.3.3 Contract Procedure 
Rules

Training is available to staff. A2.3.3: Head of Legal 
Services to provide 
training on implementation 
of Contract Procedure 
Rules.  Training to be 
scheduled for Spring 2020 
and bi annually thereafter.

2.4.1 Ethical Employment 
in Supply Chain Policy 
2019

New – Policy introduced in 2019. A2.4.1: Head of Legal 
Services reports annually 
to the Cabinet on the 
implementation and 
operation of the Policy - 
add to Cabinet forward 
work programme for 2020-
2021.

2.4 Ensuring that external providers of 
services on behalf of the organisation are 
required to act with integrity and in 
compliance with high ethical standards 
expected by the organisation 

2.4.2 We continue to 
participate in a number of 
partnerships.  Governance 
arrangements are in place 
for each for partnership 
which:
 Clarify the roles of 

members both 
individually and 
collectively in relation to 
the partnership and to 
the Council;

Between February and May 2020, scrutiny 
committees will be reviewing all partnership 
arrangements under their remit, to ensure 
they are robust and have good governance 
arrangements in place.

A2.4.2: To ensure that a 
copy of all partnership 
agreements are logged 
centrally with the Head of 
Legal Services.  To be 
undertaken by the end of 
September 2020.

P
age 21

https://www.npt.gov.uk/1434#ProcurementProceduresandRegulations
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1434#ProcurementProceduresandRegulations
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 14

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

 Clearly set out the legal 
status of the 
partnership; and

 Make clear the extent 
to which 
representatives or 
organisations both 
understand and make 
clear to all other 
partners the extent of 
their authority to bind 
their organisation to 
partner decisions.

3.1 Ensuring members and staff 
demonstrate a strong commitment to the 
rule of the law as well as adhering to 
relevant laws and regulations 

3.1.1 Cabinet and 
Committee Reports 
contain a section entitled 
“Legal Impacts” so that 
legal obligations are 
placed at the forefront of 
decision making.
See also 1.4.4 The 
Constitution

Safe and Legal Decision Making Training is 
available for relevant officers.

Democratic Services Officers and Legal 
Services monitor reports.

None identified

P
age 22

https://www.npt.gov.uk/1129


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 15

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

3.2.1 Financial 
management  
arrangements

We have a range of policies and procedures 
(such as financial regulations, financial 
procedures, contract standing orders, 
accounting instructions and officer 
delegations) that conform to the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement of the 
Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2010).

A3.2.1: To put in place an 
agreed procedure where 
Financial Regulations and 
Accounting instructions 
are reviewed to ensure 
they remain relevant and 
proportionate.  A review of 
Accounting Instructions is 
currently underway and 
will be completed by the 
Autumn of 2020. 

3.2.2 Democratic Services 
- support function.

The Head of Democratic Services presents 
an annual report to Democratic Services 
Committee and Council, outlining the 
resource requirements to enable the 
Council, Cabinet and Committee to receive 
high level support and discharge of its 
democratic functions.

None identified

3.2 Creating the conditions to ensure that 
statutory officers, other key post holders 
and members are able to fulfil their 
responsibilities in accordance with 
legislative and regulatory requirements

See also 1.4.4 The 
Council’s Constitution and 
the different 
responsibilities of 
Members and Officers / 
clear job descriptions for 
all staff, which highlight 
their roles and 
responsibilities.

The Monitoring Officer oversees the 
Council’s Constitution and ensure it is kept 
up to date.

See A1.4.4

P
age 23



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 16

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

3.3 Striving to optimise the use of the full 
powers available for the benefit of citizens, 
communities and other stakeholders

3.3.1 Cabinet and 
Committee Reports 
contain a section entitled 
“Legal Impacts” so that 
legal obligations are 
placed at the forefront of 
decision making.

Legal Enterprise Case Management 
Software providing audit trails of legal advice 
given and time spent providing legal advice 
on all matters.
Transaction documentation and hard copies 
of Legal Advice provided are stored by the 
Council.
Legal training provided to officers on regular 
basis to ensure they are up to date with 
recent legal developments and powers 
available.

None identified

3.4.1 Data Protection 
Breaches Panel review 
cases.

Reports to different professional bodies A3.4.1: Head of Legal 
Services reports annually 
to the Corporate 
Governance Group to give 
an assurance that the 
current system for dealing 
with data protection 
breaches is fit for purpose 
- add to agenda for 2020-
2021.

3.4 Dealing with breaches of legal and 
regulatory provisions effectively 

3.4.2 Internal Audit Special 
Investigations / Disciplinary 
Cases

See also 3.3.1 Cabinet and 
Committee Reports 

The Council requires that all officers who 
carry out disciplinary investigations have 
undertaken the ACAS Investigation Officers 
training.  Also, Heads of Service who are the 
decision makers in disciplinary investigations 

None identified

P
age 24



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 17

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents and 

processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

must have attended the ACAS Decision 
Maker training.

3.5 Ensuring corruption and misuse of 
power are dealt with effectively 

See 1.4.1 Anti-fraud, 
Corruption and Malpractice 
Policy

See 1.4.6 Whistle Blowing 
Policy

Cases are monitored by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales and the Council’s 
Standards Committee.  During the period 1st 
April 2019 to 31st March 2020, the 
Monitoring Officer was notified of a total of 3 
complaints made against County Borough 
Councillors alleging a breach of the Code of 
Conduct. All 3 were dismissed by the Public 
Service Ombudsman for Wales as not being 
appropriate for investigation.  
For the civic year: 1st April 2019 to 31st 
March 2020, the Standards Committee 
received three referrals from the Public 
Service Ombudsman for Wales stemming 
from the previous civic year (2018-2019) 
relating to the Code of Conduct of Town and 
Community Councils only.

None identified

See also A1.4.1 / A1.4.6

P
age 25



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 18

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

4.1 Ensuring an open culture through 
demonstrating, documenting and 
communicating the organisation’s 
commitment to openness 

4.1.1 The Council 
produces a number of 
annual reports throughout 
the year to give 
assurances about our 
governance 
arrangements.

The reports are available to the public and 
the Corporate Governance Group oversee 
any risks identified to governance 
arrangements, arising from these annual 
reports.
1. Corporate Plan Annual Report 
2. Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report
3. PSB Well-being Plan Annual Report 
4. Welsh Language Standards Annual 

Report
5. Welsh Language Promotion Strategy
6. Audit Service progress Report September 

2019 
7. Complaints, Compliments and Comments 

Annual Report
8. Ombudsman Annual Report, 
9. Social Services Director’s Annual Report, 
10.CIW Annual Performance Letter / 

Inspection Programme
11.Annual Equalities in Employment 

Information Report, including the Gender 
Pay Gap report, 

12.The Pay Policy Statement is published 
annually in line with the Localism Act 
2011 and to ensure transparency in the 
Council’s pay arrangements.

13.Property Asset Management Plan (2016-
2021) – progress report

None identified

P
age 26

https://www.npt.gov.uk/14478
https://www.npt.gov.uk/14478
https://www.npt.gov.uk/2331
http://www.nptpsb.org.uk/downloads/psb%20-%20annual%20report%20fv.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1507
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1507
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1507
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=8736&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=8736&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=8736&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8768
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8768
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=177&MId=8780&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=8785&Ver=4
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=8789&Ver=4
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=8789&Ver=4
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=8789&Ver=4
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MID=8019#AI500000112
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MID=8019#AI500000112
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MID=8019#AI500000112
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MID=8019#AI500000112
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=319&MId=8787&Ver=4
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=319&MId=8787&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 19

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

4.1.2 FOI Policy / FOI 
Publication Scheme

Published in March 2014 A4.1.3: Head of Legal 
Services to undertake a 
review of Publication 
Scheme in 2020-2021 with 
a report to Cabinet for 
approval.

4.1.3 The Council’s 
strategic purpose, vision 
and values are set out in 
the Corporate Plan – 
Shaping NPT.  

One of our values is: we will conduct the 
work of the in an open and accessible way, 
ensuring we are properly accountable for the 
decisions we make.

None identified

4.1.4 Council Meeting 
Cycle 

The Council agrees its meeting cycle at its 
Annual Meeting and this is published on the 
Council’s website.  Meetings are supported 
with forward work programmes detailing 
items for the next 3 meetings.

None identified

See also 4.5.1 Corporate 
Communications and 
Community Relations 
Strategy 2018-2020

This includes new ‘Brand’ 
guidelines to create 
consistency and increase 
visibility and 
understanding about what 
the Council does.

We have improved the accessibility of 
information to better engage all stakeholders 
in the Council’s work, with the intention that 
there will be a continuous flow of information 
about how the Council is delivering on its 
well-being objectives and to keep 
stakeholders up-to-date.  
Council Website (www.npt.gov.uk) 
performance is monitored using Google 
analytics to see how our website is being 
used.  We also carry out an annual website 

None identified

P
age 27

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/6789/foi_policy.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1195
https://www.npt.gov.uk/1195
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/5891
https://www.npt.gov.uk/5891
http://www.npt.gov.uk/


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 20

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

survey to measure our effectiveness and 
ensure the website is performing as 
expected.

4.2.1 Executive and non-
executive and regulatory 
report guidance and report 
template

The guidance was developed and circulated 
to reporting officers in May 2019.  As and 
when changes arise the guidance is updated 
and circulated to report authors/officers.
Report templates ensure the relevant 
information and advice is presented to 
substantiate recommendations.

None identified4.2 Making decisions that are open about 
actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, 
outputs and outcomes.  The presumption 
is for openness.  If that is not the case the 
justification for the reasoning for keeping 
a decision confidential should be provided

4.2.2 Safe and Legal 
Decision Making 

Training is available for relevant officers. None identified

4.3 Providing clear reasoning and 
evidence for decisions in both public 
records and explanations to stakeholders 
and being explicit about the criteria, 
rationale and considerations used.  In due 
course, ensuring that the impact and 
consequences of those decisions are 
clear

4.3.1 Modern.gov system 

See also 1.3.1 Integrated 
Impact Assessment (IIA)

All publically accessible reports are 
published on the Council website via 
Modern.gov system showing the decisions 
taken at each meeting.

None identified

4.4 Using formal and informal consultation 
and engagement to determine the most 
appropriate and effective interventions / 
courses of action

4.4.1 Neath Port Talbot 
Consultation and 
Engagement Strategy 
2018-2020

The Council uses Snap Survey software for 
Corporate Consultations for both internal and 
external stakeholders.   

None identified

P
age 28



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 21

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

The Planning Policy Service use Objective 
consultation software for the Local 
Development Plan.
These arrangements are regularly reviewed 
to ensure they are effective and value for 
money when reviewing budget for 
forthcoming financial year.

4.4.2 Community of 
Practice 

First launched in September 2019, to 
improve the way we consult and involve our 
communities and partner agencies in the 
work we do from the outset.  The aim being 
to get early feedback that helps shape 
proposals before the Council goes out to 
wider public consultation.

None identified

4.4.3 Citizens Panel Launched in January 2020 – (a 
demographically representative group of 
residents) enabling people to express their 
views and opinions about the Council’s work 
and feel that their voices are listened to.  
This will strengthen the Council’s approach 
to consultation and engagement and also 
help us to meet our obligations under the 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015.  

None identified

4.4.4 Shaping NPT An area on the Council’s website 
‘ShapingNPT’ has been designed to improve 
communications and engagement. The aim 
is to improve awareness of what the Council 

None identified

P
age 29

https://www.npt.gov.uk/15847


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 22

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

does and encourage engagement by 
simplifying the narrative around the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and Annual Reports. We are 
using citizens’ and wider stakeholders’ 
stories to bring the Council’s work to life 
celebrating successes and highlighting areas 
where more work needs to be done to 
achieve our objectives.

4.5.1 Corporate 
Communications and 
Community Relations 
Strategy 2018-2020
See also 4.4.1 
Consultation and 
Engagement Strategy 
2018-20

During 2019-2020, work continued to deliver 
on the requirements of the Strategy.  During 
2019-20 we launched a new Community of 
Practice for Engagement and Involvement 
and the NPT Citizens' Panel.
The Strategy is currently being updated for 
the period 2020-2022

None identified4.5 Effectively engaging to ensure that the 
purpose, objectives and intended 
outcomes for each stakeholder 
relationship are clear so that outcomes 
are achieved successfully and sustainably

4.5.2 Key Stakeholder List We have a list of key stakeholders that we 
engage with on major policies and plans.  
Some of these include: Youth Council; Black 
Minority Ethnic Community Association; and 
consultee database for the Local 
Development Plan.

None identified

P
age 30



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 23

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

4.5.3 Youth Mayor  First established in September 2019 and 
elected by the young people of the borough.  
The role will involve representing the voice of 
all children and young people across the 
borough at a number of pre-determined civic 
duties.

None identified

4.5.4 Partnership working 
with our trade unions and 
teaching associations 

This is a major feature of the Council’s 
culture in relation to workforce engagement. 
It involves elected Members, managers, 
employees and trade unions developing and 
implementing a way of working based on 
mutual respect and trust, shared objectives 
and joint ownership of problem solving.

None identified

4.6 Developing formal and informal 
partnerships to allow for resources to be 
used more efficiently and outcomes 
achieved more effectively

4.6.1 Third Sector 
Partnerships

The Council has a long and productive 
relationship with Third Sector organisations 
and awards grant funding to organisations so 
they can support our communities in a wide 
range of ways.  The Council recognises and 
values the contribution the organisations 
make to help us deliver on some of our 
services (e.g. supporting the wellbeing of local 
people and communities).   The Partnership 
Agreement (Compact) between the Council 
and the Voluntary and Community Sector in 
Neath Port Talbot formally recognises the 
contribution of voluntary work to local people 
and communities. It provides a framework for 
further developing the many years of 

None identified

P
age 31



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 24

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

partnership working in the county borough in 
pursuit of our shared interest to build strong 
communities where everyone has an equal 
chance to lead a fulfilled life. It sets out the 
responsibilities and expectations on both the 
Council and the Voluntary and Community 
Sector in working together.

4.6.2 Voluntary Sector 
Liaison Forum 

There is a partnership agreement in place 
between the Council and the local Voluntary 
and Community Sector in Neath Port Talbot.

None identified

4.6.3 County Borough 
Council / Community 
Councils Liaison Forum

The Council meets with the Town and 
Community Councils throughout the year to 
discuss a wide number of issues.

None identified

4.6.4 Informal partnerships There are a number of informal partnerships 
in place, e.g. Equality and Community 
Cohesion Group.  Arrangements are 
regularly reviewed to ensure they are 
effective, where they are not alternative 
models of working are proposed.  

None identified

4.6.5 Public Services 
Board (PSB) 

PSB members work together to deliver the 
objectives set out in the PSB Well-being Plan 
and monitor progress on delivery of work.

None identified

P
age 32



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 25

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

See 2.4.2 and 4.5.4 The Council plays an active role in 
collaborative arrangements to ensure the 
best return for our citizens and other 
stakeholders. 
These arrangements are reviewed regularly 
to ensure they meet required needs of the 
Council and where they do not reports are 
brought to members highlighting various 
risks and concerns for the decisions to be 
made on future actions. 
During early 2020, the Council’s scrutiny 
committees will be reviewing the 
collaborative arrangements that fall within 
their purview to ensure they are robust and 
have good governance arrangements in 
place.

None identified4.7 Ensuring that partnerships are based 
on:

 Trust 
 A shared commitment to change
 A culture that promotes and accepts 

challenge among partners; and 
 that the added value of partnership 

working is explicit

4.7.1 Staff Council
(Consists of: LGS Green 
Book Negotiating Forum, 
LSPG (Schools trade 
union partnership forum), 
Service Joint Consultative 
Groups, and the Corporate 
Health & Safety Trade 
Union forum).

All of these groups meet regularly and are an 
opportunity for two-way information sharing, 
consultation (formal and informal) and where 
necessary, negotiation.  As part of our 
approach to partnership working, trade 
unions have representation in other forums; 
so for example, trade unions sit as an 
integral part of the Heads of Service 
Workforce Planning Group.

None identified

P
age 33



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 26

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

4.8 Engaging stakeholders effectively, 
including individual citizens and service 
users - establishing a clear policy on the 
type of  issues that the organisation will 
meaningfully consult with or involve 
individual citizens, service users and other 
stakeholders to ensure that service (or 
other) provision is contributing towards 
the achievement of intended outcomes

See 1.3.1 Integrated 
Impact Assessment (IIA)

The IIA assesses the need for consultation 
with stakeholders to consider whether 
‘initiatives’ (e.g. policy, service, procedures, 
strategies, projects etc.) will have a positive, 
negative or neutral impact on the community.

See A1.3.1

4.9 Ensuring that communication methods 
are effective and that members and 
officers are clear about their roles with 
regard to community engagement 

See 4.5.1 Corporate 
Communications and 
Community Relations 
Strategy 2018-2020

Clear strategies are in place to ensure 
members and officers communicate 
effectively in relation to community 
engagement.

See 1.1.1 Employee Code of Conduct
See 1.1.2 Member Code of Conduct - 
monitored by the Standards Committee

None identified

4.10 Encouraging, collecting and 
evaluating the views and experiences of 
communities, citizens, service users and 
organisations of different backgrounds 
including reference to future needs

See section 4.4 and 4.5

4.11 Implementing effective feedback 
mechanisms in order to demonstrate how 
their views have been taken into account

See section 4.5

P
age 34

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MId=6775&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=177


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 27

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

4.12 Balancing feedback from more active 
stakeholder groups with other stakeholder 
groups to ensure inclusivity

4.12.1 Council has a 
number of duties through 
the following legislation to 
ensure inclusivity of 
feedback from all 
stakeholder groups:
 Equality Act 2010
 Welsh Language 

Standards (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, 

 Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 

 Environment (Wales) 
Act 2016) 

See 1.3.1 A1.3.1

4.13.1 Well-being of 
Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015.

Corporate Plan – Shaping NPT
Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board 
(PSB) Well-being Assessment 

A4.13.1: Where relevant 
incorporate proposals for 
improvements from 
external regulator’s audit 
work into the Council’s 
2020-2021 corporate 
planning arrangements.

4.13 Taking account of the interests of 
future generations of tax payers and 
service users

4.13.2 The Council’s three 
Well-being Objectives and 
statement are published in 
the Corporate Plan – 
Shaping NPT

As part of preparing the Annual Report, the 
Council is required to consider whether the 
current well-being objectives remain 
relevant/need amending.  In March 2019 the 
word ‘safe’ was added to the third well-being 
objective for the Corporate Plan 2019-2022 

None identified

P
age 35

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
http://wellbeingsite.dns-systems.net/index.php/en/home/
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 28

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement
/ action

and it was not considered necessary to make 
any other changes.

P
age 36



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 29

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested 
improvements / action

See 4.1.4 - The Council’s 
Corporate Plan.  The 
delivery of our vision and 
well-being objectives is 
organised at three levels:
 Level 1 – Improvement 

Priorities
 Level 2 – Corporate 

Change Programme
 Level 3 – Business 

Plans/Service Delivery

The Council’s strategic vision and priorities 
for the county borough are set out in the:  
Corporate Plan – Shaping NPT

The Plan is reviewed each year to ensure it 
reflects current state of affairs / local need.

None identified5.1 Having a clear vision which is an 
agreed formal statement of the 
organisation’s purpose and intended 
outcomes containing appropriate 
performance indicators, which provides 
the basis for the organisation’s overall 
strategy, planning and other decisions

5.1.1 Corporate 
Performance and Risk 
Management system 
(CPMS) 

The system enables the integration of the 
Council’s strategic planning, business 
planning, performance management and risk 
management arrangements.  This ensures 
that there is a ‘Golden Thread’ running from 
the three corporate well-being objectives, 
through to key corporate strategies and to 
service business plans. This enables the 
Council to clearly demonstrate how its 
services and functions contribute to the 
Council’s well-being objectives which in turn 
support the seven national well-being goals.

A5.1.1: We will incorporate 
the findings from the 
Wales Audit Office’s 
review of our performance, 
risk and business planning 
arrangements in 2020-
2021.

5.2 Specifying the intended impact on, or 
changes for, stakeholders including 
citizens and service users.  It could be 
immediately or over the course of a year 
or longer

5.2.1 Commissioning The Council delivers or commissions an 
enormous range of services and functions 
that affect the day to day life of everyone 
who lives in the county borough.

None identified

P
age 37

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 30

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested 
improvements / action

Service user questionnaires are undertaken 
as part of contract monitoring; contracts 
require processes to be in place to ensure 
providers actively engage with service users, 
informing service and feedback on proposed 
changes. Contract Monitoring Officers review 
practice, including interviewing service users.

5.3 Delivering defined outcomes on a 
sustainable basis within the resources 
that will be available

See section 4.1  We examine the progress made in achieving 
our well-being objectives set out in the 
Corporate Plan, including the key 
performance indicators. On an annual basis 
progress is summarised in our Annual 
Report which includes data on key areas of 
performance.

None identified

5.4.1 Corporate Risk 
Management Policy 

The Council continues to monitor its risks 
over the short, medium and long term in line 
with the Councils’ Corporate Risk 
Management Policy which promotes an 
open, consistent and proactive risk 
management attitude.  Monitoring reports are 
presented to both senior management and 
the Council’s Cabinet on a regular basis.  
Latest copy of the report can be found here.

See A5.1.15.4 Identifying and managing risks to the 
achievement of outcomes

5.4.2 Senior Information 
Risk Owner (SIRO) 

The Assistant Chief Executive and Chief 
Digital Officer took over the role in June 
2019.  The SIRO will report directly to the 
Corporate Directors Group on information 

None identified

P
age 38

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=9031&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 31

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested 
improvements / action

security matters.  The SIRO is accountable 
for information risk throughout the Authority. 
An Information Management Strategy has 
been prepared to support the SIRO in her 
role.

5.5 Managing service users’ expectations 
effectively with regard to determining 
priorities and making the best use of the 
resources available
5.6 Sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits - considering and 
balancing the combined economic, social 
and environmental impact of policies, 
plans and decisions when taking 
decisions about service provision

See also 1.3.1 Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)

See also 4.1.4 The Council’s strategic vision and priorities (set out in the Corporate Plan – Shaping NPT)

See also 4.3.3 Budget setting process

See also A1.3.1

5.7 Taking a longer-term view with regard 
to decision making, taking account of risk 
and acting transparently where there are 
potential conflicts between the 
organisation’s intended outcomes and 
short-term factors such as the political 
cycle or financial constraints

5.7.1 Welsh Government 
Procurement Policy 

See also 2.4.1 Ethical 
Employment in Supply 
Chain Policy 2019

Complying with the policy, by ensuring that 
contracts over the value of £1,000,000 
include community benefits clauses and 
contracts split into “Lots” or smaller 
arrangements – allowing smaller 
organisations to bid for elements of contracts 
if they are unable to bid for larger packages.
The Council has made a commitment to 
actively examine where it sources its goods 
and services from to ensure those 
arrangements are ethical.

A5.7.1: Head of Legal 
Services to provide 
ongoing training during 
2020-2021 to officers on 
requirements and for 
Corporate Procurement 
team to advise on any 
compliance points.

5.8 Determining the wider public interest 
associated with balancing conflicting 

See section 5.7 / 4.3 / 4.4

P
age 39

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/publications/procurement-policy-statement/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/publications/procurement-policy-statement/?lang=en
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 32

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested 
improvements / action

interests between achieving the various 
economic, social, and environmental 
benefits, through consultation where 
possible, in order to ensure appropriate 
trade-offs
5.9 Ensuring fair access to services 5.9 Strategic Equality Plan 

(SEP)
In 2020 we will be revising the Council’s 
equality objectives set out in the SEP.  They 
will be better aligned and integrated with the 
Council’s well-being objectives.   We have 
also taken on board findings from the 
Equality and Human Rights Commission’s ‘Is 
Wales Fairer?’ Report.  The Report focuses 
on six themes: Education, Health, Personal 
Safety, Living Standards, Employment and 
Participation, we have adopted these themes 
for our revised equality objectives.    

None identified

P
age 40

https://www.npt.gov.uk/2331


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 33

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

See 1.4.4 The Council’s 
Constitution and the 
different responsibilities of 
Members and Officers / 
clear job descriptions for 
all staff, which highlight 
their roles and 
responsibilities.

The Monitoring Officer oversees the 
Council’s Constitution and ensure it is kept 
up to date.

The Report Guidance for both Executive and 
Non-Executive reports requires report 
authors to describe all options that have 
been considered, not just any preferred 
option. Report authors are also required to 
set out how they propose the achievement of 
the proposed recommendations will be 
measured. Not just in terms of implementing 
the various activities required to take 
decisions forward, but also the 
measures/indicators you will use to evaluate 
the outcomes achieved. Report authors are 
also required to consider the risk as to 
whether the proposed recommendations 
have any impact on other services within the 
Council.

See A1.4.46.1 Ensuring decision makers receive 
objective and rigorous analysis of a 
variety of options indicating how intended 
outcomes would be achieved and 
including the risks associated with those 
options.  Therefore ensuring best value is 
achieved however services are provided  

See section 5.7.

6.2 Considering feedback from citizens 
and service users when making decisions See sections 4.5 / 4.10 / 4.11 / 4.12

P
age 41



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 34

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

about service improvements or where 
services are no longer required in order to 
prioritise competing demands within 
limited resources available including 
people, skills, land and assets and 
bearing in mind future impacts
6.3 Planning Interventions - establishing 
and implementing robust planning and 
control cycles that cover strategic and 
operational plans, priorities and targets 

See 4.1.4 Corporate Plan 
– Shaping NPT.  
The delivery of our vision 
and well-being objectives 
is organised at three 
levels:

 Level 1 – 
Improvement 
Priorities

 Level 2 – Corporate 
Change Programme

 Level 3 – Business 
Plans/Service 
Delivery

N/A
See 4.3.1 - Council Cycle of Meetings

See A5.1.1

6.4 Engaging with internal and external 
stakeholders in determining how services 
and other courses of action should be 
planned and delivered 

See 4.6.4 Public Services Board (PSB)

See also section 6.2

6.5 Considering and monitoring risks 
facing each partner when working 
collaboratively including shared risks

See 2.4.2

See also 5.4.1 Corporate Risk Management Policy

P
age 42

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 35

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

6.6 Ensuring arrangements are flexible 
and agile so that the mechanisms for 
delivering outputs can be adapted to 
changing circumstances

See 4.1.4 Corporate Plan – Shaping NPT.  
The delivery of our vision and well-being objectives is organised at three levels:

 Level 1 – Improvement Priorities
 Level 2 – Corporate Change Programme
 Level 3 – Business Plans/Service Delivery

6.7 Establishing appropriate local 
performance indicators (as well as 
relevant statutory or other national 
performance indicators) as part of the 
planning process in order to identify how 
the performance of services and projects 
is to be measured

See 4.1.4 Corporate Plan 
– Shaping NPT.  
The delivery of our vision 
and well-being objectives 
is organised at three 
levels:

 Level 1 – 
Improvement 
Priorities

 Level 2 – Corporate 
Change Programme

 Level 3 – Business 
Plans/Service 
Delivery

There is a clear structure in place for 
delivering the objectives, priorities and 
actions set out in this Plan, which includes a 
basket of key performance indicators.  

Service Business Plans also contain a 
number of local performance indicators.
   
On a quarterly basis the Cabinet and 
relevant Cabinet Boards, receive a report on 
progress being made in relation to the well-
being objectives and improvement priorities. 

None identified

6.8 Ensuring capacity exists to generate 
the information required to review service 
quality regularly

See also 5.1.1 Corporate 
Performance and Risk 
Management System 
(CPMS)

The system generates a number of 
performance reports to support the above 
quarterly reporting cycle.

See A5.1.1

P
age 43

https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/9325/corporate-plan-2018-22-eng.pdf


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 36

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

6.9 Preparing budgets in accordance with 
organisational objectives, strategies and 
the medium-term financial plan

6.9.1 Budget setting 
process

For 2019-2020 the savings identified came 
from professional and Cabinet Member input 
and were subject to an extensive programme 
of consultation with service users, staff and 
trade unions, and scrutinised by the relevant 
committee.  The equality impact of budget 
proposals was also explicitly considered 
when developing and agreeing the proposals 
within the revised Forward Financial Plan.  
2019-2020 Budget.

None identified

6.10 Informing medium and long-term 
planning by drawing up realistic estimates 
of revenue and capital expenditure aimed 
at developing a sustainable funding 
strategy 

See above 6.9.1 Budget setting process

6.11 Optimising achievement of intended 
outcomes - ensuring the medium term 
financial strategy integrates and balances 
service priorities, affordability and other 
resource constraints

See above 6.9.1 Budget setting process

6.12 Ensuring the budgeting process is 
all-inclusive, taking into account the full 
cost of operations over the medium and 
longer term

See above 6.9.1 Budget setting process

P
age 44

https://www.npt.gov.uk/1613
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8329&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 37

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/ action

6.13 Ensuring the medium-term financial 
strategy sets the context for ongoing 
decisions on significant delivery issues or 
responses to changes in the external 
environment that may arise during the 
budgetary period in order for outcomes to 
be achieved while optimising resource 
usage

See above 6.9.1 Budget setting process

6.14 Ensuring the achievement of ‘social 
value’ through service planning and 
commissioning.  The Public Services 
(Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is 
“the additional benefit to the 
community….over and above the direct 
purchasing of goods, services and 
outcomes”

See 2.4.1 Ethical Employment in Supply Chain Policy 2019

See A2.4.1

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

P
age 45

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8328&Ver=4


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 38

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

7.1 Developing the entity’s capacity - 
reviewing operations, performance and 
use of assets on a regular basis to ensure 
their continuing effectiveness 

See 1.2.2 The vision and 
priorities for staff are 
contained within the 
Workforce Plan 2018-2022

The Workforce Plan seeks to identify the key 
challenges and priorities for our employees 
over the 5 year period, as set out in the 
Corporate Plan objectives and priorities, the 
Medium Term Financial Plan, the Asset 
Management Plan and the Corporate Risk 
Register. 
The action plan seeks to address these 
challenges, and to ensure that the Council 
has the right number of people, with the right 
skills and attitudes, in the right place, at the 
right time, and in order to deliver its services 
and functions.

None identified

7.2 Improving resource use through 
appropriate application of techniques such 
as benchmarking and other options in 
order to determine how the authority’s 
resources are allocated so that outcomes 
are achieved effectively and efficiently

7.2.1 There are a number 
of examples of research 
and benchmarking 
exercises undertaken 
across the Council:

 We work 
collaboratively with 
three other welsh 
Councils in relation to 
our corporate 
performance system, 
to share best practice

 We use National 
Performance Indicators 

See 6.1 above. None identified

P
age 46

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=8230


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 39

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

for benchmarking via 
All Wales data.

 We benchmark via The 
Association for Public 
Service Excellence 
(APSE) for some 
services

 A Member Task & 
Finish Group has been 
viewing data on other 
authority’s costs of 
webcasting to inform 
recommendations to 
Council.

 Electoral Services 
officers participate in 
the Association of 
Electoral 
Administrators network 
to benchmark electoral 
administration.

 Participation by 
Officers and Members 
in networks facilitated 
by the WLGA to 
benchmark and 
research out best 

P
age 47



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 40

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

practice across 
Democratic Services.

7.3 Recognising the benefits of 
partnerships and collaborative working 
where added value can be achieved 

See 2.4.2 / section 4.6 and 4.7

7.4 Developing and maintaining an 
effective workforce plan to enhance the 
strategic allocation of resources

7.4.1 Social Care 
Workforce Development 
Partnership (SCWDP) 

See also section 7.1 
Workforce Plan 2018-2022

The broad aim of the SCWDP is to improve 
the quality and management of social 
services provision through a planned 
approach to training and to increase the 
proportion of staff across the whole social 
care sector with the qualifications, skills and 
knowledge they need for the work they do 
and to achieve this through Social Care 
Development Partnerships led by local 
authorities.

None identified

7.5 Developing the capability of the 
entity’s leadership and other individuals - 
developing protocols to ensure that 
elected and appointed leaders negotiate 
with each other regarding their respective 
roles early on in the relationship and that 
a shared understanding of roles and 
objectives is maintained

See 1.4.4 The Council’s Constitution (different responsibilities of Members and Officers / clear job 
descriptions for all staff).

P
age 48



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 41

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

7.6 Publishing a statement that specifies 
the types of decisions that are delegated 
and those reserved for the collective 
decision making of the governing body

7.6.1 List of officer 

delegation

The Constitution requires the Head of Legal 
Services to keep a list of all officer 
delegations made in accordance with the 
Constitution.

A7.6.1: Head of Legal 
Services to undertake a 
review in 2020-2021 of all 
proposals and keep a 
central electronic list of 
delegations.

7.7.1 Cross party panel The panel which is made up elected 
Members (and chaired by the Leader) 
undertakes the Chief Executive’s appraisal 
and agrees the objectives for year ahead 
and personal learning.

None identified7.7 Ensuring the leader and the chief 
executive have clearly defined and 
distinctive leadership roles within a 
structure, whereby the chief executive 
leads the authority in implementing 
strategy and managing the delivery of 
services and other outputs set by 
members and each provides a check and 
a balance for each other’s authority 

See 1.4.4 The Council’s 
Constitution and the 
different responsibilities of 
Members and Officers / 
clear job descriptions for 
all staff, which highlight 
their roles and 
responsibilities.

The Monitoring Officer oversees the 
Council’s Constitution and ensure it is kept 
up to date.

See A1.4.4

P
age 49



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 42

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

7.8.1 Member support and 
development. 

Each year a schedule of Member Seminars 
is delivered over the Civic year.  Some topics 
are standard items such as: Committee 
Procedures, Code of Conduct, Council 
Budget and Corporate Safeguarding.  
However, as the year evolves new topics are 
added, the following are some examples for 
2019-20: 
 Police Update
 Remodelling of Adult Social Care Service
 Local Government & Elections (Wales) 

Bill

None identified

7.8.2 Reviewing individual 
member performance 

This is done on a regular basis taking 
account of their attendance and considering 
any training or development needs.  
We also undertake an annual member 
survey to gather views for improvements to 
individuals and the team that supports 
members.

None identified

7.8 Developing the capabilities of 
members and senior management to 
achieve effective shared leadership and to 
enable the organisation to respond 
successfully to changing legal policy 
demands as well as economic, political 
and environmental changes and risks by:
 Ensuring members and staff have 

access to appropriate induction 
tailored to their role and that ongoing 
training and development matching 
individual and organisational 
requirements is available and 
encouraged

 Ensuring members and officers have 
the appropriate skills, knowledge, 
resources and support to fulfil their 
roles and responsibilities and ensuring 
that they are able to update their 
knowledge on a continuing basis

 Ensuring personal, organisation and 
system-wide development through 
shared learning, including lessons 
learnt from both internal and external 
governance weaknesses 

7.8.3 Officer support and 
development

The training available for officers is reviewed 
and updated on an ongoing basis to ensure 
they can fulfil their roles and responsibilities 
(e.g. Equalities Training, Digital Leadership 
Programme, Violence Against Women, 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence, 
Raising Awareness of Prevent (WRAP))

None identified

P
age 50



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 43

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

7.8.4 Reviewing individual 
officer performance

See below None identified

See also 1.1.3 An induction programme for Members / 1.1.4 Staff: the Induction Checklist, (which 

contains information about the expected standards of) / 1.1.5 Performance Appraisal Process 2016 / 

1.2.2 The vision and priorities for staff are contained within the Workforce Plan 2018-2022 / 2.2.1 

Member training

7.9 Ensuring that there are structures in 
place to encourage public participation 

See section 4.5 

7.10 Taking steps to consider the 
leadership’s own effectiveness and 
ensuring leaders are open to constructive 
feedback from peer review and 
inspections

7.10.2 External regulator 
inspections
See 1.1.5 Performance 
Appraisal Process 2016 

CIW have a programme of inspections based 
on their annual performance evaluation 
(letter), e.g. Older Adults (June 2019).

There is a proposal in the 
Local Government & 
Elections (Wales) Bill for 
peer reviews.  We await 
the final outcome of the 
Bill requirements.  

7.11 Holding staff to account through 
regular performance reviews which take 
account of training or development needs

See 1.1.5 Performance 
Appraisal Process 2016 

The majority of employees within the Council 
have regular 1:1s or supervision sessions 
with their manager to address their 
performance and to discuss training and 
development needs.

None identified

7.12 Ensuring arrangements are in place 
to maintain the health and wellbeing of the 

See 1.2.2 Workforce Plan 
2018-2022

The Council has signed the Time to Change 
Wales Employer Pledge.  We have in place 

None identified

P
age 51

https://www.npt.gov.uk/8130
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=8230
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=5809#AI12627
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=8230
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=161&MID=8230


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 44

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement 
/action

workforce and support individuals in 
maintaining their own physical and mental 
wellbeing

an action plan which contains initiatives to 
support employees across the Council with 
mental ill health.  Progress on the action plan 
is reported annually to Personnel Committee. 
 

P
age 52



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 45

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

8.1 Managing risk - recognising that risk 
management is an integral part of all 
activities and must be considered in all 
aspects of decision making 
8.2 Implementing robust and integrated 
risk management arrangements and 
ensuring that they are working effectively 

8.3 Ensuring that responsibilities for 
managing individual risks are clearly 
allocated

See 2.4.2 / 4.1.1 / 4.5.4 / 5.4.1 / 5.4.2 and section 6.5

8.4 Managing Performance - monitoring 
service delivery effectively including 
planning, specification, execution and 
independent post-implementation review

8.4.1 Corporate 
Performance Management 
Framework

See also 5.1.1 Corporate 
Performance and Risk 
Management system 
(CPMS)

We have a range of performance 
indicators that enable the Council to 
measure performance of services. To 
support the delivery of the framework, 
there is a corporate performance 
management team as well as directorate 
performance management teams.

See A5.1.1:

P
age 53



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 46

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

8.5 Making decisions based on relevant, 
clear, objective analysis and advice 
pointing out the implications and risks 
inherent in the organisation’s financial, 
social and environmental position and 
outlook

See also 1.4.4 The Council’s Constitution

The Constitution sets out how the Council operates and the process for policy and decision-making.  
Within this framework all the decisions are taken by Council, Cabinet or Cabinet Boards.  The 
decisions are presented in a comprehensive written format in a standard template.  The Cabinet 
Scrutiny Committee considers any decisions directly before the Cabinet meets.  This is referred to as 
contemporaneous scrutiny.  A record of decision-making and supporting materials are published 
(publically accessible reports only) on the Council’s website via Modern.gov. 

8.6 Ensuring an effective scrutiny or 
oversight function is in place which 
encourages constructive challenge and 
debate on policies and objectives before, 
during and after decisions are made, 
thereby enhancing the organisation’s 
performance and that of any organisation 
for which it is responsible

8.6.1 Scrutiny Committees The role and responsibility for scrutiny has 
been established and is clear.  Annual 
forward work programme sessions are 
arranged to identify items for the 
committees to focus on in the new civic 
year.  
Throughout the year scrutiny Members 
also undertake specific training to 
enhance their skills (e.g. Chair and Vice 
Chair training).  In 2019, scrutiny Officers 
also had training to help them better 
support the needs of the scrutiny 
committees and members.  

None identified

8.7 Providing members and senior 
management with regular reports on 
service delivery plans and on progress 
towards outcome achievement

See 4.3.1 Council Meeting 
Cycle

The cycle of meetings sets out a calendar of dates for submitting, 
publishing and distributing timely performance reports.

P
age 54

https://www.npt.gov.uk/5891
https://www.npt.gov.uk/5891


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 47

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

8.8 Ensuring there is consistency between 
specification stages (such as budgets) 
and post-implementation reporting (e.g. 
financial statements)

8.8.1 Financial standards, 
guidance and regulations

The Director is responsible for ensuring 
there are proper arrangements in place for 
the administration of the financial affairs of 
the Council.  Corporate Directors are 
responsible for the financial management 
of their respective services and are 
supported by regular financial 
management information, which includes 
monthly financial monitoring reports.

None identified

8.9 Robust internal control - aligning the 
risk management strategy and policies on 
internal control with achieving objectives

See also 5.4.1 Corporate Risk Management Policy

8.10 Evaluating and monitoring risk 
management and internal control on a 
regular basis

See 5.4.1 Corporate Risk Management Policy

8.11 Ensuring effective counter fraud and 
anti-corruption arrangements are in place

See 1.4.1 The Anti-fraud, Corruption and Malpractice Strategy

8.12 Ensuring additional assurance on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
framework of governance, risk 
management and control is provided by 
the internal auditor

8.12.1 Annual 
Governance Statement 

See also 9.9.1 Internal 
audit service

The Annual Governance Statement 
reports on the extent of the Council’s 
compliance with its principles and 
practices of good governance, including 
how the Council has monitored the 
effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in the year.  The Annual 
Governance Statement is reviewed every 
year and updated to reflect the 
improvement work undertaken during the 
year.

None identified

P
age 55



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 48

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

8.13 Ensuring an audit committee or 
equivalent group or function which is 
independent of the executive and 
accountable to the governing body: 
provides a further source of effective 
assurance regarding arrangements for 
managing risk and maintaining an 
effective control environment and that its 
recommendations are listened to and 
acted upon

Audit Committee (Terms 
of reference, Membership 
and 
Training) 

Audit committee complies with best 
practice (Audit Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 
(CIPFA, 2013)

None identified

8.14 Managing Data - ensuring effective 
arrangements are in place for the safe 
collection, storage, use and sharing of 
data, including processes to safeguard 
personal data

8.14.1: Data management 
framework and procedures 
/ data protection officer / 
policies and procedures

The Head of Legal Services is the 
Council’s Data Protection Officer (DPO) 
and has responsibility for ensuring 
compliance with the Data Protection Act 
2018.  The DPO will report directly to the 
Corporate Directors Group on information 
security matters.  

A8.14.1: A review of Data 
Processing, Data Protection 
and Data Sharing work will 
be undertaken by the 
Information Governance 
team in 2020 and central 
records kept of data sharing.

8.15 Ensuring effective arrangements are 
in place and operating effectively when 
sharing data with other bodies

See 8.14.1

8.16 Reviewing and auditing regularly the 
quality and accuracy of data used in 
decision making and performance 
monitoring 

See 9.9.1 Internal audit service

P
age 56



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 49

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

8.17 Strong public financial management  
- ensuring financial management supports 
both long-term achievement of outcomes 
and short-term financial and operational 
performance

See 3.2.1

8.18 Ensuring well-developed financial 
management is integrated at all levels of 
planning and control, including 
management of financial risks and 
controls

See 3.2.1

P
age 57



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 50

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

9.1 Implementing good practice in 
transparency - writing and 
communicating reports for the public and 
other stakeholders in an understandable 
style appropriate to the intended 
audience and ensuring that they are 
easy to access and interrogate

See 4.3.2 Executive and non-executive and regulatory report guidance

9.2 Striking a balance between providing 
the right amount of information to satisfy 
transparency demands and enhance 
public scrutiny while not being too 
onerous to provide and for users to 
understand
9.3 Implementing good practices in 
reporting - reporting at least annually on 
performance, value for money and the 
stewardship of its resources

See 4.1.1 The Council produces a number of annual reports throughout the year to give assurances to 
our governance arrangements.  

9.4 Ensuring members and senior 
management own the results

See 1.4.4 The Constitution 

9.5 Ensuring robust arrangements for 
assessing the extent to which the 
principles contained in the framework 
have been applied and publishing the 
results on this assessment including an 
action plan for improvement and 
evidence to demonstrate good 

9.5 Corporate 
Governance Group 

The Corporate Governance Group ensure 
that the governance arrangements of the 
Council are robust and fit for purpose.  The 
Group oversee any risks identified to 
governance arrangements and meet on a 
regular basis and have terms of reference 
to fulfil their role.

A9.5.1: To deliver governance 
awareness training across the 
Council.  

P
age 58

https://www.npt.gov.uk/1129


Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 51

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

governance (annual governance 
statement) 
9.6 Ensuring that the Framework is 
applied to jointly managed or shared 
service organisations as appropriate 

See 8.12.1 Annual Governance Statement

9.7 Ensuing the performance information 
that accompanies the financial statement 
is prepared on a consistent and timely 
basis and the statements allow for 
comparison with other similar 
organisations

See 8.12.1 Annual Governance Statement

9.8 Assurance and effective 
accountability - ensuring that 
recommendations for corrective action 
made by external audit are acted upon

9.8 External audit / regulatory reports

9.9 Ensuring an effective internal audit 
service with direct access to members is 
in place which provides assurance with 
regard to governance arrangements and 
recommendations are acted upon

9.9.1 Internal audit 
service

Our internal audit service is resourced and 
maintained so that it delivers on its audit 
work programme planned for the current 
financial year.

Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the 
Role of the Head of internal Audit (2010)

Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards

None identified

9.10 Welcoming peer challenge, reviews 
and inspections from regulatory bodies 
and implementing recommendations

See 9.8

P
age 59



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 52

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 

practice

Evidence of key 
systems, documents 

and processes

Assurance of  arrangements in place Suggested improvement / 
action

9.11 Gaining assurance on risks 
associated with delivering services 
through third parties and that this is 
evidenced in the annual governance 
statement

See 8.12.1 Annual Governance Statement

9.12 Ensuring that when working in 
partnership, arrangements for 
accountability are clear and that the 
need for wider public accountability has 
been recognised and met

See 2.4.2 Governance arrangements are in place for each partnership we are involved in.

P
age 60



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 53

Review of Effectiveness
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework 
including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Chief Officers and the Internal 
Audit Service who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment and also by 
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. A Corporate Governance Group, 
reporting to the Corporate Directors Group ensures that improvement work is scheduled, resourced and monitored.  The Council 
uses a number of ways to review and assess the effectiveness of its governance arrangements, the table below highlights the 
different mechanisms during 2019-2020:

Constitution Review 
& Monitoring 
(2019-2020)

Internal Audit Service 
(2019-2020)

Audit Committee 
(2019-2020)

Standards Committee 
(2019-2020)

External Auditors 
(2019-2020)

We started a review of the 
Constitution to look at ways to 
modernise arrangements.  
However, the review has been 
placed on hold until the final 
requirements of the new Local 
Government and Elections 
(Wales) Bill are known 
(summer 2020) and a report 
will be brought to Council upon 
publication of the final 
legislation.  
Reports were taken to the 
Council’s Cabinet and Cabinet 
Boards in 2019-2020 seeking 
authority to amend the 
Constitution to include 
additional delegated powers 
for officers in respect of 

The service undertook a 
number audit reviews 
throughout the year, in 
order to provide an 
opinion on the internal 
control, risk management 
and governance 
arrangements of the 
Council.  
The internal auditors’ 
opinion was that the 
Council’s internal control 
environment and systems 
of internal control in the 
areas audited were 
satisfactory; and that 
reasonable assurance can 
be given that there have 
been no major 
weaknesses noted in 

In 2019-20 the Audit 
Committee:
 Approved the Council’s 

Statement of Accounts 
including the Annual 
Governance 
Statement.

 Approved the Council’s 
Internal Audit Plan for 
the year.  

 On a quarterly basis 
monitored Internal 
Audit performance 
against the plan.

 Monitored External 
Audit Performance and 
received update 
reports from Wales 
Audit Office.

During the period 1st April 
2019 to 31st March 2020, 
the Monitoring Officer was 
notified of a total of 3 
complaints made against 
Members of Neath Port 
Talbot County Borough 
Council alleging a breach 
of the Code of Conduct.  
Each of these complaints 
were dismissed by the 
Public Service 
Ombudsman for Wales as 
not being appropriate for 
investigation.

An annual report was 
presented to the 
Standards Committee on 
the 5th March 2020, 

Based on the work carried out 
by the Wales Audit Office and 
other relevant regulators 
(such as Estyn or Care 
Inspectorate Wales), the 
Auditor General believes The 
Council is meeting its 
statutory requirements in 
relation to continuous 
improvement.
Also in the latest Annual Audit 
Letter for Neath Port Talbot 
County Borough Council 
2017-18, the Auditor General 
was satisfied that the Council 
has appropriate 
arrangements in place to 
secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

P
age 61



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 54

Constitution Review 
& Monitoring 
(2019-2020)

Internal Audit Service 
(2019-2020)

Audit Committee 
(2019-2020)

Standards Committee 
(2019-2020)

External Auditors 
(2019-2020)

decision making of new items 
of legislation.
Formal reports by s151 or 
Monitoring Officer – no reports 
were issued by the s151 or 
Monitoring Officer in 2019-
2020.

relation to the internal 
control systems operating 
within the Authority.

 The Committee 
approved a revised 
Internal Audit Charter.

 The Committee 
received Treasury 
Management Progress 
Reports in order to 
fulfill their obligations in 
relation to the Scrutiny 
of Treasury 
Management activity.

highlighting the work 
undertaken and will be 
presented to Full Council 
in Spring 2020.

P
age 62



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 55

Governance Improvement Areas
The Council is committed to improving the governance arrangements in place and addressing issues identified.  

Table 1 improvement areas identified during 2018-19 and progress during 2019-20.    
Improvement Area (2018-2019) Progress (during 2019-2020)

1. Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) – review and evaluate the 
revised Integrated Impact Assessment Tool The revised Integrated Impact Assessment tool was circulated to staff at 

the end of April 2019.  A review and evaluation will be undertaken during 
2020-2021 to ensure the revised IIA tool is embedded into practice.  This 
work will be carried forward to 2020-2021.

2. General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) – monitoring of 
arrangements A programme of work is ongoing with the Information Governance team to 

consider the future work streams of the section. 
Work is presently ongoing to conclude the initial school development 
programme in respect of GDPR and it is estimated that this initial work will 
be undertaken by the end of 2019, with ongoing review in 2020. 
A work stream is presently under consideration with the team to determine 
how best the Council can continue to demonstrate compliance with GDPR 
and Data Protection principles and a work programme will commence 
where officers will engage with internal sections and Accountable Managers 
to assist in demonstrating compliance with GDPR. 
Discussions are to be had with Internal Audit as to how GDPR issues can 
be implemented in audit processes as well. In the interim the Records 
Officers are obtaining accredited qualifications in data protection 
compliance and data protection principles with external bodies to assist the 
Council in fulfilling its legal obligations.
A report will be brought to CDG in early 2020-2021. 

3. Information Management – update the Information Strategy and 
bring forward for approval Responsibility for updating the Strategy sits with the SIRO.  A report has 

been drafted and finalised by the end of 2019-20. 

P
age 63



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 56

Improvement Area (2018-2019) Progress (during 2019-2020)

4. Corporate Performance Management System – review system 
implementation:

4.1 review system implementation / benefits    maximised

4.2 support performance scrutiny review

A client review took place with CAMMS (software providers) on 18th 
October 2019 to review implementation and post implementation of the 
system. 
Since the system has been in place a number of benefits have been 
identified (e.g. business plans in one place on a timely basis, clear links to 
the corporate plan wellbeing objectives (golden thread)).  A  Snap’ survey 
has been undertaken to seek the views of the system users in order to 
determine if the system is meeting the objectives as set out in the project 
scope.  This internal work will align with the review being undertaken by the 
Wales Audit Office which has now been delayed due to COVID-19.  
Discussions on contract renewal for CPMS are underway.
A programme of briefings for elected members is being developed to 
establish how the system can support Members in discharging their roles in 
relation to performance management.  This work has been delayed due to 
the UK Parliamentary Election in December and COVID-19 and will resume 
in 2020-2021.

5. Review of the Council’s collaborative / regional working 
arrangements Following on from the meeting of the Chairs and Vice Chairs forum in 

September 2019, where the Group were presented with the Welsh Local 
Government Association’s Compendium of Shared Services.  Each 
Scrutiny Committee will now be reviewing the collaboration/partnership they 
are responsible for to ensure they are robust and have good governance 
arrangements in place.  The reviews were due to start in February and run 
until May but have been delayed due to COVID-19. This work will now 
resume during 2020-2021 and will be built into their individual Forward 
Work Programme following discussions with Chairs on how they wish to 
develop this work within their individual Committees.  

P
age 64



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 57

Table 2: improvement areas identified during 2019-2020.  

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Ref 
(action)

Improvement Action to be undertaken during 2020-2021 Responsible Officer

A1 Reassess governance arrangements as part of recovery planning and the associated 
governance improvement priorities.

Corporate Governance Group

A1.1.2 Report annually to the Corporate Governance Group and Standards Committee to give an 
assurance that the Member Code of Conduct is fit for purpose - add to agenda for 2020-2021.

Head of Legal Services

A1.3.1 Undertake a review and evaluation of the revised IIA tool in spring 2020, to see how well it is 
embedded into practice.

Strategic Manager Policy & Democratic 
Services

A1.3.2 Report annually to the Corporate Governance Group and Standards Committee to give an 
assurance that the declaration process is fit for purpose - add to agenda for 2020-2021.

Head of Legal Services

A1.3.4 Copy of the Member and Officer Relations Protocol to be drawn to the attention of Officers and 
Members via publication on the Council’s Intranet page – to be undertaken by the end of March 
2020.

Head of Legal Services

A1.4.1 Review of Anti-fraud, Corruption and Malpractice Strategy to be completed and reported to 
Members during 2020-2021.

Head of Finance

A1.4.4 Update the constitution and bring a report to members in Autumn 2020 following royal assent of 
the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill.

Head of Legal Services

A1.4.5 Report annually to the Corporate Governance Group to give an assurance that the register of 
staff gifts/hospitality is up-to-date and accurate - add to agenda for 2020-2021.

Head of Finance

A1.4.6 Whistle Blowing Policy to be reviewed in 2020 and published on the council website. Head of Human Resources
A1.4.7 Revise Corporate Complaints Policy in 2020 (to include: implementation of the Complaints 

Standards Authority for Wales (CSA) powers; recommendations from an internal audit review 
report which was received in November 2019; further staff guidance within the complaints 
process for disability related reasonable adjustments; further staff guidance in relation to covert 
recording and further staff guidance in relation to managing querulous/persistent complainants).  

Strategic Manager Policy & Democratic 
Services

A2.1.1 Report annually to the Corporate Governance Group on corporate procurement and 
compliance - add to agenda for 2020-2021.  

Head of Legal Services

P
age 65



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 58

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Ref 
(action)

Improvement Action to be undertaken during 2020-2021 Responsible Officer

A2.2.1 Future ethical awareness training commissioned to be informed by: The Seven Principles of 
Public Life (the Nolan Principles).

Head of Legal Services

A2.2.2 Deliver six courses in relation to Recruitment and Selection and Safe Recruitment. Head of Human Resources
A2.3.3 To provide training on implementation of Contract Procedure Rules - training to be scheduled 

for Spring 2020 and bi annually thereafter.
Head of Legal Services

A2.4.1 Report annually to the Cabinet on the implementation and operation of the Ethical Employment 
in Supply Chain Policy - add to Cabinet forward work programme for 2020-2021.

Head of Legal Services

A2.4.2 To ensure that a copy of all partnership agreements are logged centrally with the Head of Legal 
Services – by the end of March 2021.

Head of Legal Services

A3.2.1 To put in place an agreed procedure where Financial Regulations and Accounting instructions 
are reviewed to ensure they remain relevant and proportionate.  A review of Accounting 
Instructions is currently underway and will be completed by the Autumn of 2020.

Head of Finance

A3.4.1 Reports annually to the Corporate Governance Group to give an assurance that the current 
system for dealing with data protection breaches is fit for purpose - add to agenda for 2020-
2021.

Head of Legal Services

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Ref 
(action)

Improvement Action (2019-2020) Responsible Officer

A4.1.3 To undertake a review of FOI Publication Scheme in 2020-2021 with a report to Cabinet for 
approval.

Head of Legal Services

A4.13.1 Where relevant incorporate proposals for improvements from external regulators audit work into 
the Council’s 2020-2021 corporate planning arrangements.

Strategic Manager Policy & Democratic 
Services

CO19/20 Review of the Council’s collaborative / regional working arrangements. Strategic Manager Policy & Democratic 
Services

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits
Ref 

(action)
Improvement Action (2019-2020) Responsible Officer

P
age 66



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 59

A5.1.1 Incorporate the findings from the Wales Audit Office’s review of our performance, risk and 
business planning arrangements in 2020-2021 into CPMS.

Strategic Manager Policy & Democratic 
Services

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Ref 
(action)

Improvement Action (2019-2020) Responsible Officer

See A5.1.1

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Ref 
(action)

Improvement Action (2019-2020) Responsible Officer

None identified

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management
Ref 

(action)
Improvement Action (2019-2020) Responsible Officer

A8.14.1 A review of Data Processing, Data Protection and Data Sharing work will be undertaken by the 
Information Governance team in 2020 and central records kept of data sharing.

Head of Legal Services

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability
Ref 

(action)
Improvement Action (2019-2020) Responsible Officer

A9.5.1 To deliver governance awareness training across the Council in 2020-2021.  Head of Legal Services / Strategic 
Manager Policy & Democratic Services

P
age 67



Draft $drd5js12.docx                               Page 60

Signed: Signed: 

Chief Executive: Steven Phillips Leader of the Council:       Councillor Rob Jones

Date: 11th May 2020 Date: 11th May 2020

P
age 68



 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

                                         21st May 2020

Report of the Head of Transformation – 
A.Thomas

Matter for Decision

APPOINTMENT OF LA GOVERNOR REPRESENTATIVES

Wards Affected: 

Aberavon, Aberdulais, Baglan, Bryncoch South, Cadoxton, Cimla, 
Coedffranc Central, Coedffranc West, Glynneath, Godre’rgraig, Lower 
Brynamman, Neath East, Neath North, Pontardawe, Rhos, Sandfields 
East, Sandfields West, Seven Sisters, Tonna, Trebanos, Ystalyfera.

Purpose of the Report 

To appoint LA governor representatives to existing vacancies and 
vacancies that will arise up to and including the end of the Summer 
Term 2019/20.

Background

Governing bodies are made up of various categories of governor under 
existing legislation of The Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) 
Regulations 2005.  One of those categories is LA governor 

Page 69

Agenda Item 5



representative.  This Authority has determined that appointments and 
removals of LA governor representatives will be made by the Education, 
Skills and Culture (Special) Cabinet Board.

Criteria for appointing and removing LA Governor 
Representatives 

The Cabinet Board shall apply the following criteria in the priority set out 
below when considering appointments:

a) Elected members representing wards in the catchment area of the 
relevant school or pupil referral unit.

b) Other elected members of the LA.

c) Persons who, in the opinion of the panel, would contribute to the well-
being of the school or pupil referral unit.

In each of the above categories, where there are more candidates than 
vacancies, LA governor representatives shall be appointed on the basis 
of who, in the opinion of the Cabinet Board, will make the most 
significant contribution to the management of the relevant school or pupil 
referral unit.

The Cabinet Board shall apply the following criteria when considering 
removals.

Where there is an oversubscription of LA governor representatives on 
the governing body of the relevant school, or pupil referral unit, then the 
Board will replace one of the current LA governor representatives with 
the newly elected member.

Priority for replacement will be: any former elected member(s) having lost 
or resigned their ward seat; followed by the shortest time served LA 
governor representative on that particular governing body.

The Cabinet Board shall take the steps necessary to remove LA 
governor representatives where, in the opinion of Cabinet Board, there is 
good reason.

Financial Impact 

No implications.

Page 70



Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, 
the Welsh Language Standards (no.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) 
Act 2016).

The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth 
assessment is not required. A summary is included below.

This report focusses solely on the appointment and removal of LA 
governors to schools.

Valleys Communities Impacts:

No implications.

Workforce Impacts

No implications.

Legal Impacts

The recommendations contained within this report are in accordance 
with the Council’s obligations set out in The Government of Maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005.

Risk Management Impacts:

Failure to appoint sufficient numbers of governors is likely to impede the 
operation and efficiency of the governing body. 

Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation 
on this item.  Internal consultation regarding nominations of the LA 
governor representatives has, though, been undertaken with the 
respective Ward Members.

Page 71



Recommendations 

That, in line with approved policy, LA governor representatives be 
appointed to the existing and forthcoming vacancies set out in the 
attached appendix.

Reasons for Proposed Decision 

To enable the Authority to contribute to effective school governance 
through representation on school governing bodies.

Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period.

Appendices: 

1. Details of the vacancies to be filled are set out in the appendix to 
this report.  

List of Background Papers

Education, Leisure and Lifelong Learning Policy in relation to the 
appointment and removal of LA governor representatives. 

Officer Contact

John Burge, Manager, School & Family Support Team, 
j.burge@npt.gov.uk 

Kathryn Gilbert, Principal Schools Governance Officer, 
k.gilbert@npt.gov.uk

Page 72

mailto:j.burge@npt.gov.uk
mailto:k.gilbert@npt.gov.uk


LA Governor Representatives 
Summary of Vacancies 21st May, 2020

School Date of Vacancy Proposal
Awel Y Mor Primary School Immediate Members to determine
Baglan Primary School 01/09/2020

01/09/2020

Re-appoint Cllr. Carol Clement-
Williams
Re-appoint Cllr. Peter D. Richards

Blaenbaglan Primary School 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Peter D. Richards
Catwg Primary School 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Mrs. Reanne Lee
Cefn Saeson Comprehensive 
School

01/09/2020
01/09/2020
01/09/2020

Re-appoint Cllr. John Warman
Re-appoint Cllr. Peter Rees
Re-appoint Cllr. Sheila Penry

Cilffriw Primary School 05/07/2020
01/09/2020

Re-appoint Mrs Arlene Harvey
Re-appoint Cllr. Doreen Jones

Coedffranc Primary School Immediate
Immediate

Future appointment to be made
Future appointment to be made

Crymlyn Primary School Immediate Future appointment to be made
Cwmnedd Primary School 01/09/2020 Re- appoint Mr. Eddie Exley 

Jones
Cwmtawe Comprehensive 
School

01/09/2020
01/09/2020

Re-appoint Cllr. Linet Purcell
Re-appoint Mrs. Julie Mallinson

Dwr Y Felin Comprehensive 
School

01/09/2020

01/09/2020
01/09/2020

Re-appoint Mr. Campbell T 
Coram
Re-appoint Mr. D. Keith Davies
Re-appoint Mr. Paul Winstone

Gnoll Primary School 01/09/2020
Immediate
Immediate

Re-appoint Cllr. Alan Lockyer
Future appointment to be made
Future appointment to be made

Godre’rgraig Primary School 01/09/2020
Immediate
Immediate

Re-appoint Cllr. Rosalyn Davies
Future appointment to be made
Future appointment to be made

Llangatwg Community School 01/09/2020
01/09/2020
Immediate

Re-appoint Cllr. Doreen Jones
Re-appoint Mr. Aylwin Jones
Members to determine

Rhos Primary School Immediate
Immediate

Future appointment to be made
Future appointment to be made

Rhyd Y Fro 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Mr. John Williams
St. Joseph’s Catholic Junior 
School

01/09/2020 Future appointment to be made

Tairgwaith Primary School Immediate Future appointment to be made
Tonnau Primary School Immediate Appoint Mrs Jeanette Francis

Page 73



Waunceirch Primary School 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Mrs. Bethan Healey
Ynysfach Primary School 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Aylwin Jones
YGG Blaendulais 01/09/2020

01/09/2020

Re-appoint Cllr. Stephen Karl 
Hunt
Re-appoint Mr. Emyr Lewis

YGG Castell Nedd 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. John Miller
YGG Cwmnedd 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Del Morgan
YGG Pontardawe 01/09/2020

Immediate

Re-appoint Mr. David Howell 
Lloyd Williams
Future appointment to be made

YGG Trebannws 01/09/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Rebeca Phillips
Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera – 
Bro Dur

Immediate Future appointment to be made

Page 74



AWEL Y MOR PRIMARY SCHOOL (Deferred from last panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Members to determine
Cllr. Sean Pursey 31/08/2021 N/A
Cllr. Matthew Crowley 31/12/2022 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Matthew Crowley Sandfields East Awel Y Mor Primary Tywyn Primary
Cllr. Edward V Latham Sandfields East Tywyn Primary Ysgol Bae Baglan
Cllr. Sean Pursey Sandfields East Awel Y Mor Primary -

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Mr Phillip O’Leary and Mrs. Alyson Jones, who wish to be considered 

for appointment.

P
age 75



BAGLAN PRIMARY SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. Carol Clement-Williams 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Carol Clement-Williams 
Cllr. Peter D. Richards 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Peter D. Richards
Cllr. Susanne Renkes 31/08/2021 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Carol Clement-Williams Baglan Baglan Primary -
Cllr. Susanne Renkes Baglan                Baglan Primary Blaenbaglan Primary 
Cllr. Peter D. Richards Baglan                Baglan  Blaenbaglan Primary 

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Cllr. Carol Clement Williams and  Cllr. Peter D. Richards who wish to 

be considered for re-appointment

P
age 76



BLAENBAGLAN PRIMARY SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. Peter D. Richards 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Peter D. Richards
Cllr. Susanne Renkes 31/08/2021 N/A
Mr. Ian Rees 01/01/2018 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Carol Clement-Williams Baglan Baglan Primary -
Cllr. Susanne Renkes Baglan                Baglan Primary Blaenbaglan Primary 
Cllr. Peter D. Richards Baglan                Baglan  Blaenbaglan Primary 

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Cllr. Peter D. Richards who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 77



CATWG PRIMARY SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mrs. Reanne Lee 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mrs. Reanne Lee
Mrs. Gaynor Murphy 1 31/12/2022 N/A
Mrs. Susan Davies 31/12/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Annette Wingrave Cadoxton - -

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Mrs. Reanne Lee, who wishes to be considered for re-appointment.

P
age 78



CEFN SAESON COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. John Warman 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. John Warman 
Cllr. Peter Rees 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Peter Rees
Cllr. Sheila Penry 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Sheila Penry
Cllr. Adam McGrath 31/08/2021 N/A
Cllr. Mark Protheroe 04/03/2022 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Adam McGrath Cimla Cefn Saeson Comprehensive Crynallt Primary
Cllr. John Warman Cimla Cefn Saeson Comprehensive Crynallt Primary

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Cllr. John Warman, Cllr. Peter Rees and Cllr. Sheila Penry who wish to 

be considered for re-appointment.

P
age 79



CILFFRIW PRIMARY SCHOOL 

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mrs. Arlene Harvey 04/07/2020 Mrs Arlene Harvey
Cllr. Doreen Jones 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Doreen Jones
Mr. Andrew Richards 31/03/2024 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Doreen Jones Aberdulais Cilffriw Primary Llangatwg Community School

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Mrs. Arlene Harvey and Cllr. Doreen Jones, who wish to be considered 

for re-appointment.

P
age 80



COEDFFRANC PRIMARY SCHOOL (Deferred from previous panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Cllr. Arthur P H Davies 31/12/2022 N/A
Mr Stephen James 31/12/2022 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Angharad Aubrey Coedffranc Central - -
Cllr. Arthur P H Davies Coedffranc Central Coedffranc Primary -

Other Information
i) To date, no nominations/applications have been received for these vacancies

P
age 81



CRYMLYN PRIMARY SCHOOL (Deferred from last panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Mr. Howard Davies 31/08/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Helen Ceri Clarke Coedffranc West YGG Tyle’r Ynn Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera Bro Dur

Other Information
i) To date, no nomination/application has been received for this vacancy

P
age 82



CWMNEDD PRIMARY SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mr. Eddie Exley Jones 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Eddie Exley Jones
Mrs. Paula Mainwaring 31/12/2021 N/A
Mrs. Janet Gregory 30/04/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Simon Knoyle Glynneath YGG Cwmnedd -
Cllr. Del Morgan Glynneath YGG Cwmnedd -

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Mr. Eddie Exley Jones, who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 83



CWMTAWE COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mrs. Julie Mallinson 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mrs. Julie Mallinson 
Cllr. Linet Purcell 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Linet Purcell
Ms. Susanne Lewis 31/12/2020 N/A
Mr. Vivian Thomas 31/12/2021 N/A
Cllr. William Thomas 31/12/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Linet Purcell Pontardawe Cwmtawe Comprehensive Rhydyfro
Cllr. Anthony John Richards Pontardawe - -

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Mrs. Julie Mallinson and Cllr. Linet Purcell, who wish to be considered 

for re-appointment.

P
age 84



DWR Y FELIN COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mr. Campbell T. Coram 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Campbell T. Coram
Mr. D. Keith Davies 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. D. Keith Davies
Mr. Paul Winstone 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Paul Winstone
Mrs. C. Watkins 31/12/2021 N/A
Mr. Andrew Wong 31/03/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Jo Hale Bryncoch South - -
Cllr. Chris Williams Bryncoch South - -

Other Information
i) Applications have been received Mr. Campbell T. Coram, Mr. D. Keith Davies and Mr. Paul Winstone, who 

wish to be considered for re-appointment.

P
age 85



GNOLL PRIMARY SCHOOL (Deferred from last panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Cllr Alan Lockyer 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr Alan Lockyer
Mrs. Linda Rees 30/04/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. John Miller Neath East Melin Primary YGG Castell Nedd
Cllr. Sandra Miller Neath East Melin Primary -
Cllr. Sheila Penry Neath East Cefn Saeson Melin Primary

Other Information
i) To date, no nomination/application have been received for these vacancies.
ii) An application has been received from Cllr Alan Lockyer, who wishes to be considered for re-appointment.

P
age 86



GODRE’RGRAIG PRIMARY SCHOOL 

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Cllr. Rosalyn Davies 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Rosalyn Davies

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Rosalyn Davies Godre’rgraig Godre’rgraig Primary Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera – Bro Dur

Other Information
i) To date, no nomination/application has been received for these vacancies
ii) An application has been received from Cllr Rosalyn Davies, who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 87



LLANGATWG COMMUNITY SCHOOL (Deferred from last panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Members to determine
Cllr. Doreen Jones 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Doreen Jones
Mr. Thomas Aylwin Jones 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Thomas Aylwin Jones
Mr Leighton Veale 30/04/2022 N/A
Cllr. Dean Cawsey 31/08/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1      School 2 
Cllr. Annette Wingrave Cadoxton - -

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Mr. Chris Cole and Miss Samantha Bowen, who wish to be considered 

for appointment.
ii) Applications have been received from Cllr. Doreen Jones and Mr. Thomas Aylwin Jones, who wish to be 

considered for re-appointment.

P
age 88



RHOS PRIMARY SCHOOL (Deferred from last panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made 
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Mrs. Sharon Atkins 30/04/2022 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Marcia Spooner Rhos Rhos Primary -

Other Information
i) To date, no nomination/application has been received for this vacancy.

P
age 89



RHYD Y FRO PRIMARY SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mr. John Davies 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. John Davies
Cllr. Linet Purcell 31/03/2021 N/A
Mr. Vivian Thomas 30/04/2022 N/A  

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Linet Purcell Pontardawe Cwmtawe Comprehensive Rhydyfro
Cllr. Anthony John Richards Pontardawe - -

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Mr. John Davies, who wishes to be considered for re-appointment.

P
age 90



ST. JOSEPH’S CATHOLIC JUNIOR SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mrs. Beth Haines 31/08/2020 Future appointment to be made  

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Scott Bamsey Aberavon St. Joseph’s Comprehensive -
Cllr. Staffan ap Dafydd Aberavon St. Joseph’s Comprehensive Ysgol Bae Baglan
Cllr. Nigel Hunt Aberavon YGG Rhosafan -

Other Information
i) The current LA Representative has advised that he does not wish to be considered for s further term of 

office.  To date, no nomination/application have been received for this vacancy.

P
age 91



TAIRGWAITH PRIMARY SCHOOL 

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made 
Mr. Stephen Wadley 31/03/2023 N/A  

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Arwyn Woolcock Lower Brynamman - -

Other Information
i) To date no nomination/application has been received for this vacancy.

P
age 92



TONNAU PRIMARY SCHOOL (Deferred from previous panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Appoint Mrs Jeanette Francis  
Cllr. Leanne Jones 31/08/2021 N/A
Mr. Robert Miller 31/03/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Leanne Jones Tonna Melin Primary Tonna Primary

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Mrs. Jeanette Francis, who wishes to be considered for appointment.

P
age 93



WAUNCEIRCH PRIMARY SCHOOL 

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mrs. Bethan Healey 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mrs. Bethan Healey  
Mrs. Catherine Archard 31/08/2022 N/A
Mr. Richard Brown 31/03/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Jo Hale Bryncoch South - -
Cllr. Chris Williams Bryncoch South - -

Other Information:
i) An application has been received from Mrs. Bethan Healey who wishes to be considered for re-appointment.

P
age 94



YNYSFACH PRIMARY SCHOOL

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Mr. Thomas Aylwin Jones 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Thomas Aylwin Jones
Mrs. Gloria Felton 31/03/2021 N/A
Mrs. Catherine Chappell 31/12/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Dean Lewis Resolven - -

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Mr. Thomas Aylwin Jones who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 95



YGG BLAENDULAIS

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. Stephen Karl Hunt 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Stephen Karl Hunt
Mr. Emyr Lewis 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. Emyr Lewis
Mrs. Gaynor smith 31/03/2021 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Stephen K. Hunt Resolven YGG Blaendulais Blaendulais

Other Information
i) Applications have been received from Cllr. Stephen Karl Hunt and Mr. Emyr Lewis, who wish to be 

considered for re-appointment.

P
age 96



YGG CASTELL NEDD

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. John Miller 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. John Miller
Mrs. Angharad Parsons 31/12/2020 N/A
Mr. John Roger Williams 31/12/2022 N/A
Cllr. Alan Lockyer 31/08/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Alan Lockyer Neath North YGG Castell Nedd Gnoll Primary
Cllr. Mark Protheroe Neath North Cefn Saeson comprehensive Melin Primary

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Cllr. John Miller who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 97



YGG CWM NEDD

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. Del Morgan 31/08/2020           Re-appoint Cllr. Del Morgan
Cllr. Carolyn Edwards 31/12/2020 N/A
Cllr. Simon Knoyle 31/08/2021 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Simon Knoyle Glynneath YGG Cwmnedd -
Cllr. Del Morgan Glynneath YGG Cwmnedd -

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Cllr. Del Morgan who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 98



YGG PONTARDAWE 

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Mr. David Williams 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Mr. David Williams
Ms. Bethan Gill 31/12/2021 N/A
Mrs. Sarah Gray 31/08/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Linet Purcell Pontardawe Cwmtawe Comprehensive Rhydyfro Primary
Cllr. Anthony Richards Pontardawe - -

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Mr. David Williams who wishes to be considered for re-

appointment.

P
age 99



YGG TREBANNWS

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Cllr. Rebeca Phillips 31/08/2020 Re-appoint Cllr. Rebeca Phillips 
Mrs. Angharad Lloyd 31/12/2021 N/A
Cllr. William Thomas 31/08/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Rebeca Phillips Trebanos YGG Trebannws YGG Pontardawe

Other Information
i) An application has been received from Cllr. Rebeca Phillips who wishes to be considered for re-
     appointment.

P
age 100



YSGOL GYMRAEG YSTALYFERA – BRO DUR (Deferred from previous panel)

Current LA Representatives Term of office ends Recommendation
Vacancy N/A Future appointment to be made
Cllr. Alun Llewelyn 08/11/2021 N/A
Cllr. Helen Clarke 08/11/2021 N/A
Cllr. Rosalyn Davies 08/11/2021 N/A
Mr. Tudur Jones 31/03/2023 N/A

Local Member Ward School 1 School 2 
Cllr. Alun Llewellyn Ystalyfera Ysgol Gymraeg Ystalyfera Bro Dur -
Cllr. Oliver Davies Sandfields West Ysgol Bae Baglan -
Cllr. Suzanne Paddison Sandfields West - -
Cllr. Robert Wood Sandfields West Ysgol Bae Baglan -

Other Information
i) To date, no nomination/application has been received for this vacancy

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET 

21st MAY 2020

REPORT OF HEAD OF FINANCE – H.JONES

SECTION A – MATTER FOR DECISION

WARDS AFFECTED – ALL

CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN 2019/20

Purpose of Report

1. This report sets out the financial outturn position for the 
Capital Programme for 2019/20.

Budget Outturn

2. For 2019/20 the approved revised Capital Programme 
totalled £39.078m, actual expenditure for the year was 
£38.019m which represents in financial terms 97% delivery of 
the Programme.

This £38m expenditure represents significant investment 
within the County Borough which has led to community and 
service improvements.  The Council places great emphasis 
on the importance of capital investment as a means of 
regenerating our Communities and providing modern, safe 
buildings and infrastructure.  Capital investment does not 
only lead to improved facilities and services but creates jobs 
and economic benefits for the citizens of Neath Port Talbot. 

Page 103

Agenda Item 6



The following points note some of the significant 
achievements during the year:

 Progression of the Council’s Band B 21st Century Schools 
programme;

 Cefn Saeson - a new replacement 11-16 School in 
the Cimla area of the County Borough.

 Abbey Primary – a new primary school to replace the 
current Abbey Primary which is based across three 
sites in Neath Abbey, Skewen and Longford.

 Investment of £1.996m in a flood and coastal risk prevention 
project at Aberavon Seafront.

 Progression of County Borough regeneration projects;

 Commencement of the next phase of the Neath Town 
Centre redevelopment. 

 Development works of £3.2m on the former Crown 
building.

 Redevelopment works of £0.8m the former Plaza cinema 
in Port Talbot. 

 Completion of works at the Former Port Talbot 
Magistrates Court.

 Further investment of over £3m into Disabled Facility Grants 
to assist people to live at home and investment of £2.8m in 
Schools Capital Maintenance and Highways and 
Engineering Maintenance improvements.

A summary of the outturn position can be found in Appendix 
1 of this report with the main variations between budget and 
actual being:

 21st Century Schools projects
The total overspend of £1.2m is due to the variances in the 
profile of the delivery of these projects.  The majority relates 
to work on the Cefn Saeson site progressing ahead of 
schedule, the overspend will be funded from resources 
earmarked in 2020/21.

Page 104



 Regeneration – Former Crown Building Redevelopment
The overspend of £1.54m is due to works progressing on 
site ahead of schedule. Additional grant funding has been 
received to fund part of the overspend with the balance 
being funded from the 2020/21 budget. 

 Schools IT
Welsh Government grant funding (HWB) has resulted in the 
Authority spending £447k less of its own finances on Schools 
IT during 2019/20. 

 Street Lighting
The total underspend of £462k is due mainly to the variance 
in the profile of the delivery of the Salix Street Lighting project. 
This project was anticipated to start in 2019/20 but now will 
commence in 2020/21.

 Highways and Engineering Maintenance
The underspend of £747k is due to the Authority receiving 
additional grant funding in 2019/20 which was used to fund 
Highways and Engineering Maintenance works. The under 
spend will be carried forward into 2020/21.

 Other
The overspend of £496k is mainly due to works on the 
Margam Park tourism project commencing earlier than 
anticipated and works at Hillside Secure Unit also starting 
ahead of schedule. These works are on-going and further 
expenditure will be incurred in 2020/21.

2020/21 Capital Programme

3. Work is ongoing to deliver the 2020/21 Capital Programme 
totalling £87.920m which was approved by Members as part 
of the Council’s budget setting process in March 2020. This 
Programme will be continually updated and revised as 
changes to profiles and funding are identified. Updated 
information will be reported to Members as part of the 
2020/21 budget monitoring cycle.

Page 105



Financial Impact

4. All relevant details are set out in the body of the report.

Integrated Impact Assessment

5. No requirement for this as information set out in the report 
summarises the Council’s financial commitment to fund capital 
projects in year.

Valleys Communities Impact

6. No implications.

Workforce Impacts

7. There are no workforce impacts arising from this report.

Legal Impacts

8. There are no legal impacts arising from this report.

Risk Management

9. The capital programme is actively managed by managers and 
the Capital Programme Steering Group to comply with all 
relevant planning conditions, legislation, regulations and health 
and safety. 

Consultation 

10. There is no requirement under the Constitution for external 
consultation on this item.

Page 106



Recommendation

11. It is recommended that the 2019/20 Capital Programme 
outturn position be approved.

Reason for Proposed Decision

12. To agree the capital outturn position for 2019/20.

Implementation of Decision

13. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three 
day call in period.

  Appendices

14. Appendix 1 – Details of 2019/20 Capital Expenditure.

List of Background Papers

Capital Programme working files

Officer Contact

Mr Huw Jones
Head of Finance
Tel. No. 01639 763575
h.jones@npt.gov.uk

Mr Ross Livingstone
Group Accountant Corporate, Capital & VAT
Tel. No. 01639 763624
r.livingstone@npt.gov.uk

Page 107

mailto:h.jones@npt.gov.uk
mailto:r.livingstone@npt.gov.uk


Appendix 1
Details of 2019/20 Capital Expenditure

 
Revised 
Budget 
£'000

Actual 
£'000

Variance 
£'000

Ysgol Cwm Brombil 1,973 1,994 21
Cefn Saeson School 5,524 7,117 1,593
Abbey Primary School 627 515 -112
Capital Maintenance - ELLL 1,125 1,111 -14
Welsh Medium School Grant - YGG 
Pontardawe & YGG Tyle'r Ynn 425 401 -24

Infant Class Sizes Grant - YGG Rhosafan, 
YGG Castell Nedd, Gnoll Primary 546 523 -23

Childcare Offer Grant - Small Grants Pot, 
Baglan Primary, Blaenbaglan Primary & 
Rhos Primary

417 307 -110

Cymmer Afan Site Clearance & Land 
Reclamation 800 892 92

Leisure Investment 156 64 -92
Margam Orangery Improvement Works 250 142 -108
Highways and Engineering Maintenance 2,451 1,703 -748
Additional Highway Works (Highways 
Refurbishment Grant) 1,496 1,497 1

Local Transport Fund (multiple locations) 525 323 -202
Road Safety Grant  (multiple locations) 407 408 1
Safe Routes In Communities  (multiple 
locations) 157 163 6

Active Travel Fund - Neath To Port Talbot; 
Fabian Way and Ffordd Amazon 739 521 -218

Flood & Coastal Risk Projects - Aberavon & 
Brunel Dock (Feasibility) 2,330 1,996 -334

Major Bridge Strengthening - A474 Neath 910 613 -297
Cymmer Viaduct Design 220 128 -92
Health & Safety 893 693 -200
Street Lighting 663 201 -462
Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,119 1,305 186
Absorbent Hygiene Product Waste Grant 110 113 3
NPT Recycling Ltd Equipment Purchase 750 750 0

Page 108



 
Revised 
Budget 
£'000

Actual 
£'000

Variance 
£'000

Regeneration: Harbourside Infrastructure 275 155 -120
Regeneration: Former Plaza Redevelopment 1,000 799 -201
Regeneration: Former Magistrates Court 732 797 65
Regeneration: 6 Station Road 100 29 -71
Regeneration: Turbine House - Margam 
Park 275 332 57

Regeneration: Neath Town Centre 
Redevelopment 250 152 -98

Regeneration 8 Wind Street 177 53 -124
Regeneration: Former Crown Buildings 
Redevelopment 1,707 3,251 1,544

Regeneration: Commercial Property Grants 10 27 17
Regeneration: Property Enhancement 
Development Grant 250 11 -239

Regeneration: Swansea Bay Technology 
Centre 400 240 -160

Regeneration: Other 599 244 -355
School IT/Vehicle Financing 640 193 -447
Social Services Capital Maintenance 216 164 -52
Warm Homes – Boiler Scheme 395 362 -33
Disabled Facilities Grants 3,000 3,084 84
    
Additional £5m Allocation:    
Schools & Leisure Maintenance 400 406 6
Environment Projects 265 241 -24
Agile Working 250 233 -17
    
Additional Schools Capital Maintenance 
Grant:    

Capital Maintenance for Schools 303 270 -33
    
Contingency 222 0 -222
Other 2,999 3,496 497
Total 39,078 38,019 -1,059

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 

21st May 2020

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & CORPORATE 
SERVICES – H.JENKINS

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected – All Wards

REVENUE OUTTURN AND RESERVES POSITION STATEMENT 
2019/20

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1. The purpose of this report is to inform members and seek their 
approval of the Council’s General Fund Revenue Outturn and 
Reserves position for the 2019/20 financial year.

1.2. Members should note that the information set out in this report 
has been incorporated into the Council’s Statement of Accounts 
for 2019/20 and will be forwarded to the external Auditor for 
review. It is expected that the Auditor’s work will be completed by 
the middle of September 2020. Any changes required that impact 
on the accounts and reserves will be reported separately to 
members in due course.

1.3.  Executive Summary 

The Council’s Net Budget for 2019/20 was £288.168m. The 
Actual Net Expenditure, or Outturn position for the Council, 
shows a net under spend of £169k, and therefore the planned 
transfer from the General Reserve can be reduced from 
£2.255m to £2.086m.

The opening balance on the General Reserve was £20.968m. 
Following the net underspend and other reserve movements 

Page 111

Agenda Item 7



set out in this report, the closing balance at 31st March 2020 
will reduce by £1.047m to £19.921m. 

The opening balance on Specific Reserves was £39.515m and 
following the reserve movements set out in this report, the 
balance at 31st March 2020 will reduce by £1.254m to 
£38.261m.

2. Service Outturn Position 2019/20

2.1. On the 14th February 2019, Council approved the Budget for 
2019/20. The Net Budget Requirement was confirmed as 
£288.168m of which £244.383m was provided for Directorate 
Managed Services with the remaining £43.785m made available 
for other budgets including Precepts (the main one being the Fire 
Authority), Capital Financing, Council Tax Support and a Budget 
Contingency. 

2.2. Every quarter Cabinet received a Budget Monitoring Report 
setting out the latest projected outturn position against the Budget. 
The most recent report, for the quarter ended 31 December 2019, 
was presented to and approved by Cabinet on 4th February 2020, 
which showed a projected underspend of £60k.

2.3. The initial outturn position, incorporating amendments to the 
budgeted reserve transfers, shows an under spend of £903k 
against Directorate Services, but taking account of other central 
budgets resulted in an overall Council underspend of £1.161m - 
(see also Appendix 1), and summarised below.

Original 
Budget

Revised
Budget

Outturn 
Position

Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Education, Leisure & 
Lifelong Learning

109,091 109,091 108,808 -283

Social Services Health & 
Housing

79,681 79,681 78,932 -749

Environment 37,535 37,891 38,285 394
Corporate Services 18,076 18,076 17,811 -265
Net Directorate Services 244,383 244,739 243,836 -903
Other 43,785 43,429 43,171 -258
Net Position 288,168 288,168 287,007 -1,161

Page 112



The amendments to the budgeted reserve movements are outlined 
in Appendix 3.

Explanations of the main budget variances contributing to this 
position are included in Appendix 2.

3. Specific Reserves 2019/20

3.1. As in previous years the outturn position has been prepared 
based on a range of contributions to/from reserves which have 
been made in accordance with the following principles.  

 The schedule of interim specific reserve balances projected as 
at 31st March 2020 was agreed by Council on 5th March 2020 
as part of the 2019/20 Revised Budget deliberations.

 Where Neath Port Talbot is the lead authority for managing 
Joint Services the appropriate movement in reserves have 
been actioned as such funds are managed by the wider 
partnership.

 The final reserve balances will be further reviewed following 
audit and as part of the annual budget process during 2020/21.

3.2. Outlined below is a summary of the additional amounts 
transferred to/from (-) reserves to meet identified future cost 
pressures. Full details of these reserve movements are included 
at Appendix 4.

Directorate £’000
Education, Leisure and Lifelong Learning 453
Social Services Health and Housing 200
Environment 325
Corporate Services 14
Sub-total to Specific Reserves 992
Net underspend to General Reserves 169
Total additional reserve transfers 1,161

3.3. The Total Specific Reserves position is summarised as follows:

Page 113



£’000
Opening Balance 1st April 2019 Cr 39,515
Net reserve movements (Appendix 3) 2,586

Cr 36,929
Additional Reserve Transfers (Appendix 4) Cr 1,332
Closing Balance as at 31st March 2020 Cr 38,261

Full details of Specific Reserve balances are given in Appendix 5. 

3.4. The following provides an explanation as to some of the specific 
Reserves:

 School Reserves (deficit balance of £465k) – Delegated School 
Budget Reserves (net deficit balance of £634k) must be carried 
forward in accordance with current legislative requirements.  
Reserve balances have reduced by £1.756m during the year 
and several Schools are in a deficit position.  All schools in a 
deficit reserve position are required to develop a recovery plan 
that balances the budget over three years. The recovery plans 
are signed off by the Director of Education and Lifelong 
Learning, the Head Teacher and Chair of Governors and 
reviewed on an annual basis.  Schools are required to provide 
the Authority with details on how they intend to utilise their 
reserves.

 ERVR Reserve – The costs of staff leaving during 2019/20 was 
£782k of which £500k was funded from the base budget and 
the balance of £282k being funded from the ERVR Reserve. 
The closing balance on the ERVR reserve is £4.537m. 

 Insurance Reserve – The reserve has reduced by £2.392 of 
which £2m was set aside to create the Corporate Contingency 
Reserve. The closing balance on the reserve is £6.651m.

 Treasury Management Reserve – This reserve has increased 
by £813k to £7.639m to assist with funding City Deal project 
expenditure. 

 Member Community Development Fund – As outlined in the 
2020/21 budget reported presented to Cabinet on the 5th March 
£340k has been transferred to the reserve for use in 20/21. 
The closing balance on the reserve is £391k. 

Page 114



4. General Reserve 2019/20

4.1. The General Reserve position is as follows:-

£’000
Opening Balance 1st April 2019 Cr 20,968
Budgeted Movements 
Additional transfers to /from reserve
2019/20 Net underspend

 1,840
Cr 624
Cr 169

Closing Balance 31st March 2020 Cr 19,921

Full details of the movement in the General Reserve are shown in 
Appendix 6.  Members should note that the above balance at 31 
March 2020 is some £800k more than predicted and that the 
2020/21 Budget includes a projected use of £1.65m of this 
reserve by March 2021. 

The above-mentioned General Reserve and Specific Reserves 
balances are provisional as they are subject to confirmation 
following external audit of the Statement of Accounts due to be 
finalised at the middle of September 2020.

5. Integrated Impact Assessment

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist 
the Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality 
Act 2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No 1) Regulations 
2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 
the Environment (Wales) Act 2016). See Appendix 7.

The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in depth 
assessment is not required.

6. Valleys Communities Impacts

No implications.  

7. Workforce Impacts

The report identifies that several staff have chosen to leave the 
authority under the ERVR scheme.

8. Legal Impacts

Page 115



There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 
There is a statutory accounting requirement for balances and 
reserves to be processed in line with Accounting Code of Practice. 
The Authority’s Statement of Accounts are subject to external 
audit by the Wales Audit Office.

9. Risk Management Impact

The transfers to reserves are proposed to meet anticipated future 
cost pressures.

10. Consultation

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item

11. Recommendation

It is recommended that members:

11.1 Note the 2019/20 financial outturn position as set out in this 
report

11.2 Approve the additional reserve transfers of £1.161m as 
summarised in paragraph 3.2 and detailed in Appendix 4.

12. Reason for Proposed Decision

To finalise the Council’s General Fund Revenue Outturn and 
Reserves position for the 2019/20 financial year.

13. Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day 
call in period.

14. Appendices
Appendix 1 – Revenue Outturn Summary 2019/20
Appendix 2 – Variances
Appendix 3 – Adjustment to budgeted reserves
Appendix 4 - Additional Reserve Movements 
Appendix 5 – Specific Reserves Schedule 
Appendix 6 – General Reserve Statement
Appendix 7 – Integrated Impact Assessment (stage 1)

Page 116



15. List of Background Papers
Outturn Working Papers 2019/20

16. Officer Contact

For further information on this report item, please contact:

Mr Hywel Jenkins – Director of Finance & Corporate Services
Tel no 01639 763251
Email: h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk

Mr Huw Jones – Head of Finance
Tel no 01639 763575
E-mail: h.jones@npt.gov.uk

Mrs Sue Gorman, Chief Accountant - Financial Services 
Tel. No. 01639 763937
E-mail: s.gorman@npt.gov.uk

Page 117



Appendix 1
REVENUE OUTTURN SUMMARY 2019/20

 Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget

Adj 
Actual 

Expend

Variance Reserve 
Requests 

Final 
Actual 

Expend

Final 
Variance

 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
ELLL - Schools 84,424 84,424 84,424 0  84,424 0
ELLL - Other 24,667 24,667 24,384 -283 453 24,837 170
Social Services 
Health & Housing

79,681 79,681 78,932 -749 200 79,132 -549

Environment 37,535 37,891 38,285 394 325 38,610 719
Corporate Services 18,076 18,076 17,811 -265 14 17,825 -251
Directly Controlled 
Expenditure

244,383 244,739 243,836 -903 992 244,828 89

Swansea Bay Port 47 47 46 -1  46 -1
Fire Authority 7,470 7,470 7,466 -4  7,466 -4
Margam 
Crematorium

1 1 1 0  1 0

Archives 94 94 94 0  94 0
Magistrates Court 12 12 12 0  12 0
Capital Financing 19,274 19,274 19,274 0  19,274 0
Housing Benefits 0 0 -107 -107  -107 -107
Council Tax Support 18,108 18,108 17,737 -371  17,737 -371
Management of 
change

500 500 500 0  500 0

Contingency 555 187 394 207  394 207
Pay & Pensions 
Provision

0 0  0  0 0

Cont from Fire 
Authority Reserve

-21 -9 -9 0  -9 0

Cont to General 
Reserve

-2,255 -2,255 -2,255 0 169 -2,086 169

Net Budget 
Requirement

288,168 288,168 286,989 -1,179 1,161 288,150 -18

RSG -168,695 -168,695 -168,695 0  -168,695 0
NNDR -46,100 -46,100 -46,100 0  -46,100 0
Discretionary Rate 
Relief

330 330 348 18  348 18

Council Tax -73,703 -73,703 -73,703 0  -73,703 0
Total Funding -288,168 -288,168 -288,150 18 0 -288,150 18

NB all figures are rounded to nearest £1,000.

Page 118



Appendix 2
Variances

Service Area Value Reason/Action
School specific 
contingencies

Un 485 Net surplus from grants. Request to carry forward £400k to fund 
2020/21 Budget pressures.

Post 16 transport Un 73 Additional income from shared transport arrangements with Social 
Services together with savings from route changes.

Strategic Schools 
Investment Programme

Ov 59 Consultant fees for school business cases in order to secure funding 
for 21st century schools

Support services SEN Un 105 ALN new structure for 2019-20. All posts now filled but achieved later 
than initially projected.

Out of county placements Ov 230 4 children placed in independent sector placements during later period 
of 2019/20 and increase cost of provision for some children.

Behaviour support 
strategies

Un 285 Delay in opening of the new ASD provision in year (£150k) and 
decreased expenditure to offset pressure within out of county budget.

Skills and Training unit Ov 76 Shortfall in the work based learning contract
Margam Park Ov 97 Loss of income less reduced costs due to COVID19
Management and 
Administration

Ov 66 Contribution to ERW not originally budgeted for.  

Children's Social Work Un 644 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs and additional income, 
of which £270k relates to staff being funded from the Intermediate Care 
Fund “Working Together” project.  

Children's Residential 
Care

Ov 276 The budget was based on 7 children and the average number of 
placements for the year was 9.14

P
age 119



Appendix 2
Variances

Service Area Value Reason/Action
Hillside - Secure 
Accommodation

Ov 556 The overspend is due to a loss of income, partly from the contract with 
Youth Custody Service (YCS), but also from lower occupancy of 
welfare beds (placements from other Local Authorities). Negotiations 
with YCS are ongoing to seek to claw back some of the lost income for 
the first half of the year.

Day Care Un 99 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs.
Adoption Service Un 239 The budget was based on payment of allowances for 48 children and 

an underspend is projected as payments are currently being made for 
45 children. Also NPT received a refund of its contribution to the 
Western Bay Adoption Service of £214k

External Foster 
Placements

Un 60 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs for the Placement 
Support Team.

Youth Offending Service Ov 107 The overspend is due to the cost of 3 remand placements that 
commenced in January 2020

Child & Family 
Management 

Un 177 The underspend is due to savings on external legal fees. 

Community Care Social 
Work

Un 190 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs.

Social Services Business 
Support Services

Un 246 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs.

Elderly Residential Care Ov 84 The overspend is due to an increase in the number of service users in 
residential care

P
age 120



Appendix 2
Variances

Service Area Value Reason/Action
Domiciliary Care Un 794 The underspend is due to staff vacancies in the in-house homecare 

service, savings on placements costs in the external domiciliary care 
services and additional winter pressures funding (£197k).

Community Resource 
Team

Un 179 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs and car allowances 
(£91k), a reduction in premises costs (£34k) and a reduction in 
Telecare service level agreement costs

Other Community Care - 
Direct Payments

Un 139 The underspend is due to a reduction in the number of direct payment 
recipients (budget 107, average 92), and recovery of £115k unused 
funding from client accounts.  

Physical Disabilities - 
External Placements

Un 97 The underspend is due to a reduction in the number of placements. 

Aids & Equipment Un 58 The underspend is largely due to a saving on the NPT contribution to 
the Joint Equipment Service of £49k.

Learning Disabilities - 
External Placements

Ov 874 The overspend is because the budget includes savings targets of 
£350k (SSHH903/913) which were not achieved in year, and there has 
also been an increase in the number of service users being supported 
(budget 423, average 450). These pressures have been built into the 
2020/21 budget.

Community Independence 
Service

Un 120 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs

Day Opportunities - Care & 
Support

Un 57 The underspend is due to savings on staff costs

P
age 121



Appendix 2
Variances

Service Area Value Reason/Action
Social Services Transport Ov 158 The budget includes a savings target (SSHH905 £115k) which was not 

achieved in year. An updated transport policy was approved by 
members on 17th October 2019 and the full year impact will become 
available in 2020/21.

Mental Health - External 
Placements

Ov 198 The overspend is due to an increase in the number of service users 
being supported (budget 71, average 77). 

Highways Reactive Ov 233 This includes £226K emergency costs for Storm Denis. Funding from 
the Welsh Government is only available for spend above the 
Emergency Funding Assistance Scheme i.e. £580k for NPT, hence the 
funding outcome of this in uncertain. Also extra stand-by costs of £22k 
were paid to staff in line with Council renegotiated agreement for the 
period December 2019 to March 2020.

Waste Management Un 53 The overspend is mainly due to staff vacancies ( now filled), and 
partially offsets the overspend in waste collection - below.

Refuse Collection Ov 170 An anticipated overspend has been reported in year due to a £47k 
reduction in the Sustainable Waste Grant being, and additional activity 
and costs. The underspend increased in March due to staff transferring 
into waste collection from elsewhere in streetcare as a result of 
COVID19. The overspend is partly offset by additional grant received 
from WG in March.

Household Waste 
Recycling Centres

Ov 107 The overspend is due to the additional costs from transporting wood to 
a recycling centre in Devon to meet recycling targets, partly offset by 
savings in other running costs.

P
age 122



Appendix 2
Variances

Service Area Value Reason/Action
Parks and Open Spaces Un 144 The underspend is mainly due to the transfer of staff from Parks to 

Refuse Collection due to COVID-19 see above.
Building Maintenance Ov 80 The overspend is due to an increase in emergency callout work due to 

the bad weather in January and February.
Catering Ov 63 The overspend is due to a shortfall in income and sickness costs.
Gypsy Sites Ov 68 The overspend is mainly due to an additional utility costs
Workways Un 94 The service is funded from ring-fenced WEFO FR15 and FR40 grants 

and the underspend will be transferred to reserve to fund future costs.

Industrial Workshops Ov 107 The overspend has arisen as it has been necessary to increase the 
provision to meet cost at the Lonlas workshop by £150k. The 
overspend is partly offset by underspends in other properties such as 
Baglan Bay Innovation Centre £43K.

ICT Un 81 Salary underspends and reduced call to fund ICT apprentice roles of 
£45,600 from reserve. 

Financial Services - 
Various

Un 67 Staffing vacancies

Directorate Management Un 41 Budget provision of £54k given for specific corporate projects.  Only 
£13k spent in 19/20 on APSE fees for work on income generation

Housing Benefits Un 107 DWP housing benefit grant received
Council Tax support Un 371 Reduction in expenditure incurred 
Contingency Ov 206 Expenditure relating to Godrer'graig landslip

P
age 123



Appendix 3
Adjustment to Budgeted Reserves Movements

Service Area Requested  
Reserve 

Movement   

Reason

Housing Benefits In 25 Contribution towards funding of the new HR/Payroll system to go 
live by 1 April 2021 in line with contract. 

Information Governance In 29 Planned contribution from the Corporate Contingency Reserve 
not required in full as 2 GDPR officer posts were appointed rather 
than 3.

Communications & Marketing In 13 Contribution towards the funding of a Digital Communications 
post in 2020/21 

Substance Misuse In 4 This is a Regional Reserve and the planned reserve request is no 
longer required.

ICT In 200 Adjustment to IT reserve to manage annual budget fluctuations
School specific contingencies Out 15 Additional school tribunal costs funded from reserve
Parent/pupil and governor support 
unit-feminine hygiene grant

In 106 Delay in tender process, no spend incurred in 2019/20

Outdoor education Out 2 Contract for new lease started after April 1st, therefore Field 
Study Council paid reduced amount of £47,774 into the renewal 
fund rather than the £50k due in a full year. Hence reduction in 
contribution to be carried forward in reserve to meet future years' 
costs.

Margam Park Out 23 Transfer from reserve required to fund work carried out on train 
earlier than anticipated

P
age 124



Appendix 3
Adjustment to Budgeted Reserves Movements

Service Area Requested  
Reserve 

Movement   

Reason

Child & Family Management Out 17 Transfer from the Regional Western Bay Safeguarding Reserve 
to fund the overspend in the regional safeguarding 

Community Resource Team Out 15 Transfer from the Regional Intermediate Care Reserve to fund 
expenditure incurred by Swansea Bay Health Board as part of 
the s33 agreement

Vehicle renewals In 315 Expenditure on vehicle renewals was less than budget, therefore 
the planned transfer from the vehicle renewals reserve is not 
required in full.

Metal Box In 69 Reduction in amount required from Reserve to fund Metal Box. 
Transfer back into reserve to fund costs in 2020/21.

Planning Policy In 6 The planned contribution from the LDP reserve is not required in 
full

Economic Development Fund Out 19 An additional transfer from reserve is required as expenditure 
was greater than anticipated.

Cemeteries In 20 The budget included a planned transfer of £40k from reserve to 
fund work at cemeteries but the work has not been completed 
therefore £20K needs to be transferred back into reserve for 
completion in 2020/21

P
age 125



Appendix 3
Adjustment to Budgeted Reserves Movements

Service Area Requested  
Reserve 

Movement   

Reason

HR/Unions In 11 Contribution from Corporate Equalisation Reserve not required in 
2019/20 to fund DBS Checks, but needs to be transferred back to 
the reserve to fund future costs, as there is no base budget 
provision to fund future expenditure

HR Training In 40 Digital Leadership Funding to be utilised over 2 financial years. 
£40k to be carried forward for use in 2020/21.

Grants to Community Councils In 8 Planned transfer from General Reserve not required in full
Members Community 
Development Fund

In 51 Planned transfer from Member Community Development 
Reserve not required in full

Management of Change In 500 Transfer to ERVR Reserve to partly offset costs incurred in-year.

Total In 1,306

P
age 126



Appendix 4
Additional Reserve Movement Requests

Service Area Requested  
Reserve 

Movement

Reason

School specific contingencies In 400 Transfer underspend to reserve to fund 2020/21 pressures.
Schools mutual fund Out 6 To transfer funding for net cost of LLAN scheme from Primary 

Schools ERVR Reserve
Inclusion In 59 Transfer part of the underspend in Inclusion service to fund 

commitments in 20/21
Domiciliary care In 200 Transfer £200k to Social Services Equalisation Reserve to fund 

additional expenditure in 2020/21
Refuse In 113 Grant awarded from Welsh Government in March 2020 to be 

transferred to reserve to fund expenditure in 2020/21
Parks and Open Spaces In 40 Transfer underspend to reserve to fund tree works delayed due to 

COVID-19, to be undertaken in 20/21
Coastal Protection In 12 Contract delayed due to Covid 19 with funding needed in 2020/21
Energy Management In 4 Transfer of feeding tariff savings into Renewable Energy Reserve for 

future investment
Workways - Matched funding In 34 The underspend is due to changes in the profile of expenditure, which 

need to be carried forward as they will need to be available towards 
the end of the scheme period.

Workways - Regional In 26 The Workways project is due continue to 2023. The in-year surplus 
relating to European Funded Projects expenditure need to be carried 
forward into later years to fund expenditure as total income in those 
years reduce.  

P
age 127



Appendix 4
Additional Reserve Movement Requests

Service Area Requested  
Reserve 

Movement

Reason

Workways - NPT In 34 The Workways project is due continue to 2023. The in-year surplus 
relating to European Funded Projects expenditure need to be carried 
forward into later years to fund expenditure as total income in those 
years reduce.  

City Deal In 38 Transfer the underspend in 2019/20 to reserve to fund expenditure in 
2020/21 

Gnoll In 25 A donation of £25k was received from a private Will to carry out works 
at the park,  but work was delayed due to COVID-19 and will be 
incurred in 2020/21

HR/Unions In 5 Transfer to reserve cost of staff training committed but subsequently 
delayed due to CORV19 - to be paid in 20/21

HR/Unions In 9 Transfer to reserve cost of furniture orders placed but delivery 
delayed due to CORV19 - to be paid in 20/21

Other In 169 Transfer Council underspend to General Reserve
Grand Total In 1,161  

P
age 128



Appendix 5
Specific Reserves 

 Description Reserve at 
1st April 

2019

Updated 
Budgeted 

movements

Interim 
Balance at 
31st March 

2020

Additional 
Requests

Final 
Balance at 
31st March 

2019
EDUCATION, LEISURE & LIFELONG 
LEARNING

     

Delegated Schools Cash Reserves      
 ERVR Primary Cr13,006 Cr1,289 Cr14,295 6,332 Cr7,963
 Primary Schools Reserve A/C Cr1,493,245 857,257 Cr635,988 0 Cr635,988
 Secondary Schools Reserve A/C 376,617 Cr485,814 Cr109,197 0 Cr109,197
 Special Schools Reserve A/c 157 305,226 305,383 0 305,383
 Middle School Reserve A/c 0 1,074,154 1,074,154 0 1,074,154
 Repair & Maintenance reserve Cr161,160 0 Cr161,160 0 Cr161,160
  Cr1,290,637 1,749,533 458,896 6,332 465,228
Education, Leisure and Lifelong Learning      
 Margam Discovery Centre - Building 

Maintenance Reserve
0 Cr47,774 Cr47,774 0 Cr47,774

 Equalisation Account-Education Cr870,120 Cr43,500 Cr913,620 Cr459,000 Cr1,372,620
 Home to School Transport Cr36,070 Cr75,000 Cr111,070 0 Cr111,070
  Cr906,190 Cr166,274 Cr1,072,464 Cr459,000 Cr1,531,464
Total Education Leisure & Lifelong Learning Cr2,196,827 1,583,259 Cr613,568 Cr452,668 Cr1,066,236

SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH & HOUSING
     

 Homecare ECM Equipment reserve Cr62,835 Cr10,000 Cr72,835 0 Cr72,835
 Community Care Transformation Reserve Cr107,771 0 Cr107,771 0 Cr107,771
 Social Services Equalisation Cr739,904 0 Cr739,904 Cr200,000 Cr939,904
 Hillside General Reserve Cr1,091,673 818,010 Cr273,663 0 Cr273,663
 Youth Offending Team Reserve Cr153,397 0 Cr153,397 0 Cr153,397
 Adoption Service Cr100,000 0 Cr100,000 0 Cr100,000
Total Social Services, Health and Housing Cr2,255,580 808,010 Cr1,447,570 Cr200,000 Cr1,647,570

P
age 129



Appendix 5
Specific Reserves 

 Description Reserve at 
1st April 

2019

Updated 
Budgeted 

movements

Interim 
Balance at 
31st March 

2020

Additional 
Requests

Final 
Balance at 
31st March 

2019
ENVIRONMENT      
 Transport Reserve Cr151,541 0 Cr151,541 0 Cr151,541
 Asset Recovery Incentive Scheme Cr125,894 0 Cr125,894 0 Cr125,894
 Local Development Plan Cr157,072 Cr24,000 Cr181,072 0 Cr181,072
 Economic Development Cr848 848 0 0 0
 Winter Maintenance Reserve Cr764,162 10,000 Cr754,162 0 Cr754,162
 Baglan Bay Innovation Centre Reserve Cr77,517 0 Cr77,517 0 Cr77,517
 Renewable Energy Reserve Cr7,160 0 Cr7,160 Cr3,824 Cr10,984
 Environmental Health - Housing Equalisation Cr20,000 Cr117,000 Cr137,000 0 Cr137,000
 Workways - NPT Cr124,781 0 Cr124,781 Cr34,483 Cr159,264
 Environment Equalization Reserve Cr604,246 111,796 Cr492,450 Cr222,650 Cr715,100
 Operating Account -Equalisation Cr36,043 0 Cr36,043 0 Cr36,043
 Vehicle Tracking Cr92,186 0 Cr92,186 0 Cr92,186
 Vehicle Renewals Cr1,727,753 Cr178,099 Cr1,905,852 0 Cr1,905,852
Total Environment Cr3,889,203 Cr196,455 Cr4,085,658 Cr260,957 Cr4,346,615

CORPORATE SERVICES
     

 Elections Equalisation Fund Cr240,139 0 Cr240,139 0 Cr240,139
 Health & Safety/Occupational Health Cr40,501 0 Cr40,501 0 Cr40,501
 Development Fund for Modernisation Cr115,032 0 Cr115,032 0 Cr115,032
 IT Renewals Fund Cr1,298,394 455,000 Cr843,394 0 Cr843,394
 Corporate Equalisation Reserve Cr531,836 10,600 Cr521,236 Cr14,000 Cr535,236
 Building Capacity Cr184,122 Cr13,173 Cr197,295 0 Cr197,295
 Voluntary Organisation Reserve Cr17,067 4,267 Cr12,800 0 Cr12,800

Total Finance and Corporate Services Cr2,427,091 456,694 Cr1,970,397 Cr14,000 Cr1,984,397

P
age 130



Appendix 5
Specific Reserves 

 Description Reserve at 
1st April 

2019

Updated 
Budgeted 

movements

Interim 
Balance at 
31st March 

2020

Additional 
Requests

Final 
Balance at 
31st March 

2019
CORPORATE      
 Insurance Reserve Cr9,043,185 2,391,980 Cr6,651,205 0 Cr6,651,205
 Swansea Bay City Deal Cr75,000 0 Cr75,000 Cr37,786 Cr112,786
 Income Generation Reserve Cr715,895 62,105 Cr653,790 0 Cr653,790
 Members Community Fund Reserve Cr546,712 496,088 Cr50,624 Cr340,000 Cr390,624
 Community Resilience Fund Cr2,000,000 0 Cr2,000,000 0 Cr2,000,000
 Housing Warranties Reserve Cr220,000 0 Cr220,000 0 Cr220,000
 Fire Authority Reserve Cr9,548 9,548 0 0 0
 Pantteg Landslip Reserve Cr500,000 0 Cr500,000 0 Cr500,000
 Waste Reserve Cr393,152 0 Cr393,152 0 Cr393,152
 LAWDC Contingency Reserve Cr1,005,214 Cr7,217 Cr1,012,431 0 Cr1,012,431
 Schools IT Equalisation (HWB) 0 Cr250,000 Cr250,000 0 Cr250,000
 Corporate Contingency 0 Cr2,269,000 Cr2,269,000 0 Cr2,269,000
 Treasury Management Equalisation Reserve Cr6,826,155 Cr812,920 Cr7,639,075 0 Cr7,639,075
 ERVR Transitional Reserve Cr4,818,306 281,813 Cr4,536,494 0 Cr4,536,494
 Accommodation Strategy Cr2,273,580 0 Cr2,273,580 0 Cr2,273,580
CORPORATE OTHER Cr28,426,748 Cr97,603 Cr28,524,351 Cr377,786 Cr28,902,137
JOINT COMMITTEE/ OTHER      
 Workways - Regional Reserve Cr66,060 0 Cr66,060 Cr26,490 Cr92,550
 Environment Legacy Reserve (SWTRA) Cr59,728 0 Cr59,728 0 Cr59,728
 Substance Misuse Area Planning Board Cr40,775 0 Cr40,775 0 Cr40,775
 WB Safeguarding Board Reserve Cr109,146 16,949 Cr92,197 0 Cr92,197
 Intermediate Care pooled fund Cr43,429 15,000 Cr28,429 0 Cr28,429
JOINT COMMITTEE/ OTHER Cr319,138 31,949 Cr287,189 Cr26,490 Cr313,679
TOTAL ALL REVENUE RESERVES Cr39,514,587 2,585,854 Cr36,928,734 Cr1,331,901 Cr38,260,635

P
age 131



Appendix 6
General Reserve

Original 
Estimate 
2019/209

Revised 
Estimate 
2019/20

Actual     
2019/20

Variance  
2019/20

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Opening balance 1st April Cr 19,714 Cr 20,968 Cr 20,968 0
     
Council Tax increased income Cr 1,000 Cr 1,000 Cr 1,774 Cr 774
Capital -  Phase II Accommodation financing costs 180 180 180 0
Doubtful Debt Provision 200 200 0 Cr 200
Contributions to the Economic Development Fund 200 180 198 18
Community Councils Grant Scheme 25 25 17 Cr 8
Member Community Development Fund 0 0 340 340
     
Contribution from /to revenue 2,255 2,255 2,086 Cr 169
     
Estimated / Actual Closing balance 31st March Cr 17,854 Cr 19,128 Cr 19,921 Cr 793

P
age 132



Appendix 7
Integrated Impact Assessment – Stage 1

1. Details of the initiative 

Initiative description and summary:  Revenue Outturn and Reserves Position Statement. This annual report is required 
to comply with the Statutory Accounting Code of Practice to ensure that the Council’s actual financial position for 2019/20 is  
completed with all Reserves and balances transferred into the relevant accounts, which will be subject to external audit by 
Wales Audit Office.  
There are no policy implications that arise from this report which impact on service users, staff or the wider community, with 
all financial reserves and balances being carried forward into future years to support Council activities. 

Service Area:  Financial Services

Directorate: Finance & Corporate Services

2. Does the initiative affect:  
Yes No

Service users No
Staff No
Wider community No
Internal administrative process only Yes

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their: 

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
Know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact?

Age N
Disability N
Gender Reassignment N
Marriage/Civil Partnership N

P
age 133



Appendix 7
Integrated Impact Assessment – Stage 1

Pregnancy/Maternity N
Race N
Religion/Belief N
Sex N
Sexual orientation N

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes No None/
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence 
used) / How might it impact?

People’s opportunities to 
use the Welsh language 

N

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English 

N

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) / 
How might it impact?

To maintain and enhance 
biodiversity N

To promote the resilience 
of ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of the 

N

P
age 134



Appendix 7
Integrated Impact Assessment – Stage 1

wider environment, such as 
air quality, flood alleviation, 
etc. 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes No Details

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people 

Y The Council reserves will be available to support specific initiatives (from 
specific reserves) or the general activities of the Council in future years, 
hence supporting the sustainable development principle.

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives 

N

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative 

N

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions

N

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse 

N

P
age 135



Appendix 7
Integrated Impact Assessment – Stage 1

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required Y

Reasons for this conclusion   

A full impact assessment is not required as this is an annual report is required to comply with statutory accounting requirements 
that close off the 2019/20 financial year and provide the appropriate balances and reserves to be made available in future years to 
underpin Council activities.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required N

Reasons for this conclusion   

Name Position Date
Completed by SE Gorman Chief Accountant 6/5/20
Signed off by HJ Jenkins Head of Service/Director 11/5/20

P
age 136



 
 
 
 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

21st May 2020 
 

Report of the Director of Environment and Regeneration 
Nicola Pearce 

 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected:  All 
 
Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy  Consideration of: 
responses to the comments received following consultation; and the 
publication procedures to be implemented.  
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
To consider the responses to the comments received following 
consultation on the draft Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy; 
and the publication procedures to be implemented. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Limiting future climate change is regarded internationally as the single 
most serious issue faced by society. Tackling the issue requires collective 
action and the Council has an important role to play in this respect. 
 
The draft Strategy , 
sets out what the Council has already achieved and identifies the potential 
future opportunities that exist. The document is therefore an integral part of 
the associated action plan 
framework will assist the Council in meeting its carbon footprint reduction 
aspirations.  
 
The draft Strategy was the subject of a 6 week public consultation exercise 
in order to capture the observations and comments of interested parties. 
This report therefore seeks endorsement of the responses to the 
comments received and the publication procedures to be implemented.  
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 8



Background 
 
On 30th April 2019, the Welsh Government declared a climate emergency. 
The announcement drew attention in Wales to the magnitude and 
significance of the latest evidence on climate change and highlighted the 
recent climate protests across the UK. 
 
Tackling climate change requires collective action and there is a role to 
play for every community, business and public service in Wales. In making 
such a declaration, the Welsh Government is hoping that it will trigger a 
wave of action at home and abroad. 
 
Neath Port Talbot Council has a range of legal duties placed upon it. 
These include economic development, proper stewardship of public 
monies and obtaining value for money. The Council is also a community 
leader, as well as being a landowner, an employer, a regulatory body and 
service provider. 
 
It is imperative therefore that the Council leads by example and continues 
to commit to doing its fair share to reduce carbon emissions to help 
achieve national targets. 
 
Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy 
 
The document is structured into five parts: 
 

 Part 1: Introduction  sets the context of the strategy. 

 Part 2: Regulatory Framework & Key Drivers  provides a 

summary of the legal requirements and identifies the key drivers in 

the national, regional and local context. 

 Part 3: Neath Port Talbot Issues & Influences  provides a brief 

summary of the issues, influences and challenges faced. 

 Part 4: Strategy Development  outlines the overarching vision and 

objectives, what the Council has already achieved and the potential 

future opportunities that exist. 

 Part 5: Implementation and Monitoring  identifies an action plan 

detailing how the Council will set out to achieve the aspirations and 

monitor/evaluate the outcomes. 

The document has been developed around three strategic themes namely 
transportation; buildings and spaces; and influencing behaviour. Whilst the 

therefore have more direct 
involvement in delivering the action plan, all directorates across the 

Page 138



Council will be expected to contribute to driving the carbon reduction 
strategy forward. Furthermore, the Council will also seek to work 
collaboratively with a range of partner organisations where appropriate, 
including those from the public, private and community / voluntary sectors. 
 
Consultation Responses 
 
The consultation ran for 6 weeks from 24th September to 5th November 
2019. The Council received a total of 36 comments from 12 different 
individuals or organisations. Responses in relation to the comments 
received, highlighting proposed changes to the document where relevant, 
are set out in Appendix 1. 
 
A revised final version of the Strategy, highlighting proposed amendments 

proposed relate to the following: 
 

 Foreword  

declaration of a climate emergency . 

 Role of Biodiversity / Natural Resources / Green Infrastructure  

various additions have been incorporated throughout the document 

to give more prominence to the role of biodiversity, green 

infrastructure and our natural resources in addressing climate 

change. 

 

 EV Charging Infrastructure Route Map  text added to highlight that 

the EV Charging Route Map is one of the core projects emerging 

from the Swansea Bay City Deal, with the aim of the project being to 

inform the development and implementation of an EV charging 

network across the region. 

 Community Involvement  new section added to acknowledge the 

considerable public interest in climate change and the need to 

involve the wider public moving forward. Attention drawn to the 

play 

in this respect. 

Publication Procedures 
 
Once approved the Strategy 
website and hard copies of the document will be made available for public 
inspection on request. 
Standards Policy the Strategy will also be made available in Welsh. 

Page 139



Developing a  
 
Given the significance and far-reaching influence of this overarching 
strategy, it is important that is developed 
to link all the decarbonisation and renewable energy initiatives together. 
 

has been commissioned to develop this idea and have 
presented the . An extract from the 
accompanying narrative is copied below: 
 
In Neath Port Talbot we are daring to change, daring to believe in a better 
future, daring to do what is needed to make a difference Project DARE is 
a challenge to the whole area, our businesses, our politicians, our policy 

. DARE 
will become a beacon for businesses in the cleantech sector, daring them 
to grow with us. Encouraging them to test their ideas and locate their 

Join us in our challenge. Dare with us. Dare to change 
. 

 
Members should note that this narrative / branding will be utilised moving 
forward and reflects the brand narrative and tone 
and has been developed for the following two key audiences: 
 

 The public and businesses of Neath Port Talbot to demonstrate how 

the Council is responding positively and confidently to the climate 

emergency challenge; and 

 Potential and existing businesses, to promote the area as an ideal 

location to locate, build and grow businesses which have a 

decarbonisation and renewable energy focus. 

Financial Impacts 
 
Nothing additional at this point. However, moving forward funding will be 
required to deliver the Action Plan. There are a number of potential 
sources (national and regional) that could be accessed to deliver the 
various actions. 
 
Securing external funding will therefore be a key activity and the Council 
must consider all alternatives for funding sources to obtain solutions to the 
more difficult and expensive initiatives and to embrace renewable energy 
and low carbon technologies. 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

Page 140



A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council 
in discharging its legislative duties under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh 
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix 3, has indicated that a 
more in-depth assessment is not required. A summary is included below: 
 

 Equalities  climate change affects all generations and all areas of 

society. Implementation of the Strategy/Action Plan will be inclusive 

and will involve the Council working with all staff, the wider public 

and a wide range of partner organisations including those from the 

public, private and community / voluntary sectors. 

 Welsh Language  there is no direct, clear link with the Welsh 

language. Opportunities arising from action to reduce emissions (e.g. 

local jobs in energy efficiency or community renewables), may 

however encourage people in rural areas where there is a higher 

proportion of Welsh speakers to remain in their communities, helping 

to sustain the language in those areas. 

 Biodiversity  climate change affects biodiversity in many ways. 

risks to biodiversity (e.g. risks to species/habitats due to inability to 

respond to changing climatic conditions; risks to soils and carbon 

stores etc.). 

 Well-being of Future Generation (5 ways of Working)  the 

Strategy / Action Plan embraces all five ways of working. The 

commitment to, a longer term low carbon future; positively integrates 

-being objectives; involves people and partners 

in its development and implementation; and seeks to prevent 

problems getting worse. 

Valleys Communities Impacts 
 
No implications. 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 
No implications. 
 
Legal Impacts 

Page 141



 
No implications. 
 
Risk Management Impacts 
 
No implications. 
 
Consultation 
 
This item has been subject to external consultation. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That having considered the report, it is resolved to make the following 
recommendations for approval: 
 

1. That the responses to the representations received as set out in 

Appendix 1 be agreed and the revised DARE Strategy as set out in 

Appendix 2 be published. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision 
 
The recommendation is needed to ensure that a clear Strategy / Action 
Plan is issued by the Council in respect of the Climate Change / 
Decarbonisation agenda. 
 
Implementation of Decision
 
The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1  Responses to the DARE Strategy Representations. 
Appendix 2  DARE Strategy (Tracked Changes  April 2020). 
Appendix 3  DARE Strategy: First Stage Integrated Impact Assessment. 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
None. 
 
Officer Contact 
 
Ceri Morris  Head of Planning and Public Protection  
Tel: 01639 686681 or e-mail: c.morris1@npt.gov.uk  

Page 142



APPENDIX 1  Responses to the DARE Strategy Representations 

Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

GENERAL (DOCUMENT LEVEL) 

1 Emma Knight 
 
(Extinction 
Rebellion 
Neath Port 
Talbot) 

General On behalf of Extinction Rebellion (XR) Neath Port Talbot, I have 
clicked that we support the document, because we do... as a first 
step.  However, it has a long way to go. As an organisation, we 
have three demands of government and, whilst working in the right 
direction, the strategy does not meet any of them:  

1. "Tell the truth" about the climate & ecological crises - work 
with the media and others to convey the severity of the 
situation to the general public. 

2. "Act Now" to bring greenhouse gas emissions down to net 
zero by 2025 and halt biodiversity loss. 

3. Go "Beyond Politics" - create and be led by the decisions 
of a Citizens Assembly. 

I will comment solely in line with these demands on behalf of 
XRNPT. Any specific suggestions for improvements I will put 
forward as my own views in a separate response, since XR's 
stance is that change should be led by the Citizen's Assembly 
(although we do recommend having a look at 
this: https://policy.friendsoftheearth.uk/insight/33-actions-local-
authorities-can-take-climate-change) 

First of all though, it is important to note that it is great news that 
Neath Port Talbot is seeking to take action on climate change! 

Tell the truth: There is no sense of urgency about the document, 
no mentions of the word "emergency", "crisis / crises" "existential 
threat" or "extinction" anywhere to be found.  At no point has 
NPTCBC declared that we are in the midst of a climate 
emergency. This may seem unimportant now that Parliament and 
Welsh Government have already done so, but it makes a difference 
to local people, many of whom are still blissfully unaware of the 
problem or do not believe it to be real  the more they hear it 
confirmed by those in any kind of authority (rather than 
uncooperative crusties!), the greater the impact.   

There is a lack of awareness raising in general throughout the 
strategy (see below also). How do you intend to engage with people 
on this issue? Who will be invited to take part in the working group 
and what will it's role be? 

Act Now: The timescales listed are without end goals - largely just 
stating "annual" unless it is something simple like a feasibility study 

The broad support for the document is 
noted. 
 
In respect of the perceived lack of urgency 
within the document and lack of targets, 
the DARE Strategy does confirm support 
for the Welsh  declaration of 
a   Given that the 
Welsh Government has already set 
specific targets for Wales, it is not 
considered to be the purpose of the DARE 
Strategy to set specific targets or 
commitments for Neath Port Talbot, 
including those relating to becoming 

  by any given date. 
 
The primary purpose of the Strategy is to 
set out how the Council will seek to 
contribute to the overall national agenda 
by reducing its own carbon footprint when 
carrying out its operations and functions. 
In addition, the Strategy sets out how the 
Council will seek to set a proactive agenda 
in its role as community leader, landowner, 
employer, regulatory body and service 
provider. 

The Strategy recognises both the good 
progress already made and what has the 
potential to be achieved moving forward. 
The Council remains determined to 
embrace the task ahead and help 
influence those areas where the most 
impact can be achieved. 

In terms of the limited mention of the role 
of biodiversity within the document, this 
point is accepted and should be 
addressed. 

In respect of community involvement, it is 
accepted that there is considerable public 
interest in the current climate and action 
will be more effective by ensuring that the 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 

Paragraph 1.1.1  amend to read: 

alongside 
increasing carbon sequestration (i.e. 
the long term storage of carbon in 

, is 
considered critical to addressing the 
issue. In and in the UK, and Wales in 
particular, there is already much activity 
aimed at reducing fossil fuel usage and 
there is increasing awareness and 
activity in the use of natural 
resources to draw down, and store 
carbon in plants, soils and wetlands . 

Paragraph 1.2.1  add footnote: 

Whilst the Council recognises that 
carbon reduction is a primary goal in 
the challenge to reduce greenhouse 
gases, the Strategy also seeks to 
address other greenhouse gases . 

Add following text after Paragraph 1.2.3: 

The role of our natural resources is 
equally important in addressing 
climate change. Carbon sequestration 
is the long term storage of carbon in 

oceans, effectively removing this 
carbon from the atmosphere. Tree 
planting is increasingly gaining 
interest as a method to achieve this, 
however vegetation in general stores 
carbon, and peatland restoration, 
wetland and woodland management 
has just as vital a role to play in this 
respect. Preventing further damage 

Page 143



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

in which case you give yourselves a few years to carry it out.  Does 
that sound like urgent action?  XR calls for zero greenhouse gas 
emissions by 2025  something many view as impossible, but the 
Centre of Alternative Technology says it is. The Welsh Government 
and UK governments have 2050 targets. People are already dying 
due to climate change. The longer we take to fix this, the more 
people we commit to a death sentence. What is your target? 

In addition, there seems to be a failure to realise that this is not the 
only issue we face.  Following the IPBES report 2019, it became 
clear that the current biodiversity crisis may constitute just as great 
a threat to society and life on this planet as the climate crisis 
does. The two issues are not the same thing, they both have 
devastating impacts regardless of the other, whilst at the same time 
they are inextricably interlinked. They cannot be looked at in 
isolation, especially when both require changes in land use. Yet the 
strategy barely mentions biodiversity  this needs to be 
acknowledged and addressed. 

In addition, a clear statement is required for the council's position 
on divestment. We know investments are made by Swansea, but it 
is NPT money  are you putting pressure on them to remove 
NPTCBC pension fund from fossil fuels? If you are, state it. The 
same goes for your position on fracking and mining, state where 
you stand on fossil fuel extraction.  

There was also an element of surprise amongst our group that 
there was no mention of a large-scale tree planting project, 
especially after so many trees had to be removed in the county 
borough due to disease over the past few years. 

Beyond Politics: Despite the "influencing behaviour" section in the 
action plan, there is very little in the strategy to convey the message 
that urgent action needs to be taken now, if we do not want to 
experience societal collapse within the lifetimes of our children (if 
not sooner). The time is now long gone for gently tempting people 
into cycling instead of using cars. People need to know how serious 
this is and they need to be given the opportunity to help solve 
it.  By using top down methods to tell people what they should and 
shouldn't do or what they need to pay more for, resentment and 
anger will grow (see riots in France when Macron raised fuel 
taxes). However, by introducing a citizen's assembly (randomly 
selected using sortition so they remain representative of the local 
demographic), people are more likely to accept the decisions 
made. Finances may constrain that, but at the very least NPTCBC 
could hold regular PUBLIC people's assemblies, so that everyone 
gets the chance to put their ideas forward for people to hear and 
identify what is popular. 

wider public is involved in any action to 
address climate change. The scope for 
example of those to be involved on the 
Climate Change Working Group has 
however yet to be established, albeit it is 
anticipated that there will need to be 
representatives from the public, private 
and community / voluntary sectors. 

Notably, i

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will be 
to actively involve residents in decision 
making, so residents can help shape 
proposals at a very early stage. 
 
It is anticipated therefore that the Panel 
will have a role to play with the 
implementation and review of the DARE 
Strategy moving forward. This should be 
recognised in the document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

and restoring healthy ecosystem 
functions must therefore be a key 
element of any strategy to address 
climate change . 

Paragraph 1.3.1  amend to read: 
 

protecting and enhancing the natural 
environment . 
 
Add following text after Paragraph 2.1.3: 
 
The Committee on Climate Change 
(CCC) has recently released a report 

in-depth 
advice on UK land use policies. The 
report maps out the changes in land 
use practices required in order to 

greenhouse gas emissions target by 
2050. A key finding of the report is 
that policies be implemented to 
deliver restoration of at least 50% of 
upland peat and to increase UK 
forestry cover from 13% to at least 
17% by 2050. Additionally, the report 
highlights the need to reduce food 
waste and consumption of the most 
carbon-intensive foods, such as beef, 
lamb and dairy . 
 
Paragraph 2.2.6  amend to read: 
 

 puts 
in place the legislation needed to plan 
and manage the natural resources of 
Wales in a more proactive, sustainable 
and joined up way, with the intention of 
building greater resilience into our 
ecosystems. The Act also provides a 
stronger legislative framework for 
biodiversity, introducing an enhanced 
biodiversity and resilience of 
ecosystems duty for public bodies. 
Delivery against this agenda will 
support efforts to address, and mitigate 

Page 144



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

for, climate change, particularly in terms 
of better land management practices  
 
Add following text after Paragraph 2.4.6: 
 
The Neath Port Talbot Biodiversity 
Duty Plan (2017) outlines the 

proach to meeting the 
biodiversity and ecosystem resilience 
duty set out by the Environment 
(Wales) Act, 2016. Given the 
importance of more sustainable 
management of our natural resources 
in tackling climate change, delivery of 
this Plan will contribute towards 
decarbonisation efforts, whilst also 
improving ecosystem resilience and 
addressing the decline of 
biodiversity . 
 
Paragraph 3.1.5  amend to read: 
 

which This 
needs to be taken into account and 
protected wherever possible. In addition, 
the area also presents opportunities for 
increased carbon sequestration through 
restoration of degraded peatland . 
 
Add following text after Paragraph 3.1.5:  
 
Whilst Neath Port Talbot has a higher 
than average percentage of tree 
coverage, there is a disparity between 
the rural and urban areas, with the 
urban coverage estimated at an 
average of 16.6%, with some areas as 
low as 8.2%. Given that space and 
opportunity for tree planting may be 
limited in some urban areas, green 
infrastructure enhancements, which 
may include tree planting, would 
provide additional benefits for local 
communities . 
 
Footnote: Town Tree Cover in Neath 
Port Talbot County Borough (NRW  
2016). 
 

Page 145



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

Objectives  amend 4th bullet point to read: 
 

carbon 
sequestration and minimise carbon 
release through the appropriate 

. 
 
Paragraphs 4.2.3.55 to 4.2.3.57  amend 
sub-title to read: 
 
Green Infrastructure, Ecosystem 
Resilience and Biodiversity  
 
Add text before Paragraph 4.2.3.55: 
 
The Council Countryside and 
Wildlife Team are leading on a 
number of initiatives and projects to 
protect and enhance the natural 
environment and ecosystem 
resilience, support biodiversity 
recovery and improve green 
infrastructure . 
 
Paragraph 4.2.3.56  amend to read: 
 

The 
maps can be used to take a strategic 
approach to GI enhancement 
ensuring that measures are taken in 
the appropriate locations . 
 
Paragraph 4.2.3.57  amend to read: 
 

of further GI schemes. As part 
of this fund, a programme of tree 
planting in schools project is underway 
with fourteen schools set to benefit from 
increased tree coverage and hedgerow 
planting . 
 
Add following text after Paragraph 4.2.3.57: 
 
The Council has received funding to 
restore a historic peatland landscape 
in the uplands area between Neath 
Port Talbot and Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

restore more than 540 hectares of 

Page 146



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

historic landscape and habitat, 
including peat bogs and pools, 
heathland, grassland and native 
woodland; and as blanket bog is rare 
across the world, the project will have 
a major international impact. 
 
In addition to the benefits for carbon 
sequestration and biodiversity 
recovery, projects such as these are 
an excellent example of how 
biodiversity related projects can 
deliver multiple benefits for our 
communities. The re-wetting of the 
peat will reduce fire risk, whilst better 
management of our upland habitats 
will increase water retention 
capabilities, reducing run off and 
flooding. Furthermore, the community 
engagement element of the project 
will encourage greater use of the 
countryside, leading to health and 
well-being benefits. 
 
A Coed Cymru Officer is in place to 
support landowners in the creation 
and sustainable management of 
woodland, supporting the submission 
of external grant bids where 
necessary and providing advice on 
existing woodlands. The Officer is 
part of the national Coed Cymru 
network, who are taking an active role 
in exploring more sustainable funding 
mechanisms for woodland creation, 
including exploring opportunities 
such as the Woodland Carbon Code . 
 
Paragraph 4.2.4.8  amend 1st bullet 
point to read: 
 

local sites and reducing private 
vehicular use energy saving 
measures in the home . 
 
Add new bullet point: 
 
Promote lifestyle changes that 

Page 147



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

footprint, such as waste reduction, 
sustainable purchasing, reduced 
consumption of food products with a 
high carbon footprint and reducing 
private vehicular use . 
 
Section 4.2.4  add new sub-section: 
 
Community Involvement 
 
There is considerable public interest 
in the current climate and action will 
be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action 
to address climate change. This will 
also be an opportunity to take a 
collaborative approach to awareness 
raising campaigns. 
 
In January 2020 the Council launched 

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will 
be to actively involve the public in 
decision making, so residents can 
help shape proposals at a very early 
stage. It is anticipated therefore that 
the Panel will have a key role to play 
in the implementation and review of 
the DARE Strategy moving f . 
 
Table A.0.1 Action Plan  add new 
actions: 
 
Action: Planning / Development  
continue to work with developers / 
applicants to incorporate, wherever 
possible, green infrastructure 
measures. 
 
Outcomes: Number of applications 
that deliver green infrastructure, 
utilising strategies and/or processes 
such as Biodiversity SPG or SABs 
approval  
 
Action: Ecosystem Resilience  
through partnership working, 

Page 148



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

utilisation of external funding and/or 
changes to work practices, to deliver 
initiatives that support ecosystem 
resilience and biodiversity recovery. 
 
Outcomes: Schemes for the 
sustainable management of our 
natural resources will be undertaken, 
including peatland restoration and 
woodland management / creation . 
 
Table A.0.1 Action Plan  amend action 
to read: 
 
Action: Urban Green Infrastructure 
(GI)  identify and seek external 
funding opportunities, or adapt 
current work practices, to enable the 
delivery of GI schemes across the 
County Borough. 
 
Outcomes: These will improve the 
health and well-being of the 
associated communities by improving 
the urban landscape and access to 
green space, enhancing biodiversity; 
mitigating against, and supporting 
adaptation to climate change; and 
providing solutions for air quality and 
flooding . 

2 Emma Knight General I welcome this strategy but do not feel that it goes far enough 
considering the urgency with which we need to act right now. I 
believe the following suggestions should be added along with any 
others that may arise from Citizens / Peoples Assemblies: 

Limiting the biodiversity crisis needs to be considered in conjunction 
with this strategy  ideas include: 

 Ceasing the use of glyphosate. 
 Seeding roadside verges with wildflowers. 
 Greening bus shelter roofs (unless utilising for solar glass) 

(see Netherlands). 
 Encourage, enable & support community adoption of 

green spaces & unadopted land. 
 Provide public trainings for organic growing and 

permaculture skills. 
 NPTCBC should encourage (or where possible act 

The broad support for the document is 
noted. 
 
The comment provides a large number of 
ideas and suggestions which the Council 
will explore moving forward. 

It is noted that a large proportion of the 
ideas and suggestions relate to the role of 
biodiversity/ecosystems, green 
infrastructure and our natural resources in 
addressing climate change  it is 
acknowledged and accepted that more 
prominence should be afforded to this 
throughout the document. 

That there be a number of amendments 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan  refer to Rep Ref 1 above. 

Page 149



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

towards) a reduction in meat & dairy consumption and the 
use of intensive farming  animal agriculture is not only 
one of the industries with the highest emissions but also 
requires a great deal of land use, a disproportionate 
amount from clearing rainforests. 

 Adjust council catering options so that vegan / vegetarian 
options become the norm with meat options in the 
minority. 

 Source all meat / dairy from local sustainable producers. 
 Only allow producers of meat / dairy free foods or sourced 

from sustainable agricultural methods to have stalls at the 
food festival. 

 Introduction of low emissions zones within the town 
centres with higher costs for non-  

 Create a climate adaptation plan  whilst it is noble that 
the council seems to believe we can stop climate change 
in its tracks, the reality is that things will get worse before 
we achieve this (if we do at all). Alongside a 
decarbonisation plan I feel it would be wise to have a 
strategy to protect our communities for climate impacts. 

 Improve flood defences, including from flash flooding. 
 Drainage system improvements. 
 Tree planting. 
 Public drinking water outlets. 
 Food growing networks, allotments. 
 Bulk Buying initiatives. 
 Repair cafes. 
 Climate related workshops (e.g. constructing grey / 

rainwater harvesting systems). 
 Creation of community climate hub. 
 To learn about / contemplate the crises. 
 Climate themed art & information space. 
 Host support network for people suffering eco-anxiety / 

grief. 

Other thoughts and questions: 

 Possible funding opportunity  Woodland Carbon Code. 
 What will be the process, structure and authority intended 

 
  

to? Why are Neath and Pontardawe not included? 
  what do we need to 

pressure the government to change in order to help 
improve action at a local level? 

 New builds should not automatically be connected to gas 
network. 

Page 150



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

 Include the Heading for Extinction talk as part of staff 
training. 

3 Dan 
McCallum 
 
(Awel Aman 
Tawe) 

General We very much welcome this document and wish to work with the 
Council. 

It would be good to have stronger evidence of partnership working 
in the document  we appreciate the document refers to 
partnerships, but it reads very much as a Council led approach at 
the moment. There is a Voluntary Sector Liaison Forum to bring the 
two together which produced a number of reports including one on 
Energy and Environment  this should be reflected in the 
Consultation. The priority should be to build on this partnership 

suggested in the consultation. 

Awel Aman Tawe has been operating for 20 years in NPT and is 
very engaged in the voluntary sector working with NPTCVS. It has 
set up two coops www.awel.coop and www.egni.coop which have 
developed the largest portfolio of community renewables in Wales 
and won multiple awards for its work. Our recent Moon Mission, a 
climate change awareness raising project, attracted over 800 
people and children to Pontardawe Arts Centre over a month. 
There is an opportunity to build on this partnership, drawing in 

 

In terms of existing sites, Awel Coop has a 4.7MW wind farm  over 
£100k of the shares in the project are owned by local community 
groups such as rugby clubs, Merched y Wawr, youth groups etc. 
Egni Coop already has solar PV installed on 4 sites in NPT which 
are generating well and producing over £1k/year energy savings for 
host buildings  these sites are Seven Sisters Community Centre 
(30kw), Dove Workshops (21kw), Glynneath Training Centre 
(12kw), Awel Aman Tawe (4kw). Egni owns a total of 179kw of 
solar including other sites in Carmarthenshire and Swansea. Egni is 
currently undertaking another share offer including NPT for roof 
mounted solar PV in 2019  we have raised £1.1m in coop shares 
and £3.4m in loans. We aim to install on about 10 community and 
business sites in NPT. As these are cooperative projects, and the 
buildings host a range of other community groups, they are a very 
good way of engaging people in climate change action. 

There is also an opportunity to develop shared ownership 
renewables projects  and for the Council to use the expertise that 
exists in the voluntary sector to support that. 

The broad comment of support for the 
Strategy is noted. 

In terms of partnership working, the 
Council is committed to continue to work 
and cooperate with a range of partner 
organisations, including cross-boundary 
collaboration where appropriate, in taking 
forward and developing further the 
Strategy. 
 
The document highlights that existing 
partnership networks will be utilised 
wherever possible as well as seeking to 

promoted, issues raised, information 
disseminated and best practice shared. 
 
The Council is aware of the wide range of 
good work carried out by Awel Aman Tawe 
and would welcome the opportunity to 
work in partnership moving forward. 
 
In respect of declaring a  

 the DARE Strategy does 
confirm support for the Welsh 

 declaration. The primary 
purpose of the Strategy however, is to set 
out how the Council will seek to contribute 
to the overall national agenda by reducing 
its own carbon footprint when carrying out 
its operations and functions. In addition, 
the Strategy sets out how the Council will 
seek to set a proactive agenda in its role 
as community leader, landowner, 
employer, regulatory body and service 
provider. 

The Strategy recognises both the good 
progress already made and what has the 
potential to be achieved moving forward. 
The Council remains determined to 
embrace the task ahead and help 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 

Add the following new text after 
Paragraph 4.2.2.8: 

out of the Swansea Bay City Deal is 

region. The project has been 
developed in response to the need to 
decarbonise transport and address 
the new challenges posed by the 
increasing number of electric 
vehicles.  

The project consists of three phases: 
 
 Phase 1  to consult with leading 

academics and industry partners 

to produce an effective, impactful 

and future-proof electric vehicle 

charging strategy; 

 Phase 2  will focus on the 

physical implementation of smart 

charging stations and the grid 

infrastructure required to support 

modern charging technologies; 

and 

 Phase 3  to use information 

gathered from the implemented 

smart charging stations to build a 

detailed dataset of electric vehicle 

charging behaviours within the 

area. This will be used to fuel 

research into topics including 

vehicle-to-grid transfer for flexible 

energy systems, virtual power 

plants, and future economic / 

Page 151



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

Partnership working between community energy and local 
authorities are specifically encouraged by the Future Generations 
Act. AAT is highlighted as a case study. See p.3 and 
10 http://futuregenerations.wales/wp-
content/uploads/2019/01/Prosperous-journey-checker-draft-for-
consultation.pdf 

We appreciate that Awel Aman Tawe is mentioned in the document 
 but it is part of a list of large commercial renewable energy 

developments and makes no recognition of the additional value that 
social enterprise can bring. 

The current consultation claims one of our projects for the Council! 
The PV installation at Ysgol Gwaun Cae Gurwen was one of the 
first in the UK and was fully funded by Awel Aman Tawe. 

climate emergency. 

NPT needs to do far more in terms of electric vehicles and to work 
in partnership with the voluntary sector as Carmarthenshire Council 
has with Carmarthenshire Energy Coop who have a dedicated RDP 

-
https://www.zap-map.com/live ) is a comprehensive map of 

all charge points in the UK and reveals the dearth of charging 
solutions in rural Wales. Especially notable in comparison to 
Scotland, Northern Ireland and elsewhere. All charging points are 
shown including those owned by local authorities. Carmarthenshire 
has 35 charge points including a number of rapids. NPT only has 
one chargepoint open to the public  Asda in Ystalyfera. The only 
other chargepoint is private at Best Western Aberavon Beach Hotel 
(3kw so only suitable for guests). 

influence those areas where the most 
impact can be achieved. 

In terms of EV Charging Infrastructure, 
one of the core projects emerging out of 
the Swansea Bay City Deal is the 

 
the aim of the project being to inform the 
development and implementation of an EV 
charging network that meets the demands 
of residents, businesses and visitors, 
thereby contributing towards solving 

and coverage compared to the rest of the 
UK. This project should be recognised in 
the document. 

With regard to the reference to the PV 
installation at Ysgol Gwaun Cae Gurwen, 
this point is accepted and the document 
should be amended.  

business models for electric 

vehicle charging stations. 

This aim of this project is to inform 
the development and implementation 
of an EV charging network that meets 
the demands of residents, businesses 
and visitors in line with changes to 
national planning policy and will 

in electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure and coverage 
compared to the rest of the UK. 
Predicted outputs include: 
 
 An evidence based electric 

vehicle charging strategy. 
 An Increase in the number of 

charging points in the region. 
 Monitoring of behaviour and data 

analytics to inform future EV 
charging infrastructure 

 

Paragraph 4.2.3.43  amend to read: 

Ysgol 
Gwaun Cae Gurwen, Awelymor 

. 

4 Emma Knight 
 
(FAN 
Community 
Alliance) 

General FAN Community Alliance welcomes this strategy. 

The main issue that we have is that it seemingly lacks public 
engagement, both in the areas of awareness raising and also in 
giving the public a role in helping to deal with this problem. 

We strongly advocate public meetings, people's assemblies, 
workshops etc. through the entire process. We felt it was a shame 
that this is the only method of consultation on the strategy that we 
have seen organised by the Council, despite councillors expressing 
that they wanted to engage people with it. We have attempted to 
organise our own public event and thank the Council for 
considering anything that is raised from it despite it being held after 

The broad comment of support for the 
Strategy is noted.  
 
The Council is committed to continue to 
work and cooperate with a range of 
partner organisations, including cross-
boundary collaboration where appropriate, 
in taking forward and developing further 
the Strategy. 
 
The document highlights that existing 
partnership networks will be utilised 
wherever possible and the Council will 
seek to esta

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 
 
Section 4.2.4  add new sub-section: 
 
Community Involvement 
 
There is considerable public interest 
in the current climate and action will 
be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action 
to address climate change. This will 
also be an opportunity to take a 
collaborative approach to awareness 

Page 152



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

the deadline. 

We would happily work with the Council on this issue  taking the 
public on this journey is of utmost importance if it is to succeed. 

promoted, issues raised, information 
disseminated and best practice shared. 

In respect of community involvement, it is 
accepted that there is considerable public 
interest in the current climate and action 
will be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action to 
address climate change. The scope for 
example of those to be involved on the 
Climate Change Working Group has 
however yet to be established, albeit it is 
anticipated that there will need to be 
representatives from the public, private 
and community / voluntary sectors. 

Notably, i

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will be 
to actively involve residents in decision 
making, so residents can help shape 
proposals at a very early stage. 
 
It is anticipated therefore that the Panel 
will have a role to play with the 
implementation and review of the DARE 
Strategy moving forward. This should be 
recognised in the document. 
 
Moving forward, the Council will continue 
to actively engage with employees and the 
wider public through a variety of means, 
ensuring that the approaches taken as part 
of the wider awareness raising campaign 
are fit for purpose. The use of social media 
in particular will be pursued as far as 
practicable. 

raising campaigns. 
 
In January 2020 the Council launched 

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will 
be to actively involve the public in 
decision making, so residents can 
help shape proposals at a very early 
stage. It is anticipated therefore that 
the Panel will have a key role to play 
in the implementation and review of 

. 

5 Owen Jordan General I very nearly gave up on this. Climate Emergency, what 
emergency? There is obviously not one in NPT. The document 
starts with a boast about renewables, which is only true because 
the borough has the best wind resources on land in Wales; hills that 
look straight out onto the Western Approaches. What is also true, 
and of course gets no mention at all, is that the borough's carbon 
emissions per capita are probably the highest in the world, due to 
the large number of abandoned and unrestored opencast coal 
mines, where vast quantities of high carbon materials, mostly coal 
measure shales, have been dumped into the environment. And 

The DARE Strategy confirms the  
support for the Welsh  
declaration of a   
 
The primary purpose of the DARE 
Strategy is to set out how the Council will 
seek to reduce its own carbon footprint 
when carrying out its operations and 
functions and how the Council will seek to 
set a proactive agenda in its role as 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

Page 153



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

continue to be dumped with NPT's blessing. With not even a fig leaf 
of a capping. That will make NPT the world's worst carbon emitter 
for the next millennium, and then some.  

So, like Thursday's Child, you have far to go. And at present, you 
are in full reverse gear. But I don't think you are alone, if that's any 
comfort to you. 

community leader, landowner, employer, 
regulatory body and service provider. 

Whilst much progress has been made, it is 
accepted that there remains a lot to do if 
we are to meet the kind of expectations 
required. As a Council, we remain 
determined to embrace the task ahead 
and help influence those areas of local life 
where we can make the most impact when 
it comes to decarbonisation and climate 
change. 

6 Stephen Todd General 2 
to build; is a constant terrorist threat; and is not a legacy I want to 
pass onto my grandchildren. The nuclear waste we produce is 
highly toxic, dangerous, needs 24/7 armed security and will last for 
400-500 years! 

The comment is noted  the DARE 
Strategy does not promote the use of 
Nuclear Power. 

Not applicable. 

7 Neil Wagstaff General Initially, I would like to commend NPTCBC's commitment to making 
so many much-needed changes regarding the ways in which we all 
combat the threat of climate change caused by global warming due 
to vast carbon dioxide emissions - past and present. Climate 
change leads to climate chaos, and we're already seeing the effects 
of this in, for example, California, the Bahamas, Japan, as well as 
here in the UK. Following climate chaos comes climate catastrophe, 
where we will see mass starvation caused by crop failures and 
animal die-offs, mass migration caused by droughts, floods, and 
other extreme weather events, and, ultimately, increased global 
conflict and war. 

I support the majority of this strategy document, but I would prefer 
to make an overall general statement regarding decarbonisation in 
local government. 

Firstly, I think it's essential Council consider the recent policy 
document published by Friends of the Earth, titled '33 actions local 
authorities can take on climate change': 

https://policy.friendsoftheearth.uk/insight/33-actions-local-
authorities-can-take-climate-change 

Each section is in two parts, i.e. low or no cost actions that can be 
made very quickly and cheaply; and more expensive actions, which 
require more investment and long-term strategising. 

Secondly, I think it's essential Neath Port Talbot County Borough 
Council declares a climate emergency. Swansea Council has 

The broad comments of support for the 
Strategy are noted. 
 
The DARE Strategy confirms support for 
the Welsh  declaration of a 

  Given however that 
the Welsh Government has already set 
specific targets for Wales, it is not 
considered to be the purpose of the DARE 
Strategy to set specific targets or 
commitments for Neath Port Talbot, 
including those relating to becoming 

  by any given date. 
 
The primary purpose of the Strategy is to 
set out how the Council will seek to 
contribute to the overall national agenda 
and reduce its own carbon footprint when 
carrying out its operations and functions. 
In addition, the Strategy sets out how the 
Council will seek to set a proactive agenda 
in its role as community leader, landowner, 
employer, regulatory body and service 
provider. 

The Strategy recognises both the good 
progress already made and what has the 
potential to be achieved. The Council 
remains determined to embrace the task 
ahead and help influence those areas 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 
 
Section 4.2.4  add new sub-section: 
 
Community Involvement 
 
There is considerable public interest 
in the current climate and action will 
be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action 
to address climate change. This will 
also be an opportunity to take a 
collaborative approach to awareness 
raising campaigns. 
 

In January 2020 the Council launched 

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will 
be to actively involve the public in 
decision making, so residents can 
help shape proposals at a very early 
stage. It is anticipated therefore that 
the Panel will have a key role to play 
in the implementation and review of 

. 

Page 154



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

declared one, and it appears to me NPTCBC is hiding behind the 
Senedd's declaration earlier this year without actually committing to 
one itself.  

The first implication of NPTCBC declaring a climate emergency, 
with regard to Extinction Rebellion's 'Three Demands', is the first 
demand, i.e. to TELL THE TRUTH. I believe there should be a mail-
shot to every letterbox in NPT area stating 'the 
facts' concerning global warming caused by carbon dioxide 
emissions and the limited time we have to make major changes as 
per the IPCC Report in October 2018; stating that the debate 
around climate change is ended according to over 99% of climate 
scientists and that we need to ACT NOW (XR Demand #2); stating 
what the Council will do (as a result of this decarbonisation 
strategy) over the coming years, and what is to be expected of 
residents within the county borough area in the near-to-mid future. 

Thirdly, it is essential that Council decisions are led by a citizens' 
assembly, represented via sortition by the demographic make-up of 
the County Borough's population. While democracy is generally a 
good thing, the kind of representative democracy we have in the 
UK, wherein politicians seek re-election every 4-5 years, has 
served to work against any meaningful and consistent climate 
action over the past 30-40 years. We have lost vital time in 
combatting global warming, and it is my belief that only participatory 
democracy can now expedite the action needed to avoid climate 
catastrophe.  

On a positive level, citizens' assemblies protect politicians from any 
angry fallout that may result from making unpopular decisions (for 
example, banning all cars from a town centre, or adding a green tax 
via a congestion charge). Emmanuel Macron in France fully knows 
what can happen when politicians make unpopular policies 
regarding fuel taxation - I firmly believe a citizens' assembly would 
have prevented the rioting in Paris and any need for 'les gilets 
jaunes' protest group, because the response would have been that 
it was the people's majority decision not the government's. Also, a 
citizens' assembly removes lobbying groups and businesses from 
the democratic decision-making process - decisions are made on a 
moral, ethical, and educated basis, not on their value to a capitalist 
economic system. 

where the most impact can be achieved. 

In respect of community involvement, it is 
accepted that there is considerable public 
interest in the current climate and action 
will be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action to 
address climate change. The scope for 
example of those to be involved on the 
Climate Change Working Group has 
however yet to be established, albeit it is 
anticipated that there will need to be 
representatives from the public, private 
and community / voluntary sectors. 

Notably, i

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will be 
to actively involve residents in decision 
making, so residents can help shape 
proposals at a very early stage. 
 
It is anticipated therefore that the Panel 
will have a role to play with the 
implementation and review of the DARE 
Strategy moving forward. This should be 
recognised in the document. 

CHAPTER 1 - BACKGROUND 

8 Emma Knight  
 
(Extinction 
Rebellion 
Neath Port 

1.1 
Background 

Many now agree that the biodiversity / ecological crisis exists on 
par with the climate crisis. Both issues present distinct existential 
threats to life on this planet, however, they cannot be treated in 
isolation from each other. Consideration must be given to the 
necessity of halting biodiversity loss in any action taken to de-

The comment is noted  it is 
acknowledged and accepted that more 
prominence should be afforded to the role 
of biodiversity and our natural resources in 
addressing climate change. 

That there be a number of amendments 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan  refer to Rep Ref 1 above. 

Page 155



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

Talbot) carbonise the county. 

CHAPTER 3  NEATH PORT TALBOT: ISSUES AND INFLUENCES 

9 Stephen Todd 3 Neath Port 
Talbot - Issues 
and Influences 

There is no indication of total CO2 currently being produced in our 
county. We need this to then reduce and target / tackle it. Add a 
section for current CO2 and then clear targets for reduction, taking 
the latest scientific advice to target best gains (e.g. tackling 
methane, including farming). Then annually gauge progress and 
report it. 

CO2 this produces (e.g. gas power stations and mitigation  if there 
is any). 

The comment is noted  the DARE 
Strategy confirms support for the Welsh 

 declaration of a  
  

 
Given that the Welsh Government has 
already set specific targets for Wales, it is 
not considered to be the purpose of the 
DARE Strategy to set specific targets or 
commitments for Neath Port Talbot, 
including those relating to becoming 

  by any given date. 
 
The primary purpose of the Strategy is to 
set out how the Council will seek to 
contribute to the overall national agenda 
and reduce its own carbon footprint when 
carrying out its operations and functions. 
In addition, the Strategy sets out how the 
Council will seek to set a proactive agenda 
in its role as community leader, landowner, 
employer, regulatory body and service 
provider. 

The Strategy recognises both the good 
progress already made and what has the 
potential to be achieved. The Council 
remains determined to embrace the task 
ahead and help influence those areas 
where the most impact can be achieved. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

10 Emma Knight  
 
(Extinction 
Rebellion 
Neath Port 
Talbot) 

3 Neath Port 
Talbot - Issues 
and Influences 

The coast is mentioned here but with no reference to sea level 
rise. Current predictions show large areas of Neath Port Talbot 
could be flooded by the end of the century  the areas at risk 
should be highlighted. 

only to provide a brief summary of the 
local characteristics of the area as a 
means of setting the context for where the 
most impact on the decarbonisation 
agenda can be achieved. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

CHAPTER 4  VISION AND OBJECTIVES 

11 Emma Knight  
 
(Extinction 
Rebellion 
Neath Port 
Talbot) 

4.1 
Vision and 
Objectives 

Addition to 4.1.3: To host regular People's Assemblies to give the 
public a voice and meaningful role in the decarbonisation of the 
county. 

The comment is noted  the hosting of 

be actions to deliver upon the identified 
objectives, not an objective itself. The 
identified objectives are considered to 
adequately cover the point raised. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

Page 156



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

STRATEGIC THEME 1  TRANSPORTATION 

12 Evan Phillips 4.2.2 
Transportation 

EV Taxis do not require specific infrastructure to support their use. 
Examples in towns like Aberdeen, London and Birmingham show 
that modern EV have a range far greater than the daily usage of a 
normal taxi. 

However, the rapid charging facilities within NPT are practically 
non-existent, with a single rapid charge facility at Shell Fabian Way. 
Additional facilities at Skewen Service Station are promising, but 
these are not ideally located for users of NPT town centres. 

The Council should immediately address the lack of rapid charging 
facilities through a profit share scheme with a major charging 
infrastructure provider (Instavolt, Chargemaster, Podpoint etc.). 

The comment is noted  in terms of EV 
Taxis, the Council does not at this point 
have the necessary taxi usage data to 
evidence whether or not specific 
infrastructure will / will not be required. 
Specific Government funding is however 
available for taxis both for the installation 
of dedicated EV charging and for the 
purchase of vehicles. 

A dedicated officer has now been 
appointed by the WLGA to work directly 
with Welsh Government to drive forward 
improvements and consistent standards in 
taxi licensing.  

A task and finish group bringing together 
individuals that possess relevant 
knowledge and experience of the taxi and 
PHV industry has been created to 
undertake detailed work around safety, 
environment, accessibility and customer 
experience. The task and finish group will 
be working to deliver Welsh Governments 
aim of a zero emission taxi/private hire 
vehicle fleet by 2028. 

In terms of wider EV Charging 
Infrastructure, one of the core projects 
emerging out of the Swansea Bay City 

region  the aim of the project being to 
inform the development and 
implementation of an EV charging network 
that meets the demands of residents, 
businesses and visitors, thereby 

EV charging infrastructure and coverage 
compared to the rest of the UK. This 
project should be recognised in the 
document. 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 

Paragraph 4.2.2.13  delete existing 
wording and replace with: 

published a White Paper 'Improving 
Public Transport', Part 2 of which 
specifically deals with taxis. One of 
the main proposals in the White Paper 
is to create National Standards and it 
is likely that vehicle emissions would 
be a national standard that the Welsh 

. 

en 
appointed by the WLGA to work 
directly with Welsh Government to 
drive forward improvements and 
consistent standards in taxi licensing. 
A task and finish group bringing 
together individuals that possess 
relevant knowledge and experience of 
the taxi industry has been created to 
undertake detailed work around 
safety, environment, accessibility and 
customer experience. The task and 
finish group will be working to deliver 

emission taxi/private hire vehicle fleet 
. 

Add the following new text after 
Paragraph 4.2.2.8: 

out of the Swansea Bay City Deal is 

region. The project has been 
developed in response to the need to 
decarbonise transport and address 
the new challenges posed by the 
increasing number of electric 

Page 157



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

vehicles.  

The project consists of three phases: 
 
 Phase 1  to consult with leading 

academics and industry partners 

to produce an effective, impactful 

and future-proof electric vehicle 

charging strategy; 

 Phase 2  will focus on the 

physical implementation of smart 

charging stations and the grid 

infrastructure required to support 

modern charging technologies; 

and 

 Phase 3  to use information 

gathered from the implemented 

smart charging stations to build a 

detailed dataset of electric vehicle 

charging behaviours within the 

area. This will be used to fuel 

research into topics including 

vehicle-to-grid transfer for flexible 

energy systems, virtual power 

plants, and future economic / 

business models for electric 

vehicle charging stations. 

This aim of this project is to inform 
the development and implementation 
of an EV charging network that meets 
the demands of residents, businesses 
and visitors in line with changes to 
national planning policy and will 

in electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure and coverage 
compared to the rest of the UK. 
Predicted outputs include: 
 
 An evidence based electric 

vehicle charging strategy. 
 An Increase in the number of 

charging points in the region. 
 Monitoring of behaviour and data 

Page 158



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

analytics to inform future EV 
charging infrastructure 

 

13 Kyle Jones 4.2.2 
Transportation 

The plans to improve the infrastructure required for more 
widespread adoption of EVs is a promising action, particularly when 
the action is in synergy with the Taxi Licensing improvements 
proposed. 

The comment of support is noted. Not applicable. 

14 Kyle Jones 4.2.2 
Transportation 

The main railway line between Swansea and London is discussed 
in section 4.2.2.15. Is there a plan to appeal that the remainder of 
the line is electrified? This section reads rather ambiguously and it 
is unclear if this is the intention. 

The extent of electrification of the mainline 
rail was a decision made by UK 
Government in July 2017. Following the 
announcement not to electrify the line 
between Cardiff and Swansea, the Council 
submitted representations to Government, 
however the decision stands.   

The South West Wales Metro Project is 
looking at alternative improvements to the 
rail infrastructure. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

15 Nick Thomas 
 
(Vale 
Memorials 
Ltd) 

4.2.2 
Transportation 

The Implications of Electric Vehicle Adoption  A Discussion 
Document for Glynneath Town Council and Residents 
 
The Electric Vehicle Revolution 

By 2030 100% of new car and van sales will be Electric and by 
2050 100% of manufactures car and van stock will be electric. 
 
There is currently a pot of £400,000,000 available for infrastructure 
spending in the U.K. as a whole. 
 
Since 2008 vehicle manufacturers have had to reduce their 
emissions, below you can see the reductions over the years and 

 

 2008  target 140 g/KM, ac  
 2015   
 2020  target is 95 g/KM, will need 3-  
 2021  target is 95 g/KM, will need 7-  

New EU fleet-wide CO2 emission targets are set for the years 2025 
and 2030, both for newly registered passenger cars and newly 
registered vans. The manufacturers will be fined if they do not 
achieve these targets. 

 2025 - target is -  

The content of the discussion document 

 

Not applicable. 

Page 159



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

 2030 - target is -  

Source  UK Director, Transport & Environment 

In 2012 there were 2,880 E.V. charging points in the U.K, today we 
have 20,598 charging points. Up until 2017, 212,00 Electric and 
Hybrid cars were registered in the U.K.  
 
According to the electric charging point map Zap Map, Wales 
curre
at Feb 2018). 
 
Glynneath is eligible under the rural development programmes 
LEADER FUND and could possibly get funding for an electric 
minibus and charging point, if quick enough. There is £350,000 
available through NPTCBC for green projects. The minibus could 
improve low carbon transport to and from the new Health Centre 

weekend, while their electric vehicles are being charged. 
 
Climate Emergency 
 
The link below is to the Welsh Governments declaration on a 
climate emergency. The sets out the Welsh Governments 
commitment to mitigating the effects of climate change for the 
people of Wales.  
 
https://gov.wales/written-statement-welsh-government-declares-
climate-emergency   
 

 
 
https://gweddill.gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatech
ange/emissions/prosperity-for-all-a-low-carbon-
wales/?skip=1&lang=en&_ga=2.130446735.167800388.156025216
1-588201294.1560252161  
 
The Importance of Charging Infrastructure in Wales 
 
The provision of E.V. charging infrastructure is vital both for 
business and for private individuals as the pace of E.V. adoption 
picks up. This will have implications for workers living in dormitory 
Towns like Glynneath and will have significant implications in terms 
of planning applications in residential areas. 

Below is a link to a draft report by the Welsh government setting out 
what needs to happen in order to develop an effective E.V. 

Page 160



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

infrastructure. 

http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld12394/cr-
ld12394-e.pdf  

Below is a link to some general press releases. 
 
https://gov.wales/electric-charging-points-strategic-road-links-
wales-given-ps2million-funding-boost  
 
Planning Applications and E.V. Adoption 
 
Those who buy an E.V. and have off road parking will generally use 
a charging system at their home to slowly charge their vehicle 
overnight using off peak electricity and will only use fast chargers 
whilst on extended trips.  
 
Typically, charging at home will account for 80% of the time. Those 
of us who do not have off road parking cannot by law run an 
extension lead out to an E.V. across a pavement, which will cause 
a trip hazard. Those who have a front garden will simply make a 
planning application to NPTCBC to drop their pavement and front 
wall so they can charge their vehicle. This may lead to a significant 
reduction in the availability of casual parking in residential areas. 
Such a reduction will inevitably cause ill feeling and could be 
avoided by the provision of adequate E.V. pavement side chargers. 
There is funding of up to 75% available and this would be a useful 

schedule 

A point to note: there are companies (such as Ubertricity, 
https://www.ubitricity.co.uk/) that retrofit street lighting with E.V 
chargers. This means, no digging up the road for cables and the 
grid supply is already there. 
 
Grant Schemes for E.V. Charging Infrastructure  
 
https://www.ugovk/government/collections/government-grants-for-
low-emission-vehicles  
 
Business and E.V. Infrastructure 
 
The A465 is an important and busy main arterial route and 
Glynneath and we have wonderful opportunity to attract both 
passing business to our Town and also to attract new inward 
company investment to the local area. This investment will bring 
jobs into the area. To achieve this we need to target and access the 
funds available to be on the cutting edge of this change not playing 

Page 161



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

e 
coming years.  
 
Infrastructure and Tourism 
 

access fast chargers along with a place to pass the time whilst the 
vehicle is charging. The welfare car park when developed could be 
such a hub for businesses, local people and tourists. From now on 
every parking space provided could have a charger which could in 
turn bring tourists and their money into the town. 
 
The Future 
 
The future development of the car industry is now clearly 
foreseeable and inevitable. Dirty, expensive and inefficient internal 
combustion engines (ICE) will be replaced by clean, ever more 
inexpensive and efficient battery storage and electric motor driven 
vehicles. This change is already gathering momentum. 
 
Awareness of the coming changes will help the council plan to 
reduce the effect of planning applications which could be divisive in 
areas with no off road parking.  
 
There will also be a place for hydrogen fuel cell technology 
especially for larger vehicles but the predominant battery 
technology will, for the foreseeable future be, Lithium Ion. Even 
though there is the possibility of short term supply challenges for 
Lithium Ion batteries these challenges are far less significant than 
those faced by the oil industry whose product is produced largely 
from areas suffering geo political instability. 
 
Glynneath qualifies by virtue of its geographical location and 
excellent road links for a variety of grants from NPTCBC, the Welsh 
Assembly, U.K. government and schemes originated in the private 
sector. 
 
Glynneath could use these funding streams to encourage the early 
adoption of Electric Vehicles by residents and local business. We 
could also encourage tourists into the area along with inward 
investment which will in turn bring jobs. 
 
We should also make efforts to inform the public that they have the 
opportunity to claim grant funding to reduce the cost of purchasing 
an E.V. and charger for their home or work place. 
 
These changes are now inevitable, Glynneath Town council could 

Page 162



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

be a catalyst for early and trouble free adoption of these new and 
exciting, clean technologies. We should make it a priority of the 
Town Council to use these opportunities to the full extent possible 
so as to do our part in the fight against man made climate change. 
Never before has a revolutionary technology been afforded such a 

order to secure the future of our town and the health and wellbeing 
of our community. 

16 Owen Jordan 4.2.2 
Transportation 

Energy and Transport: the key issues were obviously beyond the 
author(s) in terms of both analysis and solutions. I agree they are 

 

The comment is noted. Not applicable. 

17 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.2.4 
Transportation 

Electric Vehicles  need for central facilities for charging points or 
charging points linked to public facilities and larger businesses. 

Include in planning conditions for larger / business developments 
installation of charging points. Future-proof all developments. 

The comments are noted  in terms of 
wider EV Charging Infrastructure, one of 
the core projects emerging out of the 
Swansea Bay City Deal is the 

 

The aim of the project being to inform the 
development and implementation of an EV 
charging network that meets the demands 
of residents, businesses and visitors, 
thereby contributing towards solving 

and coverage compared to the rest of the 
UK. This project should be recognised in 
the document. 

In regard to planning, national policy now 
requires the planning system to encourage 
and support the provision of Ultra Low 
Emission Vehicle (ULEV) charging points 
as part of new development. PPW (Edition 
10) stipulates that where car parking is 
provided for new non-residential 
development, LPAs should seek a 
minimum of 10% of car parking spaces to 
have ULEV charging points. 

The Council will therefore continue to work 
with developers / applicants to ensure the 
level, location and type of charging 
provision is appropriate to the scheme and 
local circumstances. In addition, 
appropriate policies will be developed and 
included as part of the preparation of the 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 

Add the following new text after 
Paragraph 4.2.2.8: 

out of the Swansea Bay City Deal is 

region. The project has been 
developed in response to the need to 
decarbonise transport and address 
the new challenges posed by the 
increasing number of electric 
vehicles.  

The project consists of three phases: 
 
 Phase 1  to consult with leading 

academics and industry partners 

to produce an effective, impactful 

and future-proof electric vehicle 

charging strategy; 

 Phase 2  will focus on the 

physical implementation of smart 

charging stations and the grid 

infrastructure required to support 

modern charging technologies; 

and 

 Phase 3  to use information 

gathered from the implemented 

smart charging stations to build a 

Page 163



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

Replacement LDP. 

 

detailed dataset of electric vehicle 

charging behaviours within the 

area. This will be used to fuel 

research into topics including 

vehicle-to-grid transfer for flexible 

energy systems, virtual power 

plants, and future economic / 

business models for electric 

vehicle charging stations. 

This aim of this project is to inform 
the development and implementation 
of an EV charging network that meets 
the demands of residents, businesses 
and visitors in line with changes to 
national planning policy and will 

in electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure and coverage 
compared to the rest of the UK. 
Predicted outputs include: 
 
 An evidence based electric 

vehicle charging strategy. 
 An Increase in the number of 

charging points in the region. 
 Monitoring of behaviour and data 

analytics to inform future EV 
charging infrastructure 

. 

18 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.2.10 
Transportation 

Integrated Transport Hub  strong support for new integrated 
transport hubs  develop around priority access to hospitals, 
resource centres and valley connection. 

Development of park & rides (along M4 / A465 corridors). Car 
sharing projects. 

Dedicated bus services / transport to link up with larger employers / 
groups of businesses with shift patterns (old DVLA model)  
potential to incorporate in planning applications. 

Provision of EV charging stations in all hubs. 

For successful hubs need sustainable and reliable bus services. Up 
to date, real time information. Not just online information due to lack 

The support for the creation of Integrated 
Transport Hubs at other key locations is 
noted. 

delivered at Port Talbot Parkway and in 
line with the Joint Transport Plan for South 

 LDP 
allocates a site at Junction 38 (M4), 
Margam. The delivery of this site and any 
other potential locations across Neath Port 
Talbot will be reviewed as part of the LDP 
process. 

In terms of EV Charging Infrastructure at 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 

Add the following new text after 
Paragraph 4.2.2.8: 

ing 
out of the Swansea Bay City Deal is 

region. The project has been 
developed in response to the need to 
decarbonise transport and address 
the new challenges posed by the 
increasing number of electric 

Page 164



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

of access. Need on the ground dedicated staff to assist and inform. 

No car days with subsidised public transport. 

all hubs, one of the core projects emerging 
out of the Swansea Bay City Deal is the 

 

The aim of the project being to inform the 
development and implementation of an EV 
charging network that meets the demands 
of residents, businesses and visitors, 
thereby contributing towards solving 

and coverage compared to the rest of the 
UK. This project should be recognised in 
the document. The Council is also aware 
that Transport for Wales (TfW) is 
undertaking a pathfinder pilot project for 
installing EV infrastructure at rail stations. 

The Council is working with TfW on 
looking at the possibility of introducing real 
time information on the bus network. In 
addition, Apps are offering the opportunity 
for real time information and the capacity 
to purchase tickets on line. 

noted. Whilst it is accepted that the 
scheme would generate interest in bus 
travel, such a scheme may prove cost 
prohibitive and would need to be explored 
further before any commitment could be 
made on the part of the Council. 

 

vehicles.  

The project consists of three phases: 
 
 Phase 1  to consult with leading 

academics and industry partners 

to produce an effective, impactful 

and future-proof electric vehicle 

charging strategy; 

 Phase 2  will focus on the 

physical implementation of smart 

charging stations and the grid 

infrastructure required to support 

modern charging technologies; 

and 

 Phase 3  to use information 

gathered from the implemented 

smart charging stations to build a 

detailed dataset of electric vehicle 

charging behaviours within the 

area. This will be used to fuel 

research into topics including 

vehicle-to-grid transfer for flexible 

energy systems, virtual power 

plants, and future economic / 

business models for electric 

vehicle charging stations. 

This aim of this project is to inform 
the development and implementation 
of an EV charging network that meets 
the demands of residents, businesses 
and visitors in line with changes to 
national planning policy and will 
contribute towards solvin
in electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure and coverage 
compared to the rest of the UK. 
Predicted outputs include: 

 An evidence based electric 
vehicle charging strategy. 

 An Increase in the number of 
charging points in the region. 

Page 165



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

 Monitoring of behaviour and data 
analytics to inform future EV 
charging infrastructure 

. 

19 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.2.11 
Transportation 

Taxi Licensing  encourage the uptake of electric taxis; mitigate 
financial impact / charging infrastructure. 

The comment is noted. At this point the 
Council does not have the necessary taxi 
usage data to evidence whether or not 
specific infrastructure will / will not be 
required. Specific Government funding is 
however available for taxis both for the 
installation of dedicated EV charging and 
for the purchase of vehicles. 

It should be noted that a dedicated officer 
has now been appointed by the WLGA to 
work directly with Welsh Government to 
drive forward improvements and 
consistent standards in taxi licensing.  

A task and finish group bringing together 
individuals that possess relevant 
knowledge and experience of the taxi and 
PHV industry has been created to 
undertake detailed work around safety, 
environment, accessibility and customer 
experience. The task and finish group will 
be working to deliver Welsh Governments 
aim of a zero emission taxi/private hire 
vehicle fleet by 2028. 

Paragraph 4.2.2.13  delete existing 
wording and replace with: 

published a White Paper 'Improving 
Public Transport', Part 2 of which 
specifically deals with taxis. One of 
the main proposals in the White Paper 
is to create National Standards and it 
is likely that vehicle emissions would 
be a national standard that the Welsh 
Government would l . 

appointed by the WLGA to work 
directly with Welsh Government to 
drive forward improvements and 
consistent standards in taxi licensing. 
A task and finish group bringing 
together individuals that possess 
relevant knowledge and experience of 
the taxi industry has been created to 
undertake detailed work around 
safety, environment, accessibility and 
customer experience. The task and 
finish group will be working to deliver 

emission taxi/private hire vehicle fleet 
. 

20 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.2.15 
Transportation 

Mainline Rail  promote electrification. Future proof infrastructure to 
allow redevelopment of valley lines and links with transport hubs. 

The comment is noted.  

The South West Wales Metro Project is 
looking at improvements to the South 
Wales Mainline along with the feasibility of 
Swansea Bay routes, including Valleys 
lines. These proposals will link with 
Primary, Secondary and Community Hubs.  

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

STRATEGIC THEME 2  BUILDINGS AND SPACES 

21 Kyle Jones 4.2.3  
Buildings and 
Spaces 

In several sections including 4.2.3.4, it is mentioned that a number 
of buildings will be required to achieve a BREEAM Excellent rating - 
will a similar rating also be required of new residential 

Whilst BREEAM is required when the 
Council is in receipt of larger Welsh 
Government grant funding packages for 

Not applicable. 

Page 166



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

developments such as housing? This would appear to be the intent 
following the recent publicity regarding the new housing 
developments planned for Wenham Place in Neath which feature 
solar PVs, Tesla batteries and a number of other environmentally 
friendly design decisions that bear a resemblance to those in 
Picture 4.4. 

Further to this, the intent to develop Homes as Power Stations 
(HAPS) is discussed, are there plans to provide subsidies or 
schemes to improve existing housing and/or other infrastructure not 
owned by the public sector? 

new buildings, there is no requirement for 
BREEAM on new residential 
developments. 

Notwithstanding this point, the Council will 
however continue to take the lead on 
promoting and delivering Haps as part of 
the wider Swansea Bay City Deal and 
work with developers to identify 
opportunities to deliver higher sustainable 
building standards including zero carbon 
homes. 

The Council is not aware of any plans at 
present to provide subsidies or schemes to 
improve existing housing and/or other 
infrastructure not owned by the public 
sector. 

22 Kyle Jones 4.2.3  
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Methane (CH4) is one of the most harmful greenhouse gases and 
is mentioned in section 4.2.3.41 as being produced during 
anaerobic digestion (AD) in order to convert into electricity - will the 
process use 100% of the methane produced? 

Yes, in the controlled environment of the 
Anaerobic Digester, 100% of the methane 
is captured in the 

produce heat or generate electricity. 

Not applicable. 

23 Kyle Jones 4.2.3  
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Sections 4.2.3.25 and 4.2.3.37 discuss the production of and 
analysing of data from sources such as sensors. Will this data 
and/or the associated analytical applications be open source and/or 
publicly available in order to more strongly align with the Open 
Government Data (OGD) philosophy? Further to this, will there be 
opportunities to volunteer in the development of any associated 
applications? 

The comment is noted  however, the 
Council is not yet in a position to confirm 
whether the data and/or the analytical 
applications will be made publicly 
available. 

Not applicable. 

24 Owen Jordan 4.2.3  
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Scratching around for scraps of comfort, I looked at the 'Homes as 
Power stations' section. Now I built one of these some years ago. 
NPT has just overseen its destruction. But there are no details, so it 
is just a vague statement of hope. The rest was simply just jargon-
filled hot air. A ground source heat pump - hardly novel - for a 
tourist 'attraction' that never has any visitors, perhaps sums it up. 
Boasts about renewables research based in Swansea and Cardiff 
could be made across the whole of the UK; all the universities are 
in on it. The results are neither yours to boast about nor very 
exciting; this is simply grants for projects that are 'safe' for the grant 
organisations, where the universities involvement means that failure 
to deliver much - or anything - deflects blame for that failure. 

As I am involved in climate change related innovation - real, not 1% 
stuff of this kind - at universities outside Wales - I scrolled through 
the brief CV's of the university staff to see if there was anyone with 

The DARE Strategy sets out how the 
Council will lead by example and reduce 
its own carbon footprint when carrying out 
its operations and functions. It also sets a 
proactive agenda for the Council in its role 
as community leader, landowner, 
employer, regulatory body and service 
provider so that we can work in 
partnership with other public and private 
sector organisations. 

Whilst much progress has been made, it is 
accepted that there remains a lot to do if 
we are to meet the kind of expectations 
required. As a Council, we remain 
determined to embrace the task ahead 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

Page 167



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

whom I could engage. Sadly, there was no-one. and help influence those areas of local life 
where we can make the most impact when 
it comes to decarbonisation and climate 
change. 

25 Viv Nicholson 4.2.3  
Buildings and 
Spaces 

I would like to make a recommendation on the provision of a 
renewable energy site, namely for Solar Panels. The site could be 
positioned on the existing but unoccupied industrial site. It would be 
unlikely to cause a problem; the site is situated to the north of 
Pontardawe and located between the bypass and the Canal. The 
site is shielded by trees on the eastern side and I believe the 
positioning of the panels would be unlikely to cause a problem for 
those living on Brecon Road etc. 

The land to the north of the existing, but unoccupied, Industrial Park 
could potentially lead to an extension of the site up to the end of the 
bypass. This area has the potential to provide further power 
generation in the form of water-driven generators. 

One thing that Wales has in abundance is water and this area has 
the canal and the river in close proximity. Towers, of the type that 
exists just off the River Tawe in the Port Talbot area, could be used 
to store water during the day and used to provide power when night 
comes. There would be little loss of water, as the used water could 
easily be returned to the river after use. I have never seen the river 
or the canal run dry. 

The comment is noted  the strategy and 

Local Development Plan (LDP) seeks to 
encourage and deliver a proportionate 

renewable energy targets and energy 
efficient targets. 

The process for reviewing the LDP is now 
underway and in the Autumn of this year, 
the Council will be inviting submission of 

 
should this land be submitted to the 
Council at this stage it will be assessed to 
establish the suitability or otherwise of the 
suggested use. Alternatively, the 
landowner or developer could approach 
the Planning Department and enter into 
pre-application discussions at any stage.  

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

26 Tim Thomas 
 
(Residential 
Landlords 
Association) 

4.2.3  
Buildings and 
Spaces 

The Residential Landlords Association (RLA) supports Neath Port 
Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy. 

 
nt that 

the authority has obligations to reduce carbon emissions especially 
given the local characteristics of the area being a major driver 

ther factors that 
can be at the detriment of good air quality. 
 
Given that we as an organisation lobby on behalf of private 
residential landlords, we are also pleased to see your document 
references fuel poverty and affordable warmth. This is a particular 
issue for the Private Rented Sector due to the large proportion of 
housing stock that was built pre 1919, the prevalence of single 
cavity walls and the limited financial support on offer to landlords, 
which is especially concerning given the PRS is increasingly 
housing some of the most vulnerable tenants.  
 
We welcome the improvement programmes that the authority has 
already engaged in to tackle fuel poverty, but would like to highlight 
the ECO 3 / ECO Flex programme which is UK Government money 

The comments of support are noted. Not applicable. 

Page 168



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

available on offer for local authorities to use at greater discretion to 
tackle fuel poverty in both the PRS and owner occupied sector. 
 
We would be delighted to engage with the authority to discuss any 
pertinent issues within the PRS particularly fuel poverty and energy 
efficiency. We would also welcome any opportunities to further 
engage with you on any potential strategies that look at these 
issues in greater detail. 

27 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.3.5 
Buildings and 
Spaces 

BREEAM  NPTCBC to lead by example on all large developments 
regarding energy efficiency. 

The comment is noted  the DARE 
Strategy highlights a range of examples 
where the Council is setting the example 
promoting and delivering energy efficient / 

 examples 
include the 21st Century Strategic Schools 

Technology Centre. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

28 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.3.9/10 
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Promotion and Delivery of Energy Positive Buildings  full support 
. 

The comment of support is noted. Not applicable. 

29 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.3.11 
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Need to strengthen promotion and education around Haps. 
Organise public access visits to developments. More education and 
information in schools but also for wider public to encourage energy 
efficiency along with financial incentives. 

The comment is noted  the Council has 
taken the lead on promoting and delivering 
Homes as Power Stations (Haps) as part 
of the wider City Region Deal. 
Opportunities for further promotion and 
education around the Haps concept will be 
implemented moving forward. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

30 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.3.40 
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Waste Management  continue to develop and improve recycling 
services and facilities; terra-cycle points; provide kerbside small 
electrical recycling collection; education; penalties (?); disposable 
nappy recycling collection. 

The comment is noted  the Council 
follows the Welsh Government blueprint 
for recycling and is currently on target for 
meeting the stringent recycling targets set 
out for Local Authorities in Wales  it is 
recognised however that there is more to 
be done. 
 
The Council updated its Waste Strategy in 
July 2018 and is committed to further 
developing and improving recycling 
services and facilities. Th
Waste Strategy is due for review in 
2020/21. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

31 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.3.55 
Buildings and 
Spaces 

Green Infrastructure / Ecosystems  more tree planting schemes. 
Increase number of trees on roadside and in town centre (fruit 
trees); herb gardens in public spaces (planters); potential for eco 
projects in our local green open spaces. Involve children in 

The comment is noted  it is 
acknowledged and accepted that more 
prominence should be afforded to the role 
of biodiversity/ecosystems, green 

That there be a number of amendments 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan  refer to Rep Ref 1 above. 

Page 169



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

recycling; encourage local residents to utilise unadopted spaces for 
wild flowers / food growing. 

infrastructure and our natural resources in 
addressing climate change. 

STRATEGIC THEME 3  INFLUENCING BEHAVIOUR 

32 Kyle Jones 4.2.4 
Influencing 
Behaviour 

One of the single biggest actions an individual can take in order to 
reduce their climate footprint is to reduce or even completely 
remove animal based products (particularly those from bovine 
mammals such as cows) from their diets, however this is not 
mentioned anywhere in the draft - particularly in section 4.2.4 which 
is entitled Influencing Behaviour. Further action could include 
making it mandatory that every public sector menu have a 
vegetarian and vegan suitable option available. 

The comment is noted  the DARE 
Strategy focuses on how and where the 
Council can reduce its own carbon 
footprint when carrying out its operations 
and functions and also where the Council 
can make the most impact when it comes 
to the decarbonisation agenda. 

Whilst Paragraph 4.2.4.8 highlights that 
the Council will continue to actively 
engage with employees and the wider 
public to raise awareness of the role that 
individuals can take in the decarbonisation 
agenda, it is accepted that a bullet point 
could be added to provide further clarity. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

Paragraph 4.2.4.8  add new bullet 
point: 
 
Promote lifestyle changes that 

footprint, such as waste reduction, 
sustainable purchasing, reduced 
consumption of food products with a 
high carbon footprint and reducing 
private vehicular use . 

 

33 Emma Knight  
 
(Extinction 
Rebellion 
Neath Port 
Talbot) 

4.2.4 
Influencing 
Behaviour 

If the county is to successfully de-carbonise, the general public 
need to be included in the decision making. You mention a climate 
working group, but who will actually be invited to that? A diverse 
range of voices and opinions from people that are unlikely to join 
such "working groups" can often spark much needed conversations 
and ideas. Publicly held people's assemblies would offer this 
opportunity - hold them in the street in key locations in the town 
centres so passers-by can stumble in and take part. Encourage and 
enable everyone to be a part of the process. 

The comment is noted  in respect of 
community involvement, it is accepted that 
there is considerable public interest in the 
current climate and action will be more 
effective by ensuring that the wider public 
is involved in any action to address climate 
change. The scope for example of those to 
be involved on the Climate Change 
Working Group has however yet to be 
established, albeit it is anticipated that 
there will need to be representatives from 
the public, private and community / 
voluntary sectors. 
 
Notably, i

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will be 
to actively involve residents in decision 
making, so residents can help shape 
proposals at a very early stage. 
 
It is anticipated therefore that the Panel 
will have a role to play with the 
implementation and review of the DARE 
Strategy moving forward. This should be 
recognised in the document. 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 
 
Section 4.2.4  add new sub-section: 
 
Community Involvement 
 
There is considerable public interest 
in the current climate and action will 
be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action 
to address climate change. This will 
also be an opportunity to take a 
collaborative approach to awareness 
raising campaigns. 
 
In January 2020 the Council launched 

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will 
be to actively involve the public in 
decision making, so residents can 
help shape proposals at a very early 
stage. It is anticipated therefore that 
the Panel will have a key role to play 
in the implementation and review of 

. 

Page 170



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

34 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.4.5 
Influencing 
Behaviour 

Sustainable Procurement  there needs to be a balance between 
procuring goods and services to large scale providers (who have 
environmental policies and practices) and local providers (who 
could potentially need support to have policies in place). Support 
local businesses and suppliers to operate in  

The comment is noted  

opportunity to influence the behaviour of 
others and to raise awareness within 
businesses and suppliers (large and small) 
of their need to consider their sustainable 
credentials and carbon footprints. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

35 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.4.6/7 
Influencing 
Behaviour 

Partnership Working  continue and expand on partnership working 
with public, community groups and businesses; look to end goal 
and work backwards to save resources and expenditure; encourage 
workshops for sustainable practices  recycling, upcycling, diet etc. 

The comment is noted. The Council is 
committed to continue to work and 
cooperate with a range of partner 
organisations, including cross-boundary 
collaboration where appropriate, in taking 
forward and developing further the 
Strategy. 
 
The document highlights that existing 
partnership networks will be utilised 
wherever possible and the Council will 

promoted, issues raised, information 
disseminated and best practice shared. 
 
In respect of community involvement, it is 
accepted that there is considerable public 
interest in the current climate and action 
will be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action to 
address climate change. The scope for 
example of those to be involved on the 
Climate Change Working Group has 
however yet to be established, albeit it is 
anticipated that there will need to be 
representatives from the public, private 
and community / voluntary sectors. 
 
Notably, i

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will be 
to actively involve residents in decision 
making, so residents can help shape 
proposals at a very early stage. 
 
It is anticipated therefore that the Panel 
will have a role to play with the 
implementation and review of the DARE 
Strategy moving forward. This should be 
recognised in the document. 

That the following amendments be 
incorporated into the Strategy/Action 
Plan: 
 
Section 4.2.4  add new sub-section: 
 
Community Involvement 
 
There is considerable public interest 
in the current climate and action will 
be more effective by ensuring that the 
wider public is involved in any action 
to address climate change. This will 
also be an opportunity to take a 
collaborative approach to awareness 
raising campaigns. 
 
In January 2020 the Council launched 

purposes of this demographically 
representative group of residents, will 
be to actively involve the public in 
decision making, so residents can 
help shape proposals at a very early 
stage. It is anticipated therefore that 
the Panel will have a key role to play 
in the implementation and review of 

. 

Page 171



Ref Name Para/Section Representation Officer Response Officer Recommendation 

36 Jeremy Miles 
& FAN 
Community 
Alliance 

4.2.4.8 
Influencing 
Behaviour 

Awareness Raising Campaign  put climate / sustainability leaflets 
through every door; promote and support good community / 
business practice with social media campaigns. 

The comment is noted. The Council will 
continue to actively engage with 
employees and the wider public through a 
variety of means, ensuring that the 
approaches taken as part of the wider 
awareness raising campaign are fit for 
purpose. The use of social media in 
particular will be pursued as far as 
practicable. 

That there be no change to the Strategy 
/ Action Plan. 

 
 

 
  

Page 172



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 

DARE Strategy (Tracked Changes  April 2020) 

Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



APPENDIX 3  DARE Strategy: First Stage Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative Description/Summary: Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy 

Service Area:  Planning and Public Protection 

Directorate:  Environment 

 

2. Does the initiative affect:   
 
 Yes No 

Service Users   

Staff   

Wider Community   

Internal administrative process only    

 

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes No None/ 
Negligible Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age       
Climate Change affects all generations and all areas of 
society. The Strategy/Action Plan sets out a vision, 
objectives and a series of actions which together will seek 
to help the Council meet its carbon footprint reduction 
aspirations and contribute to meeting national targets.  

 

Implementation of the Strategy will be inclusive and will 
involve the Council working with all staff, the wider public 
and a wide range of partner organisations including those 
from the public, private and community/voluntary sectors. 

Disability       

Gender Reassignment      

Marriage/Civil Partnership      

Pregnancy/Maternity      

Race      

Religion/Belief      

Sex      

Sexual orientation      

 

Page 230



4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible know 
Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / How 
might it impact? 

use the Welsh language  
     There is no direct, clear link with the Welsh language. 

Opportunities arising from action to reduce emissions (e.g. local 
jobs in energy efficiency or community renewables), may 
encourage people in rural areas where there is a higher proportion 
of Welsh speakers to remain in their communities, helping to 
sustain the language in those areas. 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

     There is no direct, clear link with the Welsh language. 
Opportunities arising from action to reduce emissions (e.g. local 
jobs in energy efficiency or community renewables), may 
encourage people in rural areas where there is a higher proportion 
of Welsh speakers to remain in their communities, helping to 
sustain the language in those areas. 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes No None/ 
Negligible know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and enhance 
biodiversity 

   

 

H 

Climate change affects biodiversity in many ways. Impacts on 
species include changes in distribution and abundance, the timing 
of seasonal events and habitat use. Rising sea temperatures and 
acidity are linked with various changes in biodiversity in UK marine 
and coastal ecosystems. Climate driven changes to salinity, wind, 
waves and currents are also having an impact. 

By developing the Strategy/Action Plan, the Council is able to set 
out a direction of travel to meet its longer term carbon footprint 

emissions will help lessen the risks to biodiversity (e.g. risks to 
species/habitats due to inability to respond to changing climatic 
conditions; risks to soils and carbon stores etc.). 

Page 231



To promote the resilience 
of ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of the 
wider environment, such as 
air quality, flood alleviation, 
etc.  

   

 

H 

Climate change affects biodiversity in many ways. Impacts on 
species include changes in distribution and abundance, the timing 
of seasonal events and habitat use. Rising sea temperatures and 
acidity are linked with various changes in biodiversity in UK marine 
and coastal ecosystems. Climate driven changes to salinity, wind, 
waves and currents are also having an impact. 

By developing the Strategy/Action Plan, the Council is able to set 
out a direction of travel to meet its longer term carbon footprint 
reduction aspi
emissions will help lessen the risks to biodiversity (e.g. risks to 
species/habitats due to inability to respond to changing climatic 
conditions; risks to soils and carbon stores etc.). 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes No Details 

Long term - how the initiative supports the 
long term well-being of people  

  

By developing the Strategy/Action Plan, the Council is able to set out a direction 
of travel to meet its longer term carbon footprint reduction aspirations. The 

impacts to Wales and the world arising from increased global average 
temperatures. These impacts include flooding, risks to health, water shortages 
and risks to biodiversity. 

Integration -  how the initiative impacts 
upon our wellbeing objectives  

  

Positive action on climate change is far reaching and all-encompassing and 

decarbonised economy, will ultimately improve the well-being of children, young 
people and all adults living in the County Borough, and develop the local economy 
and environment so that the well-being of people can be improved. 

Involvement -  how people have been 
involved in developing the initiative  

  

involved in developing the Strategy/Action Plan. This is primarily due to the fact 
that those employed within the Environment Directorate will have more direct 
involvement in delivering the action plan. In terms of implementation, it is the 
intention to es
external approaches can be promoted, issues raised, information disseminated 

Page 232



 
7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this Conclusion    

Equalities  climate change affects all generations and all areas of society. Implementation of the Strategy/Action Plan will be inclusive and will 
involve the Council working with all staff, the wider public and a wide range of partner organisations including those from the public, private and 
community / voluntary sectors. 

Welsh Language  there is no direct, clear link with the Welsh language. Opportunities arising from action to reduce emissions (e.g. local jobs in 
energy efficiency or community renewables), may however encourage people in rural areas where there is a higher proportion of Welsh speakers to 
remain in their communities, helping to sustain the language in those areas. 

Biodiversity  climate change affects biodiversity in many ways. Reducing Neath Por
biodiversity (e.g. risks to species/habitats due to inability to respond to changing climatic conditions; risks to soils and carbon stores etc.). 

Well-being of Future Generation (5 ways of Working)  the Strategy/Action Plan embraces all five ways of working. The framework provides 
-being objectives; 

involves people and partners in its development and implementation; and seeks to prevent problems getting worse.  

 

and best practice shared. The Working Group will provide the mechanism to 
ensure the Strategy/Action Plan remains fit for purpose and responsive to 
changes in circumstances. 

Collaboration - how we have worked with 
other services/organisations to find shared 
sustainable solutions 

  

footprint reduction aspirations. Achieving the identified actions will require 
significant contributions internally from across the Council and externally, from a 
wide variety of partner organisations, including cross-boundary collaboration 
where appropriate. Partner organisations will include those from the public, private 
and community/voluntary sectors. 

Prevention -  how the initiative will prevent 
problems occurring or getting worse  

  

By seeking to address greenhouse gas emissions, the Strategy/Action Plan sets 
the framework for tackling the root cause of issues and risks associated with 
climate change at the local level. The various actions (individually and collectively, 
will reduce emissions and therefore help to reduce the global impacts of climate 
change. The ongoing monitoring and evaluation will enable the Council to limit 
any unintended consequences and help mitigate any negative impacts. 

Page 233



A full impact assessment (second stage) is required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

 

 

 
 

 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Ceri Morris Head of Planning and Public Protection 18th March 2020 

Signed off by  Nicola Pearce Director of Environment and Regeneration 18th March 2020 

Page 234



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL

CABINET 
21st May 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 
David W. Griffiths

Matter for Decision   

Wards Affected:  Bryncoch South

(LEIROS PARC DRIVE and RAVENSWOOD CLOSE, BRYNCOCH, 
NEATH)(PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANYTIME) Order 2020.

Purpose of the Report:

To consider the objection received following the advertisement of the above 
traffic regulation order as indicated in Appendix A.  

Executive Summary:

One letter objecting to the scheme was received.

One letter supporting the scheme was received.

One telephone call supporting the scheme was received.

The report outlines the objection and the recommendations for the scheme.

Background:

The local members and residents have raised concerns of indiscriminate 
parking on Leiros Parc Drive particularly on the bend which can cause 
oncoming vehicles, including the local bus service, difficulty due to parked 
vehicles.

Page 235

Agenda Item 9



Financial Impacts:

The work is to be funded from the Capital Works Programme.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh 
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated that a more 
in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is included below:-

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposed traffic regulation order 
will provide a benefit for the local community.  

Valleys Communities Impacts: 

No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.

Legal Impacts:

The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period as part of the statutory 
process.  

Risk Management Impacts: 

No implications.

Page 236



Consultation:

A consultation exercise was undertaken in February/March 2020.

One letter objecting to the scheme was received.

One letter supporting the scheme was received.

One telephone call supporting the scheme was received.

The objection is summarised as follows:-

The objector has concerns that they and members of their family will no 
longer be able to park outside their property. They have requested that 
residential parking is provided.

The objection has been discussed with the local Councillors who have agreed 
that the scheme should proceed as advertised.

Leiros Parc Drive would not meet the current criteria for a residential parking 
scheme to be considered.

Recommendations:

It is recommended that the objection to (Leiros Parc Drive and Ravenswood 
Close, Bryncoch, Neath)(Prohibition of Waiting at Anytime) order 2020 (as 
detailed in Appendix A to the circulated report ) be over ruled and that the 
traffic regulation order is implemented as advertised.

That the objector be informed accordingly.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of highway safety.   

Implementation of Decision:

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period. 

Page 237



Appendices:

Appendix A – Plan – Proposed traffic order- Leiros Parc Drive, Bryncoch, 
Neath.

Appendix B – Integrated Impact Assessment.

List of Background Papers:

None.

Officer Contact:

Martin Brumby, Project Manager Highways - Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No: 01639 686013
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk 

James Kane, Senior Assistant Engineer - Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No: 01639 686465
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk 

Page 238

mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk


S:\MISCELLANEOUS\Martin's work\Trebanos Feasability\location amended plan_recover.dwg

ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT

NICOLA PEARCE BSC (Hons), Dip TP, MRTPI

 DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION

THE QUAYS, BRUNEL WAY

BAGLAN ENERGY PARK

NEATH SA11 2GG

A3
J
o

b
 
T

i
t
l
e

D
r
g

.
 
N

o
.

Date

Approved

Drawing No.

File No.

Drawn

Date

Scales

Financial Code No.

Checked

Date

Job Title

Ch

Client

Rev Details Dr Ap Date

NOTES

2. Ordnance Survey Licence:

© Crown Copyright and Database Right

2013. Ordnance Survey 100023392.

© Hawlfraint a hawilau cronfa ddata’r goron

2013. Rhid trwydded yr arolwg ordnans

100023392.

1. All dimensions are in millimetres

unless   otherwise stated.

TR14 26.007500.B054.266258

JJD

NOV'19

MCB

NOV'19

HIH

NOV'19

NTS

C60730/TRO-1

SWANSEA ROAD,

TREBANOS

PROPOSED SPEED CUSHIONS &

TRAFFIC ORDERS

PROPOSED SPEED

CUSHIONS 65mm HIGH.

PROPOSED NO WAITING,

LOADING AND

UNLOADING AT ANY

TIME ORDER.

APPENDIX A

P
age 239

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
DAN Y GRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
91a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Ardwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
B 4603

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Capel y Graig

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Trebanos House

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
Parc-y-rhos

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Y Groesfan

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
100c

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
100f

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
100h

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Ysgol Gynradd

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Gymraeg

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Trebannws

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
SWANSEA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
GRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
%%UTHIS IS A C.A.D. PRODUCED DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
SE



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Impact Assessment - First Stage

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language 
as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of 
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge.
The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second 
stage).   

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them.

When completing the first step you must have regard to the following: 

 Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, raised? (For example, 
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disabled 
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools)

 Is there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment 
opportunities for disabled people). 

 Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affected or where the 
language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a 
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;  

 Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent 
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being;  changes 
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers)

1. Provide a description and summary of the initiative. 
Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative.
 

2. Identify who will be affected by the initiative. 
If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment  
If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 – 
sustainable development principle.  

3. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people who 
share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community.

P
age 241



2

Some things to consider include: 

 transport issues 
 accessibility 
 customer service
 cultural sensitivity
 financial implications  
 loss of jobs  

Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative): 

 High – likely to be highly affected by the initiative  
 Medium - likely to be affected in some way 
 Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way
 Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown

You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision. 

4. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunities to 
use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English. 
Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3.
The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4.

 
5. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c of the Well-

being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working:

 Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people 
 Integration -  how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives 
 Involvement -  how people have been involved in developing the initiative 
 Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions; 
 Prevention -  how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse 

P
age 242



3

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and an 
explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given. 

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included. 

Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will 
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately. 

A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.

Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director. 

 

 
 

P
age 243



4

Impact Assessment - First Stage 

1. Details of the initiative 

Initiative description and summary: (LEIROS PARC DRIVE and RAVENSWOOD CLOSE, BRYNCOCH, 
NEATH)(PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANYTIME) Order 2020.
Service Area:  Bryncoch South
Directorate: Environment.

2. Does the initiative affect:  
Yes No

Service users        
Staff 

Wider community 

Internal administrative process only 

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their: 

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
Know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact?

Age 

Disability 

Gender Reassignment 

Marriage/Civil Partnership 

Pregnancy/Maternity 

Race 

Religion/Belief 

Sex 

P
age 244



5

Sexual orientation 

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes No None/
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact?

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language 



Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English 



5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) / 
How might it impact?

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity 

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 



P
age 245



6

such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc. 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes No Details

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people 

 The proposed scheme will prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of 
highway safety.

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives 

   The proposed scheme will prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of 
highway safety.

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative 

 The Highways section, Local Members for Bryncoch South and the Legal 
section have worked together on this initiative.

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions

 The Highways section, Local Members for Bryncoch South and the Legal 
section have worked together on this initiative.

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse 

 The proposed scheme will prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of 
highway safety.

P
age 246



7

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required  

Reasons for this conclusion   

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposals will provide a benefit for the local community.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required 

Reasons for this conclusion   

P
age 247



8

Name Position Signature Date
Completed by Hasan Hasan Engineering Manager 18/05/2020
Signed off by David Griffiths Head of Service/Director 18/05/2020

P
age 248



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET
21st May 2020

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport 
David W. Griffiths

Matter for Decision   

Wards Affected:  Trebanos

(SWANSEA ROAD, TREBANOS)(REVOCATION)( PROHIBITION OF 
WAITING, LOADING OR UNLOADING AT ANY TIME ) and (SPEED 
CUSHIONS) Order 2020. 

Purpose of the Report:

To consider the objection received following the advertisement of the above 
traffic regulation order as indicated in Appendix A.  

Executive Summary:

One letter of objection to the traffic regulation order was received.

The report outlines the objection and the recommendations for the scheme.

Background:

The local member for Trebanos has requested that the priority build-out 
located on Swansea Road adjacent to the school be removed (revocation of 
existing traffic regulation order). This is following numerous complaints from 
residents living on Swansea Road raising concerns about driver behaviour 
associated with the build out.  As a consequence of removing the priority 
build-out a proposal to implement a set of three speed cushions with 
associated parking restrictions is required in order to reduce traffic speed and 

Page 249

Agenda Item 10



to allow the safe passage for emergency service vehicles and public transport 
to align themselves in order to straddle the cushions.   

Financial Impacts:

The work will be funded from the capital works programme.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh 
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated that a more 
in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is included below:-

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposed traffic regulation order 
will provide a benefit for the local community.  

Valleys Communities Impacts: 

No implications.

Workforce Impacts:

There are no workforce impacts associated with this report.

Legal Impacts:

The scheme was advertised for a 21-day period as part of the statutory 
process.  

Risk Management Impacts: 

No implications.

Page 250



Consultation:

A consultation exercise was undertaken in January / February 2020.
 
One email objecting to the scheme was received:-

The objector has concern that there will be nowhere for visitors to be park 
when they visit as there are already parking restrictions due to the school 
keep clear road markings that are installed on this section of Swansea Road.

The objector does not object to the implementation of the speed cushions.

The objection has been discussed with the local member who fully 
supports the scheme as advertised.

Recommendations:

It is recommended that the objection to the (Swansea Road, 
Trebanos)(Revocation)( Prohibition of Waiting, Loading or Unloading at 
Any Time) and (Speed Cushions) Order 2020 (as detailed in Appendix A 
to the circulated report ) be over ruled and that the traffic regulation order 
be implemented as  advertised.

That the objector be informed accordingly.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To reduce traffic speed adjacent to the school and to allow the safe passage 
for emergency service vehicles and public transport to align themselves in 
order to straddle the cushions in the interest of road safety.   

Implementation of Decision:

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period. 

Appendices:

Appendix A – Plan – Swansea Road, Trebanos. Proposed Speed Cushions 
and Traffic Orders.

Page 251



Appendix B – Integrated Impact Assessment.

List of Background Papers:

None.

Officer Contact:

Martin Brumby, Project Manager Highways - Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No: 01639 686013
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk 

Jonathan Davies Assistant Engineer - Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No: 01639 686494
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk 

Page 252

mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk


S:\MISCELLANEOUS\Martin's work\Trebanos Feasability\location amended plan_recover.dwg

ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT

NICOLA PEARCE BSC (Hons), Dip TP, MRTPI

 DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION

THE QUAYS, BRUNEL WAY

BAGLAN ENERGY PARK

NEATH SA11 2GG

A3
J
o

b
 
T

i
t
l
e

D
r
g

.
 
N

o
.

Date

Approved

Drawing No.

File No.

Drawn

Date

Scales

Financial Code No.

Checked

Date

Job Title

Ch

Client

Rev Details Dr Ap Date

NOTES

2. Ordnance Survey Licence:

© Crown Copyright and Database Right

2013. Ordnance Survey 100023392.

© Hawlfraint a hawilau cronfa ddata’r goron

2013. Rhid trwydded yr arolwg ordnans

100023392.

1. All dimensions are in millimetres

unless   otherwise stated.

TR14 26.007500.B054.266258

JJD

NOV'19

MCB

NOV'19

HIH

NOV'19

NTS

C60730/TRO-1

SWANSEA ROAD,

TREBANOS

PROPOSED SPEED CUSHIONS &

TRAFFIC ORDERS

PROPOSED SPEED

CUSHIONS 65mm HIGH.

PROPOSED NO WAITING,

LOADING AND

UNLOADING AT ANY

TIME ORDER.

APPENDIX A

P
age 253

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
DAN Y GRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
91a

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Towing Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Ardwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
B 4603

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Capel y Graig

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Trebanos House

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Parc-y-rhos

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Y Groesfan

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
100c

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
100f

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
100h

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Ysgol Gynradd

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Gymraeg

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Trebannws

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
SWANSEA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
GRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
%%UTHIS IS A C.A.D. PRODUCED DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
SE



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Impact Assessment - First Stage

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language 
as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of 
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge.
The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second 
stage).   

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them.

When completing the first step you must have regard to the following: 

 Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, raised? (For example, 
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disabled 
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools)

 Is there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment 
opportunities for disabled people). 

 Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affected or where the 
language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a 
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;  

 Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent 
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being;  changes 
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers)

1. Provide a description and summary of the initiative. 
Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative.
 

2. Identify who will be affected by the initiative. 
If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment  
If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 – 
sustainable development principle.  

3. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people who 
share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community.

P
age 255



2

Some things to consider include: 

 transport issues 
 accessibility 
 customer service
 cultural sensitivity
 financial implications  
 loss of jobs  

Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative): 

 High – likely to be highly affected by the initiative  
 Medium - likely to be affected in some way 
 Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way
 Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown

You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision. 

4. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunities to 
use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English. 
Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3.
The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4.

 
5. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c of the Well-

being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working:

 Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people 
 Integration -  how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives 
 Involvement -  how people have been involved in developing the initiative 
 Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions; 
 Prevention -  how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse 

P
age 256



3

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and an 
explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given. 

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included. 

Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will 
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately. 

A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.

Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director. 

 

 
 

P
age 257



4

Impact Assessment - First Stage 

1. Details of the initiative 

Initiative description and summary: (SWANSEA ROAD, TREBANOS)(REVOCATION)( PROHIBITION OF WAITING, 
LOADING OR UNLOADING AT ANY TIME ) and (SPEED CUSHIONS) Order 2020.
Service Area:  Trebanos 
Directorate: Environment.

2. Does the initiative affect:  
Yes No

Service users        
Staff 

Wider community        
Internal administrative process only 

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their: 

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
Know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact?

Age 

Disability 

Gender Reassignment 

Marriage/Civil Partnership 

Pregnancy/Maternity 

Race 

Religion/Belief 

Sex 

P
age 258



5

Sexual orientation 

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes No None/
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact?

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language 



Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English 



5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) / 
How might it impact?

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity 

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 



P
age 259



6

such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc. 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes No Details

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people 

 The proposed scheme will help to reduce traffic speed adjacent to the 
primary school and will also improve traffic flow through the village of 
Trebanos.

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives 

   The proposed scheme will help to reduce traffic speed adjacent to the 
primary school and will also improve traffic flow through the village of 
Trebanos.

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative 

 The Highways section, Local Member for Trebanos and the Legal section 
have worked together on this initiative.

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions

 The Highways section, Local Member for Trebanos and the Legal section 
have worked together on this initiative.

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse 

 The proposed scheme will help to reduce traffic speed adjacent to the 
primary school and will also improve traffic flow through the village of 
Trebanos.

P
age 260



7

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required  

Reasons for this conclusion   

A full impact assessment is not required as the proposals will provide a benefit for the local community.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required 

Reasons for this conclusion   

P
age 261



8

Name Position Signature Date
Completed by Hasan Hasan Engineering Manager 18/05/2020
Signed off by David Griffiths Head of Service/Director 18/05/2020

P
age 262


	Agenda
	4 Annual Governance Statement 2019-2020
	App 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2019-2020

	5 Appointment of Local Authority Governors
	6 Capital Outturn 2019-20
	7 Revenue Outturn 2019-20
	8 Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy
	9 Traffic Regulation Orders - Leiros Park and Ravenswood Close, Bryncoch
	APP A - Leiros Park and Ravenswood Close, Bryncoch
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	APP B - Leiros Park and Ravenswood Close, Bryncoch

	10 Traffic Regulation Orders - Swansea Road, Trebannos
	App A - Swansea Road, Trebannos
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	App B - Swansea Road, Trebannos


